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Accounting Officer's Responsibilities and Approval

The Accounting Officer Is required by the Municipal Finance Management Act (Act 56 of 20083), to maintaln adequate accounting |
records and is responsible for the content and integrity of the audited annuat financial statements and related financial
information included in this report. It is the responsibiiity of the Accounting Officer to ensure that the audited annual financial
statements fairly present the state of affairs of the Municipality as at the end of the financlal year and the results of its operations
and cash flows for the period then ended. The external auditors are engaged to exprass an independent opinion on theaudited
annual financlal statements and was given unrestricted access to all financial records and related data.

The audited annual ﬁnanE:ial statements have been prepared in accordance with Standards of Generally Recognised Accounting
Practice (GRAP) including any interpretatians, guidelines and directives issueil by the Accounting Standards Board.

The audited annual financial statements are based upon appropriate accounting policies consistently applied and supporied by
reasonable and prudent judgernents and estimates.

The Accounting Officer acknowledges that he Is ultimately responsible for the system of internal financial control established by
the entity and place considerable importance on maintaining a strong control environment. To enable the Accounting Officer to
mest these responsibillties, the Accounting Officer sets standards for internal cantrol almed at reducing the risk of error or deficit
in a cost effective manner, The standards Include the proper delegation of responsibilities within a clearly defined framework,
effective accounting procedures and adequale segregation of duties to ensure an acceptable level of risk. These controls are
monitored throughout the Municipality and all employees are required to maintain the highest ethicai standards in ensuring the
Municipality's business is conducted in a manner that in all reasonable circumstances is above reproach. The focus of risk
management In the Municipality is on identifying, assessing, managing and monitoring all known forms of risk across the
Municipality. While operating risk cannot be fully aliminated, the Municipality endeavours to minimise it by ensuring that
appropriate Infrastructure, controls, systems and ethical behaviour are applied and managed within predetermined procedures

and constraints,

The Accaunting Offfcer Is of the opinion, based on the information and explanations given by management, that the system of
internal control provides reasonable assurance that the financial records may be relied on for the preparation of the audited
annual financial statements. Hawever, any system of internal financial control can provide anly reasonable, and not absolute,

assurance against material misstatement or deficit.

The Accounting Officer has reviewed the Municipality's cash flow forecast for the year to 30 June 2022 and, in the light of this
review and the current financial position, he is satisfied that the Municipality has or has access to adequate resources to
continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future,

The audited financial statements are prapared on the basis that the Municipality is a going concern and that the Greater
Tzaneen Municipality has neither the intention nor the need to liquidate or curtall materially the scale of the Municipality.

Although the Accounting Officer is primarily responsible for the financial affairs of the Municipality, the Municipality's external
auditors are respohsible for expressing an opinicn on the financial statements.

The audited annual financial statements set put onjpage 8-143 , which have been prepared on the golng concern basié, were
pproved by the Accaunting Officer on o and ware signed on its behalf by:

Municipal Manager

ol
f-;
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Accounting Officer's Report

The Accounting Officer submits his report for the year ended 30 June 2021,
1. Introduction
Main business and operations

The Greater Tzaneen Municipality is situated in the eastern quadrant of the Limpopo Province within the Mopani District
Municipal Area of Jurisdiction. It comprises a land area of approximately 3240 km, and extends from Haenertsburg in the West,
to Rubbervale in the East, and just South of Modjadjiskioof in the North, to Trichardtsdal in the South.

The long-term goal of Greater Tzaneen Municipality is to ensure that the Municipality is financiaily sustainable, to stimulate
economic growth and to improve the quality of life of all residents in the area of jurisdiction.

To achieve these goals, Councl approved the 2020/2021 Budget on 30 May 2020. The Budgel, which is informed by the service
delivery needs of the community as captured in the Municipality's Integrated Development Plan, demonstrates the Municipality's
commiiment to improve efforts to fimit nen-priority spending and direct spending towards the Municipality's Electricity Network.
The objectives of combatting electricity service interruptions are high on the Municipality's agenda and the short-term cbjectives
are:
= The upgrading of the Municlpality’s Electricity Network to ensure the provision of an uninterrupted electricity service.
. Data cleaning and improvement of the Municipality's Revenue Collection.
» A strong administration to ensure a stable working environment through which future development can be
established.
»  The implementaiion of a revenue enhancement programme in support of revenue generation and the combatting of
losses pertaining to electricity.

2. The effect of the COVID-19 pandemic

The economic climate in which South Africa currently finds itself in has seen the shrinking of National, Provincial and local
budgets due to actions taken to implement measures to curb the COVID-19 pandemic.

Due to the Covid-19 pandemic, Greater Tzaneen Municipality experienced a reduction of four percent in the payment rate of
service charges. The shortfall in revenue has been addressed through the re-allocation of funding in the Adjustment Budget,
expenditure management, and special attention to credit control measures to ensure that the reguired revenue is generated and
used for service delivery.

The relieve of Covid-19 restrictions on 1 March 2021 enabled Municipalities to pricritize service delivery whilst fighting against
Covid-19. Apart from the general expenses our Municipality could provide services that are essential for the daily lives of
residents such as the distribution of water and electricity as well as the collection and disposal of waste.

With special attention to Budget and Cash flow management the Municipality managed to align its financial resources with the
cost of providing services to its communities as well as the cost {o meef the requirements of the Covid-19 pandemic.

3. Implementation of the Municipal Standard Chart of Accounts (MSCOA)

The Implementation of the Municipal Standard Chart of Accounts during the 2020/2021 financial year resulted in the
reclassification of the comparative figures, as disclosed in Note 62 of the financial statements.

Towards this end version 6.4 of the mSCOA Chart which is effective from 2020/2021 has been released and implemented by the
Municipality.

Greater Tzaneen Municipality has:

Acquired, upgraded and maintained the hardware, software and licenses required to be mSCOA compliant.

The Municipality, Budget, Transact and Report directly on al six (6} legislated mSCOA segments.

Generate Regulated schedules directly from the core Municipal financial system, and

Compiled the 2020/2021 Annual Financtal Statements on version 6.4 of the mSCOA chart to comply with legislafive
requirements,

4. Operational responsibility

It is the responsibility of the Municipality to present the statement of financial position, statement of financial performance and
cash flow statement for the year ended 30 June 2021 in accordance with applicable legisiation which includes the standards of
GRAP.
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Accounting Officer's Report

In an attempt to obtain a clean audit opinion for the 2020//2021 financial year the Municipality has institutionalised the concept of
operation clean audit (OPCA) to the extent that weekly meetings are held by the Municipality's Audit Steering Committee to
address previous audit findings and year-end activities.

5. Review of operating resulfs

The budget of Greater Tzaneen Municipality for the 2020/2021 financial year has been approved by Council on 30 May 2020 for
implementation on 1 July 2020, and the adjusted budgets for the financial year were approved as follows:

- 23 December 2020; Special adjustment budget

- 25 February 2021 ; Adjustment budget

- 25 March 2021 : Special adjustment budgst

- 27 May 2021 : Special adjustment budget

Sustainability the Municipality's finances remains a key priority during the 2020/2021 financlal year to ensure that service
delivery continues in a sustainable manner and that the strategic objectives of the Municipality were met,

This review highlights the Municipality's performance for the past year but does not in any way attempt to provide detail of the
performance. Full details appear in the annual financial statements.

Overview of the Municipality's results;

The Municipality's overall actual operating results against the corresponding approved budget figures are scheduled in Appendix
E1 of the annual financial statements,

Statement of Financial Performance

The Statement of Financial Performance reflects a summary of income and expenditure items, while the segmental operating
results per service are shown in appendix D of the annual financial statements, Over the past financial year the operating
revenue increased from R 1 321 492 693 to R 1 397 350 077 while the operating expenditure increased from R 1 109 149 734 to
R 1168 214 921.

The operating revenue is mostly generated from assessment rates, electricity sales and government grants and subsidiaries.
Revenue from these ilems represent the following percentage of the total revenue: .

- Assessment rates 9.3%

- Bervice charges 35.7%

- Government grants and subsidiaries 44.8%

The Municipality's actual operating expenditure amounts to R 1 168 214 921 resuiling In a surplus of R 228 718 616.
Employees remuneration as a percentage of the total expenditure, amounts to 30% whilst contribution to bad debt impairment
provision is 0.2%.Depreciation and amortisation for the year represents 9.11% of the total expenditure. Expenditure on bulk
electricity purchases ended on 34.9% of the total expenditure.
The actual expenditure amounts to R 1 168 214 821 compared to the budgeted amount of R 1 288 077 562.
The expenditure amount includes R 352 143 975 for salaries, and R 407 786 362 for the purchase of bulk electricity.
The Municipality reported a net operating surplus of R 228 718 616 for the financial year under review, (2020 R 208 684 792),
The main revenue sources of the Municipality are:
- Property rates;
- Seirvice charges and
- Government grants and subsidies,
Whilst the highest expenditure items are:
- Bulk purchases;
- Employee related costs;

- General Expenditure
- Depreciation and amortisation;
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Accounting Officer's Report

Coungil has embarked on implementing a range of revenue collecting strategies to optimise the collection of debt owed by
consumers. The outstanding consumer deblors as at 30 June 2021 amounts to R 658 548 047 (2020: R 540 686 343) of which
R 316 706 725 (2020: R 317 577 296) were provided for impairment.Debtors to the amount of R - (2020: R 4 779 425) have
been written off as uncollectable. The total provision for impairment amounts to R 277 682 415 (2020: R 317 577 296).

Unspent conditional grants and receipts decreased from R 5 455 826 in the previous financial year to R 3 502 528 in the cuirent
financial year with a 98.5% spending on the Municipal Infrastructure Grant.

The outstanding loans which have been taken-up to finance capital projects amount to R 154 036 001 (2020: R 133 252 869)
and the detail of this amount is contained in Note 14 and Appendix A.

6. Electricity losses

The slectricity losses decreased from 20.91% in the previous financial year to 11.34% in the 2020/2021 financial year. This
decrease in electricity loss is mainly the result of a two-year investigation project to address the distribution losses. The project
includes the upgrading of infrastructure and the implementation of a revenue enhancement program which is managed and
financed by DBSA.

7. Accounting officers interest in contracts

Employees of the Municipality, including the Accounting Officer completed a declaration of interest in contracts and other related
transactions to comply with fegislative requirements.

8. Corporate Governance

The Accounting Officer is committed to ensure business integrity, transparency and professionalism in all his activities and to
comply with the Code of Corporate Practices and conduct laid out in the King Report on Corporate Governance.

9. Remuneration

8.1 Employees
Employees are remunerated according tc the salary and wage collective agreement dated 29 June 2018 for the period
201712018 to 2020/2021.

9.2 Councillors

The upper fimits of the remuneration of the councillors are determined in terms of government notice issued by the Minister of
Co-operative Governance and Tradltional Affairs as required by the remunerations of public officers’ bearers Act No. 20 of 1998,
Our Municipality complies with these legislative requirements,

10. Audit and Risk Committee

The members of the audit commiltee are independent audit committee members which met on a regular basis during the
financial year to review matters necessarily to fulfil its role. These members have been appointed by the Municipality in terms of
section 166 of the Municipal Finance Management Act.

41. Compliance

14.1 Internal Audit

The Municipality established an internal audit function in terms of section 165 of the Municipal Finance Management Act 2003,
The unit reports to the Accounting Officer administratively and functionally to the audit committee.

11.2 Risk management

A risk and compliance management unit has been established in terms of Chapter 8 Section 62, of the Municipal Finance
Management Act. The unit reporls administratively to the Accounting Officer and functionally to the risk committes.

12. Going concern

The audited annual financial statements have been prepared on the basis of accounting pelicies applicable to a going concern.
This basis presumes that funds will be available to finance future operations and that the realisation of assets and settlement of
liabilities, contingent obligations and commitments will ocour in the ordinary course of business.

Due fo the provision on financial and other recourses on a special adjustment budget as well as in future budgets to contain the
COVID-19 pandemic effectively, our Municipality had no significant financial loss at 30 June 2021,
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Accounting Officer's Report

Continued assessments will be performed fo ensure that the COVID-19 pandemic demands are met without interruptions in
service delivery.

The ability of the Municipality to continue as a going concern is dependent on a number of factors. The most significant of these
is that the Accounting Officer continue to procure funding for the ongoing operations for the Municipality.

13. Late submission of the annual financial statements to the auditor general

As from 1 July 2020 the Municipality implemented the National Treasury Standard Chart of Accounts (mSCOA). The new chart
is compulsory for all Municipalities as it is designed fo enhance compatibility between municipalities. With the implementation of
the chart and accompanying financial system challenges were experienced to the extent that the system developers had to
assist the servive provider, The challenges were addressed but the implementation was sfow which resulted in the late
submission of the annual financial statements,

The late submission of the annual financial statements was reported to National Treasury, the MEC of COGHSTA, the MEC of
Provincial Treasury, the Auditer General and the council of Greater Tzaneen Municipality.

14. Change in administration
Accounting Officer

Name Nationality Financial Period
BS Matlala South African 1 July 2020 - 30 June 2021

Mr BS Matlala resigned as Accounting Officer with effect from 20 August 2021 and on the 24th August 2021 Council appointed
Mr HA Nkuna as acting Municipal Manager,

15, Auditors

Auditor General of South Africa will continue in office for the next financial period.

il
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Statement of Financial Position as at 30 June 2021

Figures In Rand Note(s} 2021 2020
Assets
Current Assets
Inventories 4 25047 559 22981782
Operating lease asset 7 29 244 50 769
Receivables from exchange fransactions 8 572 098 072 459921 163
Recelvables from non-exchange transaclions ¢} 203 937 138 123 435 917
Cash and cash equivalents 9 104 790 238 70 215 767
905 902 251 676 605 398
Non-Current Assets
Investment property 10 181 586 803 181 586 803
Property, plant and equipment 11 15627 095 992 1501 048 381
intangible assets 12 457 277 744 A7
Heritage assets 13 200 958 200 958
Other financial assets 5 38863 416 21113398
1748 204 446 1704 694 011
Total Asseis 2 654 106 697 2381 299 409
Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Other financial liabilities 14 13 050 632 9 301 647
Finance lease obligation 15 2 462 827 3 886 967
Pavyables from exchange transactions 16 247 200 432 240 231674
VAT payable 17 49 201 388 43 987 928
Consumer deposils 18 28 049 781 27 396 999
Employee benefit obligation 21 5906 000 4 957 000
Unspent conditional grants and receipts 19 3 502 528 5465 826
Provisions 20 970 476 970 476
350 344 064 336 188 518
Non-Current Liabilities
Other financiaf fiabilities 14 140 985 369 123 991 222
Finance lease obligation 15 1462 408 3 925 235
Employee benefit obligation 21 86 013 000 71171000
Provisions 20 6 1567 885 5 598 089
234618 672 204 685 546
Total Liabilities 584 962 736 540 874 064

Net Assets

Accumulated surplus
Total Net Assets

12

2069 143 961

1 840 425 345

2089 143 961
2 069 143 961

1840 425 345
1 840 425 345
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Statement of Financial Performance

Figures in Rand Note(s) 2021 2020
Revenue
Revenue from exchange transactions
Agency services 54 10 763 364 9118 576
Interest revenue 56 28 667 610 27 911 932
Licences and permils 95 210 997 1231 992
Other income 23 63 245 680 64 637 830
Rental of facilities and equipment 222 530 11562 233
Service charges 22 499 551 898 553 199 622
Total revenue from exchange fransactions 603 662 079 657 251 985
Revenue from non-exchange transactions
Taxation revenue
Property rates 24 129 625 627 114 868 959
Transfer revenue
Government grants & subsidies 25 625 490 756 512 408 07
Public contributions and donations 26 13 508 391 80 000
Fines, Penalties and Forfeits 57 25 063 224 37 082 842
Total revenue from non-exchange transactions 793 687 998 664 240 708
Total revenue 27 1 397 350 077 1321492 693
Expenditure
Employee related costs 28 {352 143 975) (311 114 598)
Remuneration of councillors 29 (27 036 544) {26 842 506)
Depreciation and amortisation 59 (106 431 092) {99 048 162)
impairment of assels 30 {2 905 950) {9 236 673)
Finance costs 3 (19 962 159) (14 906 809)
Debt Impairment 60 (2 587 061) (22 971 747)
Butk purchases 33 (407 786 362) (389 894 217)
Contracted services 34 {106 333 796) (84 588 244)
Transfers and Subsidies 35 (34 977 217} (42 736 650)
Inventory consumed 32 (14 954 240} (13 332 739)
General Expenses 36 (93 096 525) (94 677 391)
Total expenditure (1.168214921) (1109 149 734)
Operating surplus/ (deficit) 229 135 156 242 342 959
Fair value adjustments 53 - {50 000)
(Loss) / Gain on disposal / write off of assets 58 (416 540) (3 608 167)
{416 540) (3 658 167)
Surplus for the year 228718616 208 684 792
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Statement of Changes in Net Assets

Figures in Rand

Accumulated
surplus

" Total net
assels

Opening balance as previously reporied
Adjustments
Prior year adjustments

Balance at 01 July 2019 as restated®
Changes in net assets
Surplus for the year

Total changes

Balance at 01 July 2020 as restated*
Changes in net assets
Surplus for the year

Total changes
Balance at 3¢ June 2021
Note(s)

14

1617 811 378

13 929 175

1617 811378

13929175

1 631 740 553

208 684 792

1 631 740 553

208 684 792

208 684 792

208 684 792

1 840 425 345

228718616

1 840 425 345

228718616

228 718 616

228718618

2 069 143 961

2 069 143 961
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Cash Flow Statement

Figurss in Rand Note(s) 2021 2020
Cash flows from eperating activities
Receipts
Taxation 129 625 627 114 668 959
Bale of goods and services 519 550 857 526 220 962
Grants 581 607 852 471 727 538
interest income 29 667 610 38 794 944
1260 452 046 1151412 403
Payments
Employee cosis (363 389 515) {343 303 780}
Suppliers {706 118 048) (634 155 724)
Finance costs (18 201 543) {13 571 398)
Transfer of property, plant and equipment 116 662 541 34 036 003
{971 046 565) (956 994 859)
Net cash flows from operating activities 37 289 405 481 194 417 504
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment 1 {252 176 540) {176 221 955)
Proceeds from sale of properly, plant and equipment 1 - {109 999)
Proceeds from sale of investment property 10 - 110 000
Purchase of other Intangible assets 12 - (202 341)
Purchass of herilage assets 13 . (5 958)
Movement of financial assets (17 750 018) 10 411 686
Net cash flows from investing activities {269 926 558) {166 018 567)
Cash flows from financing activities
Repayment of other financia] liabilities 20743 132 (162 948)
Finance lease payments {5 647 583) (63 234)
Net cash flows from financing activities 15 095 549 (216 182)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 34574472 28 182 755
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 70 215 766 42 033 011
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 9 104 790 238 70 215 766
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Statement of Comparison of Budget and Actual Amounts

Budget on Accrual Basis

Approved Adjustments  Final Budget Actual amounts Difference Reference
budget on comparable between final
basis budget and

Figures in Rand actual
Statement of Financial Performance
Revenue
Revenue from exchange
transactions
Service charges 606 617 132 9542000 616159132 409551808 (116607234}  Note 52
Renial of facilities and equipment 1170 100 1158 000 2328100 202530  (2905570)  Note 52
Interest recelived- outstanding 23 600000 {23 600 000) - - -
receivables
Income from agency services 58664201 (36000000) 22664291 10763364 (11900927)  Note 52
Licences and permits 917 000 - 917 000 210 997 (706 003}  Note 52
Other income 6472573 1230132 7702705 83245680 55542975 Note 52
Interest revenue 4301000 23600000 27901000 29667610 1766 610
Total revenue from exchange 701742096 (24 069 868) 677672228 603662079 (74 010149)
transactions
Revenue from non-exchange
transactions
Taxation revenue
Property rates 120 000 000 - 120000000 129625627 9 625 627
Property rates - penalties 12500000 (12 500 000} - - -
imposed
Transfer revenue
Government grants & subsidies 532902000 96500000 620402000 25490756 (3911 244)
Public contributions and . - - 13508391 13508391  Note 52
donations
Fines, penalties and forfeits 38501137 12500000 51001137 25063224 (25937913) Nate 52
Total revenue from non- 703 903 137 96 500 000 800 403 137 793 687 998 {6 715 139}
exchange transactions
Total revenue 1405645233 72430 132 1478 075365 1397 350 077 (80 725 288)
Expenditure
Employee cosls (345564 119) 5925001 (339639 118) (352 143 975) (12 504 B57)
Remuneration of councillors (29 034 983) - (29034983) (27036544) 1998439
Depreciation and amartisation (132 970 807) - {132970807) (106431002) 26539715  Note 52
Impairment of assets - - - (2905950) (2905950)  Note 52
Finance costs (15728 808)  (2656516) (18385324) (10962159) (1576 835)
Debt fmpairment {70 035 699) - {70035699) (2587061) 67448638  Note52
Bulk purchases (406 187 500) (1476 000) (407 663 500) (407 786 362) (122 862)
Contracted Services (71525209) 10330300 (61194 909) (106333796) (45138887}  Note 52
Grants and subsidies paid (30 919 000) (432814 (31351814) (34977217) (3625403} Note 52
Inventory consumed (57 321085) (8859 168) (66180 253) (14954 240) §1226013  Note 52
General Expenses (128067 831) (36553 324) (131621155) (93096526) 38524629  Note 52
Total expenditure {1 287 355 041) {722 521){1 288 077 562)(1 168 214 922) 119 B62 640
Operating surplus 118290192 71707611 189997803 229135155 39 137352
Loss on disposal of assets and - - - {416 540) {416 540)  Note 52
liabilities .
Surplus before taxation 118290492 71707641 189997803 228718615 38720812
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Statement of Comparison of Budget and Actual Amounts

Budget on Accrual Basis

Approved Adjustments  Final Budget Actual amounts Difference Reference
budget on comparable betwsen final
basis budget and
Figures in Rand actual

Actual Amount on Comparable 118 290 192 71707611 189997803 228718615 38720812
Basis as Presented in the

Budget and Actual

Comparative Statement
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Statement of Comparison of Budget and Actual Amounts

Budget on Accrual Basis

Approved Adjustments  Final Budget Actual amounts Difference Reference
budget on comparable between final
basis budgst and
Figures in Rand actual
Statement of Financial Position
Assets
Current Assets
Inventories 19 488 796 16390977 21128773 25047 559 3918786  Note 52
Operating lease asset 154 761 - 154 761 29 244 {125 517)  Note 52
Receivables from exchange 314 435 056 - 314435056 572008072 257663016  Note 52
transactions
Receivables from non-exchange 82 089 294 - B2089294 203937138 121847844  Note 52
transactions
Cash and cash equivalents 44000000 36010608 80010608 104790238 24779630 Note 52
460 167 907 37650585 497 818492 905902251 408 083 759
Non-Current Assets
Investment property 187 377 053 1680000 189057053 181586803 (7 470 250)
Property, plant and equipment 1766 960 930 (135 325 193) 1831635737 1527 095992 (104 539 745)
Intangible assets 1003 005 413819 1416 824 457 277 {959 547)  Note 52
Heritage assets 200 155 - 200 155 200 958 803
Other financial assets 21995950 11882673 33878623 38863416 4984793  Note 52
1977 537 093 (121 348 701) 1 856 188 392 1748 204 446 (107 983 946)
Tofal Assets 2437705000 (B3 698 116) 2 354 006 884 2 €54 106 687 300 099813
Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Other financial liabilities 12 094 722 (560 784) 12433938 13 050632 616 694
Finance lease obligation 4 000 000 - 4000000 2462827 (1537173)  Note 52
Payables from exchange 217304930 (70231382) 207073548 247200432 40126884  Nofe 52
fransactions
VAT payable 37 821 747 . 37821747 40201388 11379641  Note 52
Consumer deposits 27 487 095 1571368 29058463 28049781 (1008 682)
Employee benefit obligation - - - 5 906 000 5906000  Note 52
Unspent conditional grants and - - - 3502 528 3502528  Note 52
receipts
Provisions 1 065 926 (565 111) 500 815 970 476 469661  Note 52
360 674 420 (69 785909) 290888 511 350 344 064 59 455 553
Non-Current Liabilities
Other financial liabilities 145 477 166 (45090 355) 100386811 140085369 40 598 558 Note 52
Finance lease obligation £ 951 000 - 8 951 000 1462408  (7488592) Note 52
Employee benefit obligation 80 444 568 340696 80785284 8B (13000 5227 736
Provisions 6 156 535 (558 446) 5598 089 6 157 895 559806  Note 52
241029269 (45308105) 195721164 234618672 38 897 508
Total Liabilities 601703 689 (115004 014} 486609675 584962736 98 353 061
Net Assets 1 836 001 311 31 395 B98 1 867 397 209 2069 143961 201 746 752
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Statement of Comparison of Budget and Actual Amounts

Budget on Accrual Basis

Approved Adjustments  Final Budget Actual amounts Difference Reference
budget on comparable between final
© basis budget and

Figures in Rand actual
Net Assets ‘
Net Assets Attributable to
Owners of Controlling Entity
Reserves
Accumulated surplus 1835636331 72769784 1908406115 2069 143961 160 737 846
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Statement of Comparison of Budget and Actual Amounts

Budge! on Accrual Basis

Approved Adjustments  Final Budget Actual amounts Difference Reference
budget oh comparable between final
basls budget and

Figures in Rand actual
Cash Flow Statement
Cash fiows from operating activities
Receipts
Taxation 119 250 000 . 119250000 120625627 10375627
Sale of goods and services 545955418  (10258000) 535697 418 519550057 (16 146 461)
Grants 532902000 (15814 399) 517087601 581607852 64520251
Interest income 4301 000 - 4301000 29667610 25366610  Note 52

1202 408 418 (26 072 399)1 176 336 019 1 260 452 046 84 116 027
Payments
Employes costs (345564 110) 26458443 (319 105676) (363 369 515) (44283839)  Note 52
Suppliers (869 415 636) 179246215 (690 169 421) (706 118 048) (15 948 627)
Finance costs (15 728 808) - (15728808} (18201543) (2472735) Note 52
Transfer of property, plant and - - - 116662541 116662541 Note 52
equipment

{1230 708 563) 205 704 658 (1 025 003 905} (971 046 565} 53 957 340
Net cash flows from operating (28 300 145) 179632259 151332114 289405481 138 073 367
activities
Cash flows from investing activities
Additions property, plant and (128 938 050) (15883 000) (144 821050} (252 176 540) (107 355 490)
equipment and intangible assets .
Proceeds on disposal of property, 1 500 000 - 1 500 000 - {1 500 000)
plant and equipment and
intangible assels
Movement in financial assets (1262 784} (500 000) (1762784) (17750018) (15987234)  Nole 52
Net cash flows from investing (128 700 834) (16 383 000} (145 083 834) (269 926 558) (124 842 124)
activities
Cash flows from financing activities
Repayment of other financial (324 045) - {324045) 20743432 21067177  Note 52
liabilities
Finance lease payments - . - (5647583) (5647583} Notes2
Net cash flows from financing (324 045) - (324 045) 15095549 15412594
activities
Net increasef(decrease) in cash (167 325 024) 163 249 259 5024235 34574472 28650237
and cash equivalents ’
Cash and cash equivalents atthe 43510852 30 575 521 74086373 70215768 (3 870 607)
beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at (113 814172) 193824780 80010608 104780238 24779 630

the end of the year
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Notes to the Financial Statements: Accounting Policies
Figures in Rand Note(s) 2021 2020

1. Basis of preparation

The audited annual financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Standards of Generally Recognised
Accounting Practice (GRAP), issued by the Accounting Standards Board in accordance with Section 122(3) of the Municipal
Finance Management Act (Act 56 of 2003).

These audited annual financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis of accounting and are in accordance with
historical cost convention as the basis of measurement, unless spscified otherwise.

Assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses were not offset, except where offsetting Is elther required or permitted by a Standard
of GRAP.

A summary of the significant accounting policies, which have been consistently applied in the preparation of these audited
financial statements, are disclosed below.

The Municipality implemented the Municipal Standard Chart of Accounts (mSCOQA) during the year ended 30 June 2021 as
required in terms of the Municipal Regulations on Standard Chart of Accounts, announced by Govemment Gazette No 37577 of
22 Apiil 2014, in section 168 of the Local Government: Municipal Finance Management Act (Act 56 of 2003} and through
directives and guidelines from National Treasury.

A summary of the significant accounting policies, which have been consistently applied In the preparation of these audited
annual financial stafements, are disclosed below.

These accounting policies are consistent with the previous period, except for the changes set out in note 2 Changes in
accounting policy.

1.1 Presentation currency

These audited annual financial statements are presented in South African Rand, which is the functional currency of the
Municipality.

1.2 Rounding
All figures have been rounded off to the nearest Rand.
1.3 Going concern assumption

These audited annual financial statements have been prepared based on the expectation that the Municipality will continue
to operate as a going concern for at least the next 12 months,

1.4 Significant judgements and sources of estimation uncertainty

In preparing the audited annual financial statements, management is required to make estimates and assumptions that affect
the amounts represented in the audited annual financial statements and related disclosures. Use of available information and
the application of judgement is inherent in the formation of estimates. Actual results in the future could differ from these
estimates which may be material to he audited annual financial statements. Significant judgements include:

Trade receivables and loans and receivables

The Municipality assesses its trade receivables and loans and receivables for impairment at the end of each reporting period. In
determining whether an impalrment loss should be recorded in surplus or deflcit, the surplus makes judgements as to whether
there is observable data indicating a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows from a financial asset.

The impairment for trade receivables and loans and receivables is calcutated on a portfolio basis, based on historical loss ratios,
adjusted for national and industry-specific economic conditions and other indicators present at the reporting date that correlate
with defauits on the portfolio. These annual loss ratios are applied to loan balances in the portiolic and scaled to the estimated
loss emergence period,

Allowance for slow moving, damaged and obsolete stock

An allowance for stock to write stock down to the lower of cost or net realisable value. Management have made estimates of the
selling price and direct cost to sell on certain inventory items. The write down Is included in the operation surpius note.
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1.4 Significant judgements and sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)
Fair value estimation

The carrying value less impairment provision of frade recelvables and payables are assumed lo approximate their fair values,
The fair value of financial lizbilities for disclosure purposes is estimated by discounting the future contractual cash flows at the
current market interest rate that is avallable to the Municipality for similar financial instruments,

Subsequent to initial measurement, investment property is measured at fair value. The fair value of investment property reflects
market conditions at the reporting date, determined by the external valuator.

Impairment testing

The recoverable amounts of cash-generating units and individual assets have been determined based on the higher of value-in-
use calculations and fair values less costs to sell. These calculations require the use of estimates and assumptions,

The Municipality reviews and tests the carrying value of assets when events or changes in circumstances suggest that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable. Assets are grouped at the lowest leval for which identifiable cash flows are largely
independent of cash flows of other assets and liabilities. If there are indications that impairment may have occurred, estimates
are prepared of expected future cash flows for each group of assets, Expected future cash flows used to determine the value in
use of goodwill and tangible assets are inherently uncertain and could materially change over time. They are significantly
affected by a number of factors Including production estimates, supply demand, together with economic factors such as inflation
interest and economic conditions.

Provisions

Provislons were raised and management determined an estimate based on ihe information available. Additional disclosure of
these estimates of provisions are included in note 20 - Provisions.

Post-retirement benefits

The present value of the post-retirement obligation depends on a number of factors that are determined on an actuarial basis
using a number of assumptions, The assumptions used in determining the net cost (income) include the discount rate. Any
changes in these assumptions will impact on the carrying amount of post-retirement obligations.

Other key assumptions for pension obligations are based on current market conditions. Additional information is disclosed in
Note 21,

Effective interest rate
The Municipality used the prime interest rate to discount future cash flows,
Allowance for doubtful debts
On debtors an impairment loss is recognised In surplus and deficit when there is objective evidence that it is impaired. The
impairment is measured as the difference between the debtors carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash
flows discounted at the effective interest rate, computed at initial recognition.
1.5 Investment property
Investment property is property (land or a building - or part of a building - or both) held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation
or both, rather than for;

*  use in the production or supply of goods or services or for

. administrative purposes, or

. sale in the ordinary course of operations.
Owner-occupied property is property held for use in the production er supply of goods or services or for administrative purposes.
Investment property is recognised as an asset when, it is probable that the future economic benefits or service potential that are
assoclated with the investment property will flow to the Municipality, and the cost or fair value of the investment property can be
measured reliably.

investment property is initially recognised at cost. Transaction costs are included in the initial measursment,
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1.5 Investment property (continued)
Where investment property is acquired through a non-exchange transaction, its cost is its fair value as at the date of acquisition,

Cosls Include costs incuired initially and costs incurred subsequently to add to, or to replace a part of, or service a property. If a
replacement part is recognised in the carrying amount of the investment property, the carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised.

Fair value

Subsequent to initial measurement investment property is measured at fair value.

The fair value of investment property reflects market conditions at the reporting date.

A gain or |oss arising from a change in falr value is included in net surplus or deficit for the perlod in which it arises,

If the entity determines that the fair value of an investment property under construction is not reflably determinable but expects
the fair value of the properiy to be reliably measurable when construction is complete, it measures that investment property
under construction at cost until either its fair value becomes reliably determinable or construction is completed (whichever is
earlier). If the entity determines that the fair value of an investment property (other than an investment property under
construction} is not reliably determinable on a continuing basis, the entity measures that investment property using the cost
model {as per the accounting policy on Property, plant and equipment). The residual value of the Investment property is then
assumed to be zero, The entity applies the cost model (as per the accounting policy on Property, plant and equipment) until
disposal of the investment property.

Once the entity becomes able to measure reliably the fair value of an investment properly under construction that has previously
been measured at cost, it measures that property at its fair value. Once construction of that property is complete, it is presumed

that fair value can be measured reliably. If this is not the case, the property Is accounted for using the cost model in accordance

with the accounting policy on Property, plant and equipment.

Derecognition

Investment property is derecognised on disposal or when the investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and no
future economic benefits or service potential are expected from its disposal.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of investrnent property is the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in surplus or deficit in the pericd of retirement or disposal.

tnvestment property is carried a cost less accumulated depreciation and any acecumulated impairment losses.

Compensation irom third parties for investment property that was impaired, lost or given up is recognised in surplus or deficit
when the compsensation becomes receivable.

1.6 Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are tangible non-current assets (including infrastructure assets) that are held for use in the
production or supply of goods or services, rental lo others, or for administrative purposes, and are expected to be used during
more than one periocd.
The cost of an item of property, ptant and equipment is recognised as an asset when: :

*  itis probable that future economic benefits or service potential associated with the item will flow to the

Municipality; and

. the cost of the item can be measured reliably.
Property, pfant and equipment is initially measured at cost.
The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is the purchase price and other costs attributable to bring the asset to the
location and condition necessary for it to be capable of eperating in the manner intended by management. Trade discounts and
rebates are deducted in arriving at the cost,

Where an asset Is acquired through a non-exchange transaction, its cost is its fair value as at date of acquisition.
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1.6 Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Where an item of property, plant and equipment is acquired in exchange for a non-monetary asset or monetary assets, or a
combination of monetary and non-monetary assets, ihe asset acquired is initially measured at fair value (the cost}, if the
acquired item's fair value was not determinable, it's deemed cosl is the carrying amount of the asset(s) given up.

When significant compenents of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted for as
separate items (major compenents) of property, plant and equipment .

Costs include costs incurred initially to acguire or construct an item of property, plant and equipment and costs incurred
subsequently to add to, replace part of, or service it If a replacement cost is recognised In the carrying amount of an item of
property, plant and equipment , the carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised.

The initial estimate of the costs of dismantling and removing the item and resforing the site on which it is located is also included
in the cost of property, plant and equipment , where the entity is obligated to incur such expenditure, and where the obligation
arises as a result of acquiring the asset or using it for purposes cther than the production of inventories.

Recognition of costs in the carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment ceases when the item is in the location
and condilion necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management.

ftems stich as spare paits, standby equipment and servicing equipment are recognised when they meet the definition of
property, plant and equipment ,

Major inspection costs which are a condition of continuing use of an item of property, plant and equipment and which meet the
recognition criteria above are included as a replacement in the cost of the item of property, plant and equipment . Any remaining
inspection costs from the previous inspection are derecognised.

Property, plant and equipment is carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses.

Property, ptant and equipment is carsied at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses whichis carried at
revalued amount being the fair value at the date of revaluation less any subsequent accumulated depreciation and subseguent
accumulated impalrment losses.

Property, plant and equipment is carried at revalued amount, being the fair value at the date of revaluation less any subsequent
accumulated depreciation and subseguent accumulated impairment losses.

Revaluations are made with sufficient regularity such that the carrying amount does not differ materially from that which would
be determined using fair value at the end of the reporting period.

When an Item of property, plant and equipment is revalued, any accumulated depreciation at the date of the revaluation is
restated proportionately with the change in the gross carrying amount of the asset so that the carrying amount of the asset after
revaluation equals its revalued amount.

When an item of property, plant and equipment Is revalued, any accumulated depreciation at the date of the revaluation is
eliminated against the gross carrying amount of the asset and the net amount restated to the revalued amount of the assel.

Any increase in an asset's carrying amout, as a result of a revaluation, is credited directly to a revaluation surplus. The
increase is recognised In surplus or deficlt to the extent that it reverses a revaluation decrease of the same asset previously
recognised in surplus or deficit.

Any decrease in an asset's carrying amournit, as a result of a revaluation, is recognised in surplus or deficit in the current period.
The decrease is debited directly to a revaluation surplus to the extent of any credit balance existing In the revaluation surplus in
respect of that asset.

The revaluation surplus in equity related to a specific item of properly, plant and equipment is transferred directly to retained
earnings when the asset is derecognised.

The revaluation surplus in equity related to a specific item of property, plant and equipment is transferred directly to retained
earnings as lhe asset is used. The amount transferred is equal fo the difference between depreciation based on the revalued
carrying amount and depreciation based on the original cost of the asset.

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on the straight-line basis over their expected useful lives to their estimated
residual value.
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1.6 Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Property, plant and equipment is carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and any Impairment losses.

Property, plant and equipment is carred at revalued amount, being the fair value at the date of revaluation less any subsequent
accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment losses. Revaluations are made with sufficient regularity
such that the carrying amount does not differ materially from that which would be determined using fair value at theend of the
reporting period.

The useful lives of items of property, plant and equipment have been assessed as follows:

Item Depreciation method Average useful life in
years
Infrastructure Straight line
. Roads and road furniture 10-30
. Bridges, Culverts and Gabions 30
» Car Parks 20
*  Airporis 10 - 20
*  Traffic Lights 20
*  Electricity :
- Transformers, Meters & Reticulation Networks 10-65
- Substations & switchgears 15 - 40
- Other Electricity Components 10-40
*  Water 10-20
. Refuse Sites 15- 30
. Buildings 30
. Security Fencing and Lighting 10-30
Community Assets Straight line
. Parks improvements 30
= Community Buildings 30
- Recreational facilittes 20
Other Assels Straight line
. Buildings 30
*  Specialist vehicles 20
. Other vehicles 5-7
*  Office equipment 3-10
. Furniture and fittings 3-10
. Bins and confainers 5-10
*  Plant and equipment 5-15
. Emergency and Health Equipment : 5-10
*  Security Access and Control 5

The depreciable amount of an asset is allocated on a systematic basis over its useful life,

Each part of an item of property, plant and equipment with a cost that is significant in relation to the total cost of the item is
depreciated separately.

The depraciation method used reflects the pattern in which the asset's future economic benefits or service potential are
expected to be consumed by the Municipality. The depreciation methed applied to an assel is reviewed at least at each reporting
date and, If there has been a significant change in the expected pattern of consumption of the fulure sconomic benefits or
service potential embodied in the asset, the method s changed to reflect the changed pattern. Such a change is accounted for
as a change in an accounting estimate,

The Municipality assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that the Municipality expectations about the
residual value and the useful life of an asset have changed since the preceding reporting date. If any such indication exists, the
Municipality revises the expected useful life and/or residual value accordingly. The change is accounted for as a change in an
accounting estimate.

The depreciation charge for each periad Is recognised in surplus or deficit unless it is included in the carrying amount of another
asset.

ltems of property, plant and equipment are derecognised when the asset is disposed of or when there are no further economic
benefits or service potential expected from the use of the asset.
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1.6 Property, plant and equipment {continued}

The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment is included in surplus or deficit when
the item is derecognised. The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an itern of property, plant and equipment is
determined as the difference between the net disposal procseds, if any, and the carrying amount of the item.

Assets which the Municipality holds for rentals to others and subsequently routinely sell as part of the ordinary course of
activities, are transferred to inventories when the rentals end and the assets are available-for-sale. Proceeds from sales of these
assels are recognised as revenue. All cash flows on these assets are included in cash flows from operating activitles in the cash
flow statement.

The Municipality discloses relevant information relating to assets under construction or development, in the notes to the financial
statements {see note 11 ).

Repairs and Maintenance are expenses incurred through servicing equipment or repairing of existing assets. These expenses
are nol recognised in the carrying value of the asset, but directly recognised in Surplus or Deficit as part of inventory consumed
and measured at cost against the aftributing segments of the Municipal Standard Chart of Accounts (mSCOA).

1.7 Intangible assets

An asset is identifiable if it either:

. is separabile, i.e. is capable of being separated or divided from an entity and sold, transferred, licensed, rented or
exchanged, either individually or togeiher with a related contract, identiflable assets or liability, regardless of
whether the entity intends to do so; or

«  arises from binding arrangements (including rights from contracts), regardless of whether those rights are
transferable or separable from the Municipality or from other rights and obligations,

A binding arrangement describes an arrangement that confers similar rights and obligations on the parties to it as if it were in the
form of a contract.

An intangible asset is recognised when:
. It is probable that the expected future economic benefils or service potential that are atlributable to the asset will
flow to the Municipality; and
¢ the cost or fair value of the asset can be measured reliably.
The Municipality assesses the probability of expected future esonomic benefits or service potential using reasonable and
supporlable assumptions that represent management's best estimate of the set of economic conditions that will exist over the
useful life of the asset,

Where an intangible asset is acquired through a non-exchange transaction, its initial cost at the date of acquisition is measured
at Its fair value as at that date. . .

Expenditure on research (or on the research phase of an internal project) is recognised as an expense when it is incurred.
Intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and any tmpairment losses.
The amortisation period and the amortisation method for intangible assets are reviewed at each reporting date.

Amortisation is provided to write down the intangible assets, on a straight-line basis, to their residual values as follows:

ltem Average usefui life

Computer software, other 3-5 years

The Municipality discloses relevant information relating to assets under construction or development, in the notes to the financial
statements (see note12).

Derecognition
Intangible assets are derecognised:

s ondisposal; or
»  when no future economic benefits or service potential are expecled from its use or disposal,
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1.7 Intangible assets {continued)

The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of intangible assets is included in surplus or deficit when the asset is
derecognised (unless the Standard of GRAP on leases requires otherwise on a sale and leaseback),

1.8 Heritage assets

Heritage assels are assets that have a cultural, environmental, historical, natural, scientific, technological or artistic significance
and are held indefinitely for the benefit of present and future generations.

Recognition

The Municipality recognises a heritage asset as an asset if it is probable that future economic benefits or service potential
associated with the asset will flow to the Municipality, and the cost or fair value of the asset can be measured reliably,

Initial measurement

Heritage assets are measured af cost.

Subsequent measurement

After recognition as an asset, a class of heritage assets is carried at its cost less any accumulated impairment losses.
Impairment

The Municipality assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that it may be impaired. If any such indication
exists, the Municipality estimates the recoverable amount or the recoverable service amount of the heritage asset, ‘

Derecognition

The Municipality derecognises heritage asset on disposal, or when no future economic benefits or service potential are expected
from its use or disposal.

The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of a heritage asset is included in surplus or deficit when the item is derecognised
{unless the Standard of GRAP on leases requires ofherwise on a sale and leaseback).

1.9 Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or a residual interest
of another entity.

The amortised cost of a financial asset or financlal liability is the amount at which the financial asset or financia liability is
measured at initial recognition minus principal repayments, plus or minus the cumulative amortisation using the effective interest
method of any difference between that inittal amount and the maturity amount, and minus any reduction (directly or through the
use of an allowance account) for impairment or uncollectibility.

Derscognition is the removal of a previously recognised financial asset or financial llability from anentity's statement of financial
position,

The effective interest method is a methed of calculaling the amortised cost of a financial asset or a financial liability (or group of
financfal assets or financial liabilities) and of allocating the interest income or interest expense over the relevant period. The
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated fulure cash payments or receipts through the expected life of
the financial instrument or, when appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or financial
liability. When calculating the effective interest rate, an entity shall estimate cash flows considering all contractual terms of the
financial instrument {for example, prepayment, call and similar options) but shall not consider future credit losses, The
calcutation includes all fees and points paid or received between parties to the contract that are an integral part of the effective
interest rate (see the Standard of GRAP on Revenue from Exchange Transactions), transaction costs, and all other prermiums or
discounts. There is a presumption that the cash flows and the expected life of a group of similar financlal instruments can be
estimated refiably. However, in those rare cases when it is not possible to reliably estimate the cash flows or the expected life of
a financial instrument {or group of flnancial instruments), the entity shall use the contractual cash flows over the full contractual
term of the financial instrument (or group of financial instruments),

27



Greater Tzaneen Municipality
Audited Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2021

Notes to the Financial Statements: Accounting Policies

1.9 Financial instruments (continued)

Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, between knowledgeable willing parties in
an arm'’s length transaction.

A financial asset is:
. cash;
. a residual interest of another entity; or
. a contractual right to:
- receive cash or another financial asset from another entity; or
- exchange financial assets or financial liabilities with another entity under conditions that are potentially
favourable to the entity.

A financial liability is any liability that is & contractual obligation fo:

+  deliver cash or another financial asset to ancther enity; or

. exchange financial assets or financial liabilites under conditions that are potentially unfavourable to the entity.
Classification

The entity has the following types of financial assets (classes and category) as reflected on the face of the statement of financial
position or in the notes thereto:

Class Category
Consumer debtors Financial asset measured at amortised cost
Receivables from exchange transactions Financial asset measured at amortised cost
Cash and cash equivalents Financial asset measured at amortised cost
Other financial assets Financial asset measured at fair value

The entity has the following types of financial liabilities (classes and category) as reflected on the face of the statement of
financial position or in the notes thereto:

Class Category
Other financial liabilities Financial liability measurad at amortised cosl
Finance lease obligation Financial liability measured at amoriised cost
Payables from exchange transactions Financial liability measured at amortised cost
Consumer deposits Financial liability measured at amortised cost
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1.9 Financial instruments {continued)
Initial recognition

The Municipality recognises a financial asset or a financial liability in its statement of financial position when the entity becomes
a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

The enlity recognises financial assets using trade date accounting.
Initial measurement of financial assets and financial liabifities

The entity measures a financlal asset and financial liability initially at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset or a
financial liabifity not subsequently measured at fair value, transaction costs that are directly altributable to the acquisition or
issue of the financial asset or financial ability,

Subsequent measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities

The entity measures all financial assets and financial liabilities after initial recognition using the following categories:
+ Financial Instruments at fair value.
+ Financial instruments at amortised cost,
* Financial instruments at cost.

All financial assets measured at amortised cost, or cost, are subject fo an impairment review.
Fair value measurement considerations

The best evidence of fair value is quoted prices in an active market. If the market for a financiat instrument is not active, the
entity establishes fair value by using a valuation lechnique. The objective of using a valuation technique is to establish what the
transaction price would have been on the measurement date in an arm's length exchange motivated by normal operating
considerations. Valuation techniques include using recent arm’s length markef transactions between knowledgeable, willing
parties, if available, reference to the current fair value of ancther instrument that is substantially the same, discounted cash flow
analysis and option pricing models. if there is & valuation technique commonly used by market participants to price the
instrument and that technique has been demonstrated to provide reliable estimates of prices obtained in actual market
transactions, the enlity uses that technique. The chosen valuation technique makes maximum use of market inputs and relles as
little as possible on entity-specific inputs. It incorporates all factors that market participants would consider in selting a price and
is consistent with accepted ecenomic methodologies for pricing financial instruments. Periodically, a municipality calibrates the
valuation technigue and tests it for validity using prices from any observable current market transactions In the same instrument
(i.e. without modification or repackaging) or based on any available observable market data.

Reclassification

The entity does not reclassify a financial instrument while it is issued or held unless it is:
* combined instrument that is required to be measured at fair value; or
« aninvestment in a residual interest that meets the requirements for reclassification.

If fair value can no longer be measured reliably for an investment in a residual interest measured at fair value, the entity
reclassifies the investment from fair value to cost. The carrying ameunt at the date that fair value is no longer available becomes
the cost.

If a reliable measure becomes available for an investment in a residual interest for which a measure was praviously not
available, and the instrument would have been required fo be measured at fair value, the entity reclassifies the instrument from
cost to fair value,

Gains and |losses
A gain or loss arlsing from a change in the fair value of a financlal asset or financial liabllity measured at fair value is recognised
in surplus or deficit.

For financial assets and financial liabiliies measured at amortised cost or cost, a gain or loss is recognised in surplus or deficit
when the financial asset or financial liability is derecognised or impaired, or through the amortisation process.

Impairment and uncollectibility of financial assets
The entity assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there is any objective evidence that a financial asset or group of
financial assets is impaired.
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1.9 Financlal instruments (continued)
The Municipalities expenditure pattern must be structured in line with the available cash resources.
Financial assets measured at amortised cost:

if there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on financial assets measured at amortised cost has been incurred, the
amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset's carrying amount and the present value of estimated future
cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate. The carrying amount of the asset is reduced directly. The amount of the loss is recognised in surplus ot deficif,

if, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an event
oceurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously racognised impairment loss is reversed directly OR by adjusting
an allowance account. The reversal does not result in a carrying amount of the financial asset that exceeds what the amortlsed
cost would have been had the impairment not been recognised at the date the impairment is reversed. The amount of the
reversal Is recognised in surplus or deficit.

Financial assets measured at cost:

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been incurred on an investment in a residual interest that is not
measured at fair value because its fair valus cannct be measured rellably, the amount of the impairment loss is measured as the
difference between the carrying amount of the financial asset and the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at
the current market rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such impairment losses are not reversed.

Derecognition
Financial assets
The entity derecognises financial assets using trade date accounting.

The entity derecognises a financial asset only when:
* the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire, are setiled or waived;
« {he entity transfers to another party substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset; or
« the entity, despite having retained some significant risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, has
transferred control of the assel to another party and the other parly has the practical ability to sell the asset in its
entirety to an unrelated third party, and is able to exercise that abllity unitaterally and without needing fo impose
additional restrictions on the transfer. In this case, the entity:
- derecognise the asset; and
- recognise separately any rights and obligations created or retalned in the transfer.

The carrying amotints of the transferred asset are allocated between the rights or obligations refained and those transferred on
the basis of their relative fair values at the transfer date. Newiy created rights and obligations are measured at their fair values at
that date. Any difference between the consideration received and the amounts recognised and derecognised is recognised in
surplus or deficit in the period of the transfer.

If the entity transfers a financial asset in a transfer that qualifies for derecognition in its entlrety and retains the right to service
the financial assel for a fee, it recognise either a servicing asset or a servicing liability for that servicing contract. if the fee to be
received is not expected to compensate the entity adequately for performing the servicing, a servicing liability for the servicing
obligation is recognised at ifs fair value. If the fee to be received is expected o be more than adequate compensation for the
serviclng, a servicing asset is recognised for the servicing right at an amount determined on the basis of an allocation of the
carrying amount of the farger financial asset.

I, as & result of a fransfer, a financial asset is derscognised in its entirety but the transfer results in the entity obtaining a new
financial asset or assuming & new financial liability, or a servicing liability, the entity recognise the new financial asset, financial
liability or servicing liability at fair value,

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received is recognised in surplus or deficit,

If the transferred asset is part of a larger financial asset and the part transferred qualifies for derecognition in its entirety, the
previous carrying amount of the larger financial asset is allocated between the part that continues to be recognised and the part
that Is derecognlised, based on the relative fair values of those parts, on the date of the transfer. For this purpose, a retained
servicing asset is treated as a part that continues to be recognised. The difference between the carrying amount allocated to the
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1.9 Financlal instruments (continued)
part derecognised and the sum of the consideration received for the part derecognised is recognised in surplus or deficit.

If a transfer does not result in derecognition because the entity has retained substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of the transferred asset, the entity continue to recognise the transferred asset in its entirety and recognise a financial liability for
the consideration received. In subsequent periods, the entity recognises any revenue on the transferred asset and any expense
incurred on the financial liability. Neither the asset, and the assoclated liability nor the revenue, and the assoclated expenses are
offset.

Financial liabilities

The entity removes a financlal liability (or a part of a financial Jiability) from its statement of financial position when it is
extinguished — i.e. when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled, expires or waived.

An exchange between an existing borrower and lender of debt instruments with substantially different terms is accounted for as
having exlinguished the original financial liability and a new financial fiability is recognised. Similarly, a substantial modification of
the terms of an existing financial liability or a part of it is accounted for as having extinguished the orfginal financial liability and
having recognised a new financial liability.

The difference between the carrying amount of a financial liability (or part of a financal liability) extinguished or transferred to
another party and the consideration paid, including any non-cash assels fransferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in
surplus or deficit. Any liabilities that are waived, forgiven or assumed by another entity by way of a non-exchange transaction are
acceunted for in accordance with the Standard of GRAP on Revenue from Non-exchange Transactions (Taxes and Transfers),

Presentation

Interest relating to a financial instrument or a compenent that is a financial Kability is recognised as revenue or expense in
surplus or deficit.

Dividends or similar distributions relating to a financial instrument or a compenent that Is a financial liability is recognised as
revenue or expense in surplus or deficit.

Losses and gains relating o a financial instrument or a component that is a financial liability is recognised as revenue or
expense in surplus or deficit.

Distributions to hoiders of residual interests are recognised by the enfity directly in net assets, Transaction costs incurred on
residual interests are accounted for as a deduction from net assets. Income tax [where applicablej relating to distributions to
holders of residual interests and to transaction costs incurred on residual interests are accounted for in accordance with the
International Accounting Standard on Income Taxes.

A financial assel and a financial fiability are only offset and the net amount presented In the statement of financial position when
the entity currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts and intends either to seffle on a net basis, or
to realise the asset and settle the [iability simultaneously.

In accounting for a transfer of a financial asset that does not qualify for derecognition, the entity does not offset the fransferred
asset and the associated liability.

1.10 Leases

Alease is classified as a finance lease if it transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incldental to ownership. A lease Is
classified as an operating lease if it does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership.

When a lease includes bolh land and buildings elements, the entity assesses the classification of each element separately.
Finance leases - lessee

Finance leases are recognised as assets and liabilities in the statement of financial position at amounts equal to the fair value of
the leased property or, if lower, the present value of the minimum fease payments. The corresponding liability to the lessor is

included in the statement of financial position as a finance lease obligation.

The discount rate used in calculating the present value of the minimum lease payments is the Municipality's incremental
borrowing rate.
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1.10 Leases (continued)

Minimum lease payments are apportioned between the finance charge and reduction of the outstanding liability. The finance
charge is allocated to each period during the lease term so as to produce a constant periodic rate of on the remaining balance of
the liability.

Any contingent rents are expensed in the perlod In which they are incurred.

Operating leases - lessor

Operating lease revenue is recognised as revenus ona straight-line basis over the lease term.

Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging operating leases are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset
and recognised as an expense over the lease term on the same basis as the lease revenue.

The aggregate cost of incentives is recognised as a reduction of rental revenue over the lease term on a straight-line basis.
The aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised as a reduction of rental expense over the lease term on a straight-line basis.
Income for leases is disclosed under revenue in statement of financial performance.

Operating leases - [essee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expenseon a straight-line basis over the lease term. The difference befween
the amounts recognised as an expense and the contractual payments are recognised as an operating lease asset or liability.

1.11 inventories

Consumable and stands inventories consist of work in progress, consurables and finished goeds. Inventory is measured at
lower of cost, or net reafisable value. Where it is held for distribution or consumption at ne charge or for a nominal amount,
inventories are valued at cost.

The cost of consumable inventories comprises of all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing
the inventories to their present location and condition. Redundant and slow-moving inventories are identified and written down
with regard to their cost. Cansumables are written down according to their age, condition and utility.

Stands available for sale during the next 12 months are recognised as inventory.

1.12 Impairment of cash-generating assets

Cash-generating assets are those assets held by the Municipality with the primary objective of generating a commercial return.
When an asset s deployed in a manner consistent with that adopted by a profit-orieniated entity, it generates a commercial
return,

Identification

When the carrying amount of a cash-generating asset exceeds its recoverable amount, it is impaired.

The Municipality assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that a cash-generating asset may be impaired.
if any such indication exists, the Municipality estimates the recoverable amount of the asset,

Vajue in use

Value in use of a cash-generating asset is the present value of the estimated future cash flows expected to be derived from the
continuing use of an asset and from its disposal at the end of its useful life,

When estimating the value in use of an asset, the Municipality estimates the future cash inflows and cutflows to be derived from
continuing use of the asset and from its ultimate dispesal and the Municipality applies the appropriate discount rate to those
future cash flows,

Basis for estimates of future cash flows

In measuring value in use the Municipality:
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1.12 Impairment of cash-generating assets (continued)

. base cash flow projections on reasonable and supportable assumptions that represent management's best estimate
of the range of economic conditions that will exist over the remalning useful life of the asset. Greater weight is given
to external evidence;

. base cash flow projections on the most recent approved financial budgetsiforecasts, but excludes any estimated
future cash inflows or outflows expected fo arise from future restructuring's or from improving or enhancing the
asset's performance. Projections based on these budgetsfforecasts covers a maximum period of five years, unfess a
longer period can be justified; and

*  estimale cash flow projections beyond the period covered by the most recent budgets/forecasts by extrapalating the
projections based on the budgets/forecasts using a steady or declining growth rate for subsequent years, unless an
increasing rate can be justified. This growth rate does not exceed the long-term average growth rate for the producis,
industries, or country or countries in which the entity operates, or for the market in which the asset Is used, unless a
higher rate can be justified.

Composition of estimates of future cash flows

Estimates of future cash flows include:

*  projections of cash inflows from the continuing use of the assef;

. projections of cash outflows that are necessarily incurred te generate the cash inflows from continuing use of the
asset (including cash outflows to prepare the asset for use) and can be directly attributed, or aflocated on a
reascnable and consistent basis, to the asset; and

. net cash flows, if any, to be received (or paid) for the disposal of the asset at the end of its useful life.

Estimates of future cash flows exciude:
. cash inflows or outflows from financing activities; and
. income tax receipts or payments.

The estimate of net cash flows to be received (or paid) for the disposal of an asset at the end of its useful life is the amount that
the Municipality expects to obtain from the disposal of the asset in an arm's length transaction between knowledgeable, willing
parties, after deducting the estimated costs of disposal,

Discount rate

The discount rate is a pre-tax rate that reftects current market assessments of the time value of monsy, represented by the
current risk-free rate of interest and the risks specific to the asset for which the future cash flow estimates have not been
adjusted.

Recognition and measurement (individual asset}

If the recoverable amount of a cash-generating asset is less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the assst is
reduced lo its recoverable amount, This reduction is an impairment loss. i

An impairment loss is recognised immediately in surplus or deficit.

When the amount estimated for an impairment loss is greater than the carrying amount of the cash-generating asset lo which it
relates, the Municipalily recognises a liability only to the extent that is a requirement in the Standard of GRAP.

After the recognition of an impairment loss, the depreciation (amortisation} charge for the cash-generating asset is adjusted in
future periods to allocate the cash-generating asset's revised carrying amount, less its residual value (if any}, on a systematic
basis over its remaining useful life.

Cash-generating units

If there is any indication that an asset may be impaired, the recoverable amount is estimatad for the individual asset. If it is not
possible fo estimate the recoverable amount of the individual asset, the Municipality determines the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs (the asset's cash-generating unit).

If an active market exists for the output produced by an asset or group of assets, that asset or group of assets is identified as a
cash-generafing unit, even if some or all of the output Is used Internally. If the cash inflows generated by any asset or cash-
generating unit are affected by internal transfer pricing, the Municipality use management's best estimate of future price(s) that
could be achieved in arm's length transactions in estimating:

. the future cash inflows used to determine the asset's or cash-generating unit's value in use; and

33



Greater Tzaneen Municipality
Audited Annua! Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2021

Notes to the Financial Statements: Accounting Policies

1.12 Impairment of cash-generating assets (continued)
+  the future cash outflows used to determine the value in use of any other assets or cash-generating units that are
affected by the internal transfer pricing.

Cash-generating units are identified consistently from perlod to perlod for the same asset or types of assets, unless a change is
justified.

The carrying amount of a cash-generating unit is determined on a basis consistent with the way the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit is determined.

An impairment loss is recognised for a cash-generating unit if the recoverable amount of the unit is less than the carrying
amount of the unit, The impairment Is allocated to reduce the carrying amount of the cash-generating assets of the unit on a pro
rata basis, based on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit, These reductions In carrying ameunts are treated as
impairment losses on individual assets.

in allocating an impairment loss, the entity does not reduce the carrying amount of an asset below the highest of:
» its fair value less costs to sell (if determinable},
» its value in use (if determinable}; and
. Zero.

The amount of the impairment loss that would otherwise have been allocated to the asset is allocated pro rata to the other cash-
generating assets of the unit.

Where a non-cash-generating asset contributes to a cash-generating unit, a proportion of the carrying amount of that non-cash-
generaling asset is allocated to the carrying amount of the cash-generating unit prior to estimation of the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit.

Reversal of impairment loss

The Municipality assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that an impairment loss recognised in prior
periods for a cash-generating asset may no longer exist or may have decreased, If any such Indication exists, the entity
estimates the recoverable amount of that asset.

An impairment loss recognised in prior periods for a cash-generating asset is reversed if there has been a change in the
estimates used to determine the asset's recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. The cairying
amount of the asset is increased to its recoverable amount. The increase is a reversat of an impairment loss. The increased
carrying amount of an asset attributable to a reversal of an impairment loss does not exceed the carrying amount that would
have been determined (net of depreciation or amertisation) had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior
periods.

A reversal of an impafrment loss for a cash-generating asset is recognised immediately in surpius or deficit,

After a reversal of an impairment loss is recognised, the depreciation (amorlisation) charge for the cash-generating asset is
adjusted in future periocds to allocate tive cash-generating asset's revised carrying amount, less its residual value (ifany), ona
systematic basis over its ramaining useful life,

A reversal of an impairment loss for a cash-generating unit is allocated to the cash-generating assets of the unif pro rata with the
carrying amounts of thoge assets. These increases In carrying amounts are treated as reversals of impairment losses for
individual assets. No part of the amount of such a reversal is allocated to a non-cash-generating asset contributing service
potential to a cash-generating unit.

In allocating a reversal of an impairment loss for a cash-generating unit, the carrying amount of an asset is not increased above
the lower of:
. its recoverable amount (if determinable}; and
+  the carrying amount that would have been determined (net of amortisation or depreciation) had no impairment loss
been recagnised for the asset in prior periods.

The amount of the reversal of the impairment loss that would otherwise have been allocated to the asset is allocated pro rata to
the other assets of the unit.

Redesignation
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1.12 Impairment of cash-generating assets (continued)

The redesignation of assets from a cash-generating asset to a non-cash-generating asset or from a non-cash-generating asset
to a cash-generating asset only occur when there is clear evidence that such a redeslgnation is appropriate.

1.13 Impairment of non-cash-generating assets

Non-cash-generating assets are assets other than cash-generating assets.

Identification

When the carrying amount of a non-cash-generating asset exceeds its recoverable service amount, it is impaired.

The Municipality assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that a non-cash-generating asset may be
impaired, If any such indication exists, the Municipality estimates the recoverable service amount of the asset.

Vaiue in use
Value in use of non-cash-generating assets is the present value of the non-cash-generating assets remaining service potential.

The present value of the remaining service potentiat of 8 non-cash-generating assets is determined using the following
approach:

Depreciated replacement cost approach

The present value of the remaining service potential of a non-cash-generating asset Is determined as the depreciated
replacement cost of the asset. The replacement cost of an asset is the cost fo replace the asset’s gross service potential, This
cost is depreciated to reflect the asset in its used condition. An asset may be replaced either through reproduction (replication}
of the existing asset or through replacement of its gross service potential. The depreciated replacement cost is measured as the
current reproduction or replacement cost of the asset, whichever is Jower, less accumulated depreciation calculated on the basis
of such cost, fo reflect the already consumed or expired service potential of the asset.

The replacement cost and reproduction cost of an asset is determined on an “optimised” basis. The rationale is that the
Municipafity would not replace or reproduce the asset with a fike asset if the asset to be replaced or reproduced is an
overdesigned or overcapacity asset. Overdesigned assets contain features which are unnecessary for the goods or services the
asset provides. Overcapacity assels are assets that have a greater capacity than is necessary to meet the demand for goods or
services the asset provides. The determination of the replacement cost or reproduction cost of an asset on an optimised basis
thus reflects the service potential required of the asset.

Recognition and measurement

If the recoverable service amount of a non-cash-generaiing asset is less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the
assel is reduced to it's recoverable service amount. This reduction is an impairment loss.

An impalrment loss is recognised immediately in surplus or deficit.
Any impairment loss of a revalued non-cash-generating asset is treated as a revaluation decrease.

When the amount estimated for an impairment loss is greater than the carrying amount of the non-cash-generating asset to
which it relates, the Munlcipality recognises a liability only to the extent that is a requirement in the Standards of GRAP.

After the recognition of an impairment foss, the depreciation (amortisation) charge for the non-cash-generating asset is adjusted
in future periods to allocate the non-cash-generating asset's revised carrying amount, less its residual value {if any), on a
systematic basis over its remaining useful life.

Reversal of an impalrment loss

The Municipality assesses al each reporting date whether there is any indication that an impairment loss recognised in prior

periods for a non-cash-generating asset may no longer exist or may have decreased. i any such indication exists, the
Municipality estimates the recoverable service amount of that asset.

36



Greater Tzaneen Municipality
Audited Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2021

Notes to the Financial Statements: Accounting Policies

1.13 Impairment of non-cash-generating assets (continued)

An impairment loss recognised in prior periods for a non-cash-generafing asset is reversed if there has been a change in the
estimates used lo determine the asset's recoverable service amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. The
carrying amount of the asset is increased to its recoverable service amount. The increase is a reversal of an impairment loss.
The increased carrying amount of an assel attributable o a reversal of an impairment loss does not exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined (net of depreciation or amertisation) had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in
prior periods.

A reversal of an impairment loss for a non-cash-generating asset is recognised immediately in surplus or deficit.

After a reversal of an impairment loss Is recognised, the depreciation (amortisation) charge for the non-cash-generating asset is
adjusted in future periods to allocate the non-cash-generating asset’s revised carrying amount, less its residual value (if any), on
a systematic basis over its remaining usefu fife,

Redesignation

The redesignation of assets from a cash-generating asset to a non-cash-generating asset or from a nen-cash-generating asset
to a cash-generating asset only occur when there is clear evidence that such a redesignation is appropriate.

1.14 Employee benefits
Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are employee benefits (other than termination benefits) that are due to be settled within twelve
months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related service.

Short-term employee benefits include items such as:

= wages, salaries and soclal security contributions;

= short-term compensated absences (such as pald annual leave and paid sick leave) where the compensation for the
abssnces is due to be settled within twelve months after the end of the reporting period in which the employees
render the related employee service;

. bonus, incentive and performance related payments payable within twelve months after the end of the reporting
perlod In which the employees render the related service; and

] non-monetary benefits (for example, medical care, and free or subsidised goods or services such as housing, cars
and cellphones) for current employees.

Post-employment benefitfs

Post-employment benefits are benefits {other than termination benefits) which a Municipality pays fixed contributions into a
separate Municipafity (a fund} and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further contributions if the fund does not
hold sufficient assets to pay all employee benefits relating to the smpleyee services in the current and prior periods.
Payments made to industry-managed (or state plans) retiremeni benefit schemes are dealt with as defined contribution plans
where the enlity’s obligation under the schemes is equivalent to those arising in a defined contribution retirerent benefit pian.

Defined benefit plans
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1.14 Employee benefits (continued)
For defined beneiit plans the cost of providing the benefits is determined using the projected credit method.
Actuarial valuations are conducted on an annual basis by independent actuaries separately for each plan.

Consideration Is given to any event that could impact the funds up to end of the reporting period where the interim valuation is
performed at an earlier date.

Past service costs are recognised immedialely to the extent that the benefils are already vested and are otherwise amortised on
a straight line basis over the average period until the amended benefits become vested.

To the extent that, at the beginning of the financial period, any cumulative unrecognised actuarial gain or loss exceeds ten
percent of the greater of the present value of the projected benefit obligation and the falr value of the plan assets (the corridor),
that portion is recognised in surplus or deficit over the expected average remalining service fives of participating employess.
Actuarial gains or losses within the corridor are not recognised.

Gains or losses on the curtallment or settlement of a defined benefit plan is recognised when the entity is demonstrably
committed to curtailment or settlement.

When It Is virtually certain that another party will reimburse some or all of the expenditure required to settle a defined benefit
obligation, the right to reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset. The asset is measured at fair value. In all other
respects, the asset is treated in the same way as plan assets. In surplus or deficit, the expense relating to a defined benefit plan
is presented as the net of the amount recognised for a reimbursement,

The amount recognised in the statement of financial position represents the present value of the defined benefit obligation as
adjusted for unrecognised actuarial gains and losses and unrecognised past service costs and reduces by the fair value of plan
assels,

Any asset is limited to unrecognised actuarial losses and past service costs, plus the present value of available refunds and
reduction in future conlributions to the plan.

1.15 Provisions and contingencies

Provisions are recognised when:
*  the Municipality has a present obligation as a result of a past event;
. it is probable that an outflow of resources embedying economic benefits or service potential will be required to
settle the obligation; and
* a reliable estimate can he made of the obligation.

The amount of a provision is the best estimate of the expenditure expected to be required 1o seftle the present obligation at the
reporling date.

Where the effect of time value of money Is material, the amount of a provision is the present value of the expenditures expected
to be required {o settle the obligation. )

The discount rate Is a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific o
the liability.

Where some or alf of the expenditure required to setlle a provision is expected to be relmbursed by another party, the
reimbursement is recognised when, and only when, it Is virually certain that refmbursement will be recetved if the Municipality
setlles the obligation. The reimbursement is freated as a separate asset. The amount recognised for the reimbursement does
not exceed the amount of the provision,

Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate, Provisions are reversed if it is
no longer probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or service potential will be required, to settle the
chligation.

Where discounting is used, the carrying amount of a provision increases in each period to reflect the passage of time. This
increase is recognised as an interest expense.

A provisicon is used only for expenditures for which the provision was originally recognised.
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1.15 Provisions and contingencies {continued)

Provisions are not recognised for future operating deficits.

Contingent assets and contingent liabilities are not recognised. Contingencies are disclosed in note 40.
1.16 Commitments

lterns are classiiled as commitments when an entity has committed itself to future transactions that will normally result in the
outflow of cash.

Disclosures are required in respect of unrecognised contractual commitments.

Commitments for which disclosure is necessary to achieve a fair presentation should be disclosed in a note to the financial
statements, if both the following criteria are met:
»  Contracts should be non-canceflable or only cancellable at significant cost (for example, contracts for computer or
bullding maintenance services); and
= Contracts should relate to something other than the routine, steady, state business of the entity — therefore salary
commitments relating to employment contracts or social security benefit commitments are excluded.

1.17 Revenue from exchange transactions

Revenue is the gross inflow of economic benefits or service potential during the reporting period when those inflows result in an
increase in net assets, other than increases relating to contributions from owners.

An sxchange transaction ks one In which the Municipality recelves assets or services, or has liabilities extinguished, and dirsctly
gives approximately equal value (primarily in the form of goods, services or use of assets) to the other party in exchange.

Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, between knowledgeable, willing parties in
an arm's length transaction.

Measurement
Revenue Is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, net of trade discounts and volume rebates.
Sale of goods

Revenue from the sate of goods is recognised when all the following conditions have been satisfied:

«  the Municipality has transferred to the purchaser the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods;

= the Municipality retains neither continuing managerial involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership nor effective control over the goods sold; :

+«  the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

» itis probable that the economic benefits or service potential associated with the transaction will How to the
Municipality; and

*  the costs incurred of to be incurred in respect of the transaction can be measured reflably.

Rendering of services

Service charges relating to eleclricity and water are based on consumption. Meters are read on a monthly basis and revenue
is recognized when invoiced. Provisional estimates of consumption are made monthly when meter readings have not been
performed and are based on the consumption history, The provisional estimates of consumption are recognized as revenue
when invoiced. Adjustments to provisional estimates of consumption are made in the invoicing period when meters have
been read. These adjustments are recognized as revenue in the invoicing period.

Revenue arising from application of the approved tariff of changes in recognised when the relevant service is rendered by
applying the relevant authorised tariff. This includes the issuing of licenses and permits.

Service charges relating to solid waste, sanitation and sewerage are levied monthly in terms of the approved tariffs.

Interest

38




Greater Tzaneen Municipality
Audited Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2021

Notes to the Financial Statements: Accounting Policies

1.17 Revenue from exchange transactions (continued)

Revenue arising from the use by others of entity assets yielding interest, royalties and dividends or similar distributions is
recognised when:
. Itis probable that the economic benefits or service potential associated with the transaction will flow to the entity, and
. The amount of the revenue can be measured reliably.

Interest is recognised, in surplus or deficit, using the effective interest method.

Service fees included in the price of the product are recognised as revenue over the period during which the service Is
performed.

1.18 Revenue from non-exchange transactions

Revenue from non-exchange transaction refers to transaction where the Municipality received revenue from another enlity
without directly giving approximately equal value in exchange. Revenue from non-exchange transactions is generally recognised
to the extent that the related receipt or receivable qualifies for recognition as an asset and there is no Hability to repay the
amount.

Recognition

An inflow of resources from a non-exchange transaction recognised as an asset Is recognised as revenue, except to the extent
that a liability is also recognised in respect of the same inflow.

As the Municipality satisfies a present obligation recognised as a liability in respect of an inflow of resources from a non-
exchange transaction recognised as an asset, it reduces the carrying amount of the liahility recognised and recognises an
amount of revenue equal to that reduction.

Measurement

Revenue from a non-exchange transaction is measured at the amount of the increase in net assets recognised by the
Municipality.

When, as a result of a non-exchange transaction, the Municipality recognises an asset, It also recognises revenue equivalent to
the amount of the asset measured at its fair value as at the date of acquisition, unless it is also required to recognise a liability.
Where a liability is required to be recognised it will be measured as the best estimate of the amount required to settle the
obligation at the reporting date, and the amount of the increase In net assets, If any, recognised as revenue. When a liability is
subsequently reduced, because the taxable event occurs or a condition is satisfied, the amount of the reduction in the liability Is
recognised as revenus.

Taxes

The Municipality recognises an asset in respect of taxes when the taxable event occurs and the assst recognition criteria are
met,

Resources arising from taxes satisfy the definition of an asset when the Municipality controls the resources as a result of a past
event (the taxable event) and expects to receive future economic benefits or service potential from those resources. Resources
arising from taxes satisfy the criterla for recognition as an asset when it is probable that the inflow of resources will occur and
their fair value can be reliably measured. The degree of probability attached to the inflow of resources is determined on the basis
of evidence avallable at the time of initial recognition, which inciudes, but is not limited to, disclosure of the taxable event by the
taxpayer.

The Municipalfity analyses the taxation laws to determine what the taxable events are for the various taxes levied.

The taxable event for income tax is the earning of assessable income during the taxation period by the taxpayer.

The taxable event for value added tax is the undertaking of taxable activity during the taxation period by the taxpayer.

The taxable event for customs duty is the movement of dutiable goods or services across the customs boundary.

The taxable event for estate duty is the death of a person owning taxable property.
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1.18 Financial instruments {continued)

The taxable event for property tax is the passing of the date on which the tax is levied, or the period for which the tax is levied, if
the tax is levied on a periodic basis.

Taxation revenue is determined at a gross amount. It is not reduced for expenses paid through the tax system.
Transfers

Apart from Services In Kind, which are not recognised, the Municipality recognises an asset in respect of transfers when the
transferred resources meet the definition of an asset and satisfy the criteria for recognition as an asset.

The Municipality recognises an asset in respect of transfers when the transferred resources meet the definition of an asset and
satisfy the criteria for recognition as an asset.

Transferred assets are measured at their fair value as at the date of acquisition.
Fines

Fines are recognised as revenue when the receivable meets the definition of an asset and satisfles the criteria for recognition as
an asset,

Assets arising from fines are measured at the best estimate of the inflow of resources to the Municipality,
Where the Municipality coilects fines in the capacity of an agent, the fine will not be revenue of the collecling entity.
Gifts and donations, including goods in-kind

Gifts and donations, including goods in kind, are recognised as assets and revenue when it Is probable that the fulure economic
bensfits or service potential will flow to the Municipality and the fair value of the assets can be measured reliably.

1.19% Borrowing costs

It is inappropriate to capltalise borrowing costs when, and only when, there is clear evidence that it is difficult to link the
borrowing requirements of an entlly directly to the nature of the expenditure to be funded i.e. capital or current.

Borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

1.20 Comparative figures

Where necessary, comparative figures have been reclassified to conform fo changes in presentation in the current year.

1,21 Unauthorised expenditure

Unauthorised expenditure is expenditure that has not been budgeted for, expenditure that is not in terms of the conditions of an
allocation received from another sphere of government, Municipality or organ of state and expenditure In the form of a grant that
is not permitted in terms of the Municipal Finance Managemant Act {Act No. 56 of 2003). Unauthorised expenditure is accounted
for as an expense In the Statement of Financial Performance and where recovered, it is subsequently accounted for as revenue
in the Statement of Financial Performance

1.22 Fruitless and wasteful expenditure

Fruitiess expenditure means expenditure which was made in vain and would have been avoided had reasonable care heen
exercised.

All expenditure relating to frultiess and wasteful expenditure [s recognised as an expense in the statement of financial
performance in the year that the expenditure was incurred. The expenditure is classified in accordance with the nature of the
expense, and where recovered, it is subsequently ascounted for as revenue in the statement of financial performance.

1.23 Wrregular expenditure

Irregutar expenditure is expenditure that is contrary to the Municlpal Finance Management Act {(Act No.B6 of 2003), the
Municipat Systems Act (Act Ne.32 of 2000), and the Public Office Bearers Act (Act No. 20 of 1998} or is in contravention of the
economic entity’s supply chain management policy.
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1.23 lrregular expenditure (continued)

Irregular expenditure excludes unauthorfsed expenditure. liregular expenditure is accounted for as expenditure in the Statement
of Financial Performance and where recovered, it Is subsequently accounted for as revenue in the Statement of Financial
Performance,

1.24 Departmental information

A departmental information on property, plant and equipment, as well as income and expenditure, Is set out in Appendixes C
and D. The Municipality operates solely in its area of jurisdiction as determined by the Demarcation Board.

Dapartmental Information is prepared in conformity with the accounting policies applied for preparing and presenting the financial
statements.

1.25 Budget information

The Municipality are typically subject to budgetary limits in the form of appropriations or budget authorisations (or equivalent),
which Is given effect through authorising legistation, appropriation or similar.

General purpose financial reporting by the Municipality shall provide information on whether resources were obtained and used
in accordance with the legally adopted budget.

The approved budget is prepared on a accrual basis and presented by functional classification linked to performance outcome
objectives.

The approved budget covers the fiscal period from 2020/07/01 to 2021/06/30.

The budget of Greater Tzaneen Municipality for the 2020/2021 financial year has been approved by Council on 30 May 2020 for
implementation on 1 July 2020, and the adjusted budgets for the financial year were approved as follows:

- 23 December 2020: Special adjustment budget

- 25 February 2021 : Adjustment budget

- 25 March 2021 : Special adjustment budget

- 27 May 2021 : Special adjustment budget

The budget for the economic entity includes all the entities approved budgets under its control.

The audited annual financial statements and the budget are on the same basis of accounting therefore a comparison with the
budgeted amounts for the reporting peried have been included in the Statement of comparison of budget and actual amounts.

Comparative information is not required.
1.26 Related parties

Management are those persons responsible for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the Municipality, including
those charged with the governance of the Municipality in accordance with legislation, in instances where they are required to
perform such functions.

Close members of the family of a person are considered to be those family members who may be expected to influance, or be
influenced by, that management in their dealings with the Municipality.

Only transactions with related parties not at arm’s iength or not in the ordinary course of business are disclosed.
1.27 Events after reporting date

Events after reporting date are those events, both favourable and unfavourable, that occur between the reporting date and the
date when the financial statements are authorised for issue. Two types of events can be identified:
+  those that provide evidence of conditions that existed at the reporting date (adjusting events after the reporting date);
and
. those that are indicative of conditions that arose after the reporting date (non-agjusting events after the reporting
date).

The Municipality will adjust the amount recognised in the financial statements to reflect adjusting events after the reporting date
once the event occurred,
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1.27 Events after reporting date (continued)

The Municipality wil disclose the nature of the event and an estimate of its financial effect or a statement that such estimate
cannot be made in respect of all materlal non-adjusting events, where non-disclesure could influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of the financial statements.

1.28 Value Added Tax {VAT)

The Municipality accounts for VAT on the payment basis. Qutput VAT is only payable as and when the purchase consideration
is received and input tax can be claimed as and when payments are made.

1,29 Conditional grants and receipts

Revenue received from conditional grants, donations and funding are recognised as revenue to the extent that the Municipality
has complied with any of the criteria, conditions or obligalions embodied in the agreement. To the extent that the criteria,
conditions or obligations have not been met a liability is recognised, The kiability is transferred {o revenue as and when the
conditions attached to the grants are met, Grants without any conditions attached are recognised as revenue when the asset is
recognised.
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2, Changes in accounting policy

The audited annual financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Standards of Generally Recognised Accounting
Practice on a basis consistent with the prior year except for the adoption of the following new or revised standards.

With the adoption of mSCOA the Municipality reclassified certain balances in order to comply with the instruction notes issued.
The result of the reclassification Is set out in Note 62 in the Annual Financial Statements.

The aggregate effect of the changes in accounting policy on the audited annual financial statements for the year ended 30 June
2021 is as follows:

3.  New sfandards and interpretations
3.1 Standards and interpretations not yet effective or refevant

The following standards and interpretations have been published and are mandatory for the Municipality’s accounting
perlods beginning on or after 01 July 2021 or later periods but are not relevant to its operations:

GRAP 104 (amended): Financial Instruments

Following the global financlal crisis, a nummber of concerns were raised about the accounting for financial instruments. This
included that (a) information on credit losses and defaults on financial assets was received too late to enable proper
decision-making, (b} using fair value in certain instances was inappropriate, and {c) some of the existing accounting
requirements were seen as loo ruies based. As a result, the International Accounting Standards Board® amended its
existing Standards to deal with these issues. The IASB Issued IFRS® Standard en Financial Instruments (IFRS 9} in 2008 to
address many of the concemns raised. Revisions were also made to IAS® on Financial Instruments; Presentation and the
IFRS Standard® on Financial Instruments: Disclosures, The IPSASB issued revised International Public Sector Accounting
Standards in June 2018 so as to align them with the equivalent IFRS Standards.

The revisions better align the Standards of GRAP with recent international developments, The amendments result in better
information available to make decisions about financial assets and their recoverability, and more transparent information on
financial fiabilities. . :

The most significant changes to the Standard affect:
. Financial guarantee contracts issued

L.oan commitments issued

Classification of financial assets

Amortised cost of financlal assets

Impairment of financial assets

Disclosures

The effective date of the standard is not yet set by the Minister of Finance.

The Municipality does not envisage the adoption of the standard until such time as it hecomes applicable to the Municipality's
operations.

Guideline: Guideline on Accounting for Landfill Sites

The objective of this guideline: The Constitution of South Afiica, 1996 (Act No. 108 of 1996} (the constitution), gives local
government the executive authorily over the functions of cleaning, refuse removal, refuse dumps and solid waste disposal.
Even though waste disposal activities are mainly undertaken by municipalities, other public sector entities may also be
involved in these aclivities from time to time. Concerns were raised about the inconsistent accounting practices for landfil
sites and the related rehabilitation provision where entities undertake waste disposal activities. The objective of the Guideline
is therefore fo provide guidance to entitles that manage and operate landfill sites. The guidance will improve comparability
and provide the necessary information to the users of the financial statements to hold entities accountable and for decision
making. The principles from the relevant Standards of GRAP are applied In accounting for the landfill site and the related
rehabilitation provision. Where appropriate, the Guideline also illustrates the accounting for the land in a landfill, the landfil
site asset and the related rehabilitation provision.

It covers: Overview of the leglslative requirements that govern landfill sites, Accounting for land, Accounting for the landfill

site asset, Accounting for the provision for rehabilitation, Closure, End-use and monitoring, Other consideralions, and
Annexures with Terminology & References to pronouncements used in the Guideline,
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3. New standards and interpretations (continued)
The effective date of the guideline is not yet set by the Minister of Finance.

The Municipality does not envisage the adoption of the guidsline until such time as it becomes applicable to the
Municipality's operations.

GRAP 25 Employee benefits (revised Standard)
The objective of this Standard is to prescribe the accounting and disclosure for employee benefits.
This Standard requires an entity to recognise:

(a) & liability when an employee has provided service in exchange for employee benefits to be pald in the future; and
(b} an expense when the eniity consumes the economic benefits or service potential arising from service provided by an
employee in exchange for employee benefits.

This Standard issued in April 2021 shall be applied by an employer in accounting for all employee benefits, except share based
payment transactions (see the International Financial Reporting Standard® on Share-based Payment), and to the initial
recognition and initial measurement of assets and liabilities acquired in a transfer of functions between entities under common
control (see the Standard of GRAP on Transfer of Funciions Between Entities Under Common Control), a transfer of functions
betwaen entities not under common control (see the Standard of GRAP on Transfer of Functions Between Entities Not Under
Common Controf) or a merger.

Transitional provisions

Initial adoption of the Standards of GRAP .

The transitional provisions to be applied by entities on the initiat adoption of this Standard are prescribed in a directive(s). The
provisions of this Standard should be read in conjunction with each applicable directive. Effective date Initial adoption of the
Standards of GRAP.
An entity shall apply this Standard for annual financial statements covering periods beginning on or after a date to be determined
by the Minister of Financs in a regulation to be published in accordance with section 91(1}(k) of the Public Finance Management
Act, Act No. 1 of 1999, as amended. If an entity elects to apply this Standard earlier, it shall disclose this fact.

Withdrawal of the Standard of GRAP on Employee Benefits (2009} .
This Standard supersedes the Standard of GRAP on Employee Benefits issued in 2009

The Municipality does not envisage the adoption of the standard unfil such time as it becomes applicable to the Municipality's
operations.
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3. New standards and interpretations (continued)

IGRAP 7: The limit on a defined benefit asset, minimum funding requirements and their interaction

This Interpretation issued in April 2021 applies to alf post-employment defined benefits and other long term employee defined
benefits. For the purpose of this Interpretation, minimum funding requirements are any requirements to fund a post-employment
or other long-term defined benefit plan.

Issues

The issues addressed in this Interpretation are: (a) When refunds or reductions in fulure contributions shouid be regarded as
available in accordance with the definition of the asset ceiling In paragraph .08 of GRAP 25, (b) How a minimum funding
requirement might affect the availability of reductions in future confributions.

Transifional provisions

The provisions of this Interpretation shall be applied in conjunction with the transitional provisions on the initial adoption of GRAP
25 (2021) as prescribed in a direclive(s).

Effective date

An entity shall apply this Interpretation in conjunction with the effective date of GRAP 25 (2021) fo be determined by the Minister
of Finance in a reguiation to be published in accordance with section 91(1){b) of the Public Finance Management Act, Act No. 1
of 1989, as amended

Withdrawal of the Inferprefation of the Standards of GRAP on The Limit on a Defined Benefit Assoet, Minimum Funding
Requirements and their Inferaction (2010) .

This Interpretation supsrsedss the Interpretation of the Standards of GRAP on The Limit on a Defined Benefit Asset, Minlmum
Funding Requirements and their Interaction issued in 2010,

The Municipality does not envisage the adoption of the interpretation note until such time as it becomes applicable to the
Municipality's operations.

IGRAP 21: The Effect of Past Decisions on Materiality

Entities apply the accounting policies set cut in the Standards of GRAP, except when the effect of applying them is immaterial,
This Interpretation explains the implications of adopting accounting policies for material items based on Standards of GRAP as
well as applying alternative accounting freatments for immaterial iterns.

This Interpretation issued in June 2021 applies fo accounting policies and alternative accounting treatments refated to the
recognition and measurement of iterns. The presentation and disclosure of items is dealt with in the Standard of GRAP on
Presentation of Financial Statements (GRAP 1).

Issues

This Interpretation addresses the following issues:

{a) Whether past decisions about materiality affect subsequent reporting periods,

{b) Whether applying alternative accounting treatments based on materiality is a departure from the Standards of GRAP or an
error,

Transitional provisions

This Interpretation shall be applied prospectively. Entities are not required fo reassess the application of past decisions on
materiality.
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3. New standards and interpretations (continued)

Effeclive date
An entity shall apply this Interpretation for annual financial statements covering periods beginning on or after 1 April 2023,

Earlier application is encouraged.

The Municipality does not envisage the adoption of the interpretation note until such time as it becomes applicable to the
Municipality's operations.

4. Inventories

Stands 6 070 000 6 070 000
Consumables 18 977 559 16 911 782
25 047 559 22 981 782

The carrying value of Inventories is disclosed at lower of cost or net realisable value.

Stands not vet transferred

Stands to the value of R 4 180 000 {2020: R 7 770 000) have been sold in previous financlal periods, however the transfers are
still in progress.

tn some instances the delays were caused by litigation.
Details of stands not yet iransferred attached as Appendix G6.
Inventory pledged as security

No inventory was pledged as security for any financial tiability.
5. Other financial assets

At amortised cost
Fixed deposit- listed 38 863 416 21113398

Non-current assets
At amortised cost 38 863 416 21113 398

Council's valuation of listed investments

Standard Bank 22 269 102 21 113398
ABSA 16 594 314 -
38 863 416 21 113 398
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2021

2020

5. Other financial assets {(continued)

Fair value of investments are at book value as at 30 June 2021.

No non-current investments defaulted and no terms of any of the non-current investments were re-negotiated.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the fair value of each class of financial asset mentioned above.

A fixed deposit of R 22 289 102 has been made with Standard Bank of South Africa to repay a loan of R 30 000 000 on maturity

date.

A fixed deposit was made with ABSA to secure a loan of R 80 million taken up with DBSA. The Municipality established a debt
service account of R16 594 314 to cover the debt service repayment obligation, under the agreement for 12 (twelve) months.

Loans to staff and the public
To comply with the requirements of the MFMA, no loan has been made after 1 March 2004,
6. Receivables from non-exchange transactions

Fines
Consumer debtors - Rates

6.1) Fines

Recongiliation of traffic fines
Opening balance

New fines issued

Less: Fines reversed

Less: Fines paid

Less: Fines written off

Less: Provision for impairment

Net outstanding fines receivable

Reconciliation of provision for impairment of traffic fines
Less: Provision for impairment

Opening balance

Additionally provided

Less: Fines reduced or cancelled

55 232 680 44 884 439
148 704 458 78 551 478
203 937 138 123 435 917

56 105 548 164 792 468

14 325 700 25 952 000

(337 440) (395 555)

(1 052 958) (1158 855)

- (133084 510)

69 040 850 56 105 548
{13 808 170} (11 221 109)

55 232 680 44 884 439

11221109 127 930 927

2 587 061 16 374 692
- (133084 510)
13 808 170 11 221 109

Pledged as security

No receivables from non-exchanged transactions has been pledged as security for any financial liability.
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6. Receivables from non-exchange transactions (continued)

Receivables from non-exchange transactions

The Accounting Standard Board amended GRAP 1 applying the Probability Test on the initial Recognition of Revenue to include
revenue from non- exchange ransactions. This amendment is applicable to municipalities from 1 July 2013. GRAR 1 indicates
that entities should not consider the probability of non- payment on the initial recognition of revenue, This should be considered
as a subsequent event when assessing impairment.

Fine revenue of all traffic fines issued during the current year amounted to R 13 988 260 (2020; R 25 556 445).The oulstanding
fines were assessed for impairment based on the payment history of fines issued and measures put in place to recover the
outstanding amount,

The recovery of traffic fines is a protracted process due to the administrative and court procedures.

Credit quality of receivables from non-exchange transactions

Traffic fines are payable as determined by the fine. The credit period granted is considered to be consistent with the established
practices and legislation.

The Municipality's historical experience In callection of traffic fines fali within recorded aflowances, Due to these factors,
management believes that no additional risk beyond amounts provided for collection losses is inherent in the Municipality's
receivables from non-exchange transactions.

6.2) Reconciliation of consumer debtors - rates

Gross balance - rates 267 977 256 222 266 603
Less: Allowance for impalrment (119 272 791) (143 715 125)
Net halance 148 704 465 78 551 478

Consumer debtors - rates pledged as security
No portion of accounts recelvables was pledged as security for any financial liabilities.
Credit guality of consumer debtors - rates

The credit quality of consumer deblors - rates that are neither past nor impaired can be assessed by reference fo historical
information about counterparty default rates:

Consumer debtors - rates are payable within 30 days. This credit perlod is considered to be consistent with the terms used in the
public sector, through established practices and legislation. Discounting of consumer debtors on initial recognition is not deemed
necessary.

Concentrations of credit risk with respect to consumer debtars - rates are limited due to the Municipality's large number of
customers. the Municipality's historical experience in collection of consumer debtors falls within recorded allowances. Due to
these factors, management believes that no additional risk beyond amounts provided for collection losses is inherent in the
Municipality's consumer debtors.

Consumer debtors- rates impairment

As of 30 June 2021, debtors rates of R 119 272 791 (2020: R 143 715 125) were impaired and provided for.

An estimate is made for doubtful receivables based on the review of all cutstanding amounts at year end. Significant financial
difficulties of the debtor, probability that the debtor may enter bankruptey and default of delinguency in payments {more than 90
days overdue) are congidered indicators that the consumer Is Impaired.

The amounts best represent the maximum exposure to credit risk at the end of the reporting period without taking into account
any collateral held or other credit enhancements.

The impact of the COVID-12 pandemic on councils consumer debtors during the current financlal year was assessed and no
significant financlal loss needs to be provided for,Continucus assessments wilt be performed.
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6. Receivables from non-exchange transactions {continued}
Reconciliation of allowance for impairment of consumer debtors- rates

Opening balance 143715125 170 851 560
Allowance for impalrment (24 442 334) (26 936 435)
Total 119 272 791 143 715 125

7. Operating lease asset

Current assets 25 244 50 769

Municipality as lessor: Future minimum lease repayments receivable

Less than one year 26 672 44 819
Between one year and five years 34 591 59 217
More than five years 104 659 106 605

165 822 210 644

Operating leases relate to property owned by the Municipality with lease terms of between one (1) and twenty {20) years, with an
option to extend the lease. The lessee does not have an option to purchase the property at the expiry of the lease period. The
properties are mainiained by the tenant, at their cost.

The Municipality has operating lease agreements for the following classes of assets which are only significant collectively,
. Municipal buildings
. Vacant land

Operating lease income and expenditure have been recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease term. The effect of
accounting for operating leases on the straight-line basis had the above effect,

No restrictions have been imposed on the Municipality in terms of the operating lease agreements

8. Receivables from exchange transactions

Bursary loans 440 762 341 351
Consumer debtors - Electricity 284 378 806 224 601 925
Consumer debtors - Refuse 106 192 992 93 817 815
Trade debtors 368 580 865 349 070 087
759 593 525 667 B31 178
Less: provision for impairment of receivables (187 495 454) (207 910 015}
572 098 071 459 921 163

Reconciliation of provision for impairment of trade and other receivables

Opening Balance 207 910015 33 200 687
Provision for impairment- other debtors (4 962 015) 2161164
Amounts written off as uncollectible - (1314 007}
Provision for impairment- consumer debiors {15 452 546) 173 862 171

187 495 454 207 910 015
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8. Receivables from exchange transactions (continued)

The comparative figures of "receivables from exchange transactions and reconciliation of provision for impairment of trade and
other receivables" have been reclassified to conform to changes in presentation in the current year,

With the adoption of mSCOA the Municipality reclassified certain balances in order o comply with the instruclion notes issued.
The resuit of the reclassification is set out in Note 62 in the annual financial statements.
Impairment Allowance

The impairment allowance mainly represents the outstanding amounts due to the Municipality in respect of indigent
consumables, rental hawker stalls, private dumping, etc.

Credit quality of receivables from exchange transactions for trade and other debtors

Trade and other deblors are payable within 30 days. This credit period granted is considered to be consistent with the ferms
used in the public sector, through established practices and legislation. Discounting of frade and ofher receivable on initial
recognition is not deemed necessary.

Concentrations of credit risk with respect to other receivables are limited dus to the Municipality's large number of customers,
the Municipality's historlcal experlence in collection of trade receivables falls within recorded allowances. Due to these factors,
management believes that no additional risk beyond amounts provided for collection losses is inherent in the Municipality's trade
recelvables.

Consumer debtors disclosure

Gross balances

Consumer debtors - Rates 267 977 249 222 266 603
Consumer debtors - Electricity 284 378 BO6 224 601 925
Consumer debtors - Refuse 106 192 892 93 817 815

658 549 047 540 686 343

Less: Allowance for impairment

Consumer debtors - Rates (119272 791) (143 715 125)
Consumer debtors - Electricity (97 174 206} {100 832 287)
Consumer debtors - Refuse (61 235 418) (73 029 884)

(277 682415) (317 577 296)

Net balance

Consumer debtors - Rates 148 704 458 78 551478
Consumer debtors - Electricity 187 204 80O 123 769 638
Consumer debtors - Refuse 44 957 574 20 787 931

380 866 632 223108 047

Included in above is receivables from exchange transactions

Electricity 187 204 600 123 769 638
Refuse 44 957 574 20 787 9
232162174 144 557 569

Included in above is receivables from non-exchange transactions {taxes
and transfers)
Rates (Note 6) 148 704 465 78 5561 478

Net balance 380 866 639 223 109 047
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Consumer debtors disclosure (continued)
Rates
Current (0 -30 days) 14 632 475 10 679 256
31 - 60 days 8790 879 6 069 854
61 - 80 days 6 570 039 4 978 668
91 - 120 days 5 803 023 4 668 614
121 - 365 days 232 180 840 195 869 209
267 977 256 222 266 601
Electricity
Current (0 -30 days) 47 180 582 42 926 875
31 - 60 days 36 390 496 16681 414
61 - 80 days 10171785 9173735
91 - 120 days 8 063 516 6 069 764
121 - 365 days 182 572 428 148 750 037
284 378 807 224 601 925
Refuse
Current (0 -30 days) 3101473 3252 332
31- 60 days 2281628 2000 468
61 - 90 days 2124 108 2020877
91 - 120 days 1999 947 1878670
121 - 365 days 96 685 836 84 664 470
106 192 992 93 B17 815
Total 658 549 055 540 686 341
Summary of debtors by customer classification
Residential property
31 - BO days 27 300 940 20 089 964
61 - 80 days 15 163 942 9017 936
91-120 days 10 444 827 9 626 249
121 - 365 days 9472 207 6193 470
121 - days and older 290 138 784 257 505 955
352 510 700 302 433 574
Industrial! commercial
Current {0 -30 days} 56 858 230 42 039 044
31 - 60 days 11 306 403 6 869 551
61 - 90 days 7688778 5790 935
91 - 120 days 5708 760 4094 537
121 - days and older 156 477 733 130 614 027
238 039 904 189 408 094
National and provincial government
Current (0 -30 days) 1651777 1747 608
31 - 80 days 1246 111 994 789
61 - 90 days 896 512 898 872
91 - 120 days 787 384 549 052
121 - days and older 19 931 861 13 352 503
24 513 645 17 542 824
Other
Current (0-30 days) 2 656 159 3252354
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. Consumer debtors disclosure (continued)

31 - 60 days 1032 387 3434713
61 - 90 days 556 767 2138 592
91 - 120 days 552 613 2270504
121 - days and older 38 686 880 20 205 680

43 484 806 31 301 853
Total 658 549 055 540 686 345

Consumer debtors pledged as security
No portion of accounts receivables was pledged as security for any financial liabilities.
Credit quality of consumer debtors

The credit quality of consumer debtors that are neither past nor impaired can be assessed by reference to historical information
about counterparty default rates:

Consumer debtors are payable within 30 days. This credit period is considered to be consistent with the terms used in the public

sector, through established practices and legislation. Discounting of consumer debtors on initial recognition is not deemed
necessary.

Concentrations of credit risk with respect to consumer debtors are limited due to the Municipality's large number of customers.
The Municipality's historical experience in collection of consumer debtors falls within recorded allowances. Due to these factors,
management believes that no additional risk beyond amounts provided for collection losses is inherent in the Municipality's
consumer debfors.

Fair value of consumer debtors

The fair value of accounts recelvable approximates their carrying amounts.

Consumer debtors

No security is held for any of the accounts receivable,

Consumer debtors impaired

As of 30 June 2021, debtors including rates of R 277 682 416 (2020: R 317 577 295) were impaired and provided for.

An estimate Is made for doubtful receivables based on the review of all outstanding amounts at year end. Significant financial
difficulties of the debtor, probability that the debtor may enter bankruptcy and default of delinquency in payments {more than 90
days overdue) are considered indicators that the consumer is impaired. An amount of R- (20620: R 4 779 425) was wrltten off
during the year as uncollectable.

The amounts best represent the maximum exposure to credit risk at the end of the reporting period without taking into account
any colfateral held or other credit enhancements. .

The impact of the COVID-19 pandemic on councils consumer debtors during the current financial year was assessed and no
significant financial loss needs to be provided for.Continucus assessments will be performed.

Reconciliation of allowance for impairment of consumer debtors

Opening balance 173 862 171 368 974 237
Allowance for Impairment 16 460 954 (46 617 516)
Amounts written off as uncollectible - (4 779 425)
Total Consumer Debtors 190 323 125 317 577 206
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Consumer debtors disclosure (continued)

Less: Consumer debtors rates (note 6,2) “ (143 715 125}
190 323 125 173 862 171

9. Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents consist of:

Bank balances 104 790 238 70 215 767

No cash and cash equivalents, or portion thereof, was pledged as security for any financial liabilities.

The balance of unspent conditional grants as per Note19 can only be used for the purpose as set out in the different grant
conditions and is not avaitable to the Municipality to use in its normal business operations.

The entity had the following bank accounts

Account number ! description Bank statement balances Cash book balances
30 June 2021 30 June 2020 30 June 2019 30 June 2029 30 June 2020 30 June 2019
Consclidated cash book balance - - -~ 104 780 238 70215 767 42 033 011

ABSA Bank Cheque Account
number 126 085 0527 Primary
ABSA BANK - Cheque Account 42 288 682 13 862 265 7714245 - - -

number 404 896 4222

ABSA BANK - Cheque Account 307 787 2129 631 245 207 - - -
number 808 197 4990

ABSA BANK - Liquidity plus 1295 952 2152224 5141 834 - - -
account - 9312433930(MIG)

ABSA BANK - Liguidity plus 80 897 817 52 071 587 28 931725 - - -

account - 9312434237 (INEP)

ABSA BANK - Cheque account - - - - - -
number-405 144 4332

ABSA BANK -Call account . - - - - -
number- 936 047 4342

Total 104 790 238 70215767 42033011 104 790 238 70215767 42033 011

An amount of R 3 502 528 (2020: R 5 455 826) of the unspent conditional grants is Included In cash and cash equivalents.
Credit quality of Cash and cash equivalents

The credit quality of cash and cash equivalents that are nefther past due nor impaired can be assessed by reference to the
Municipality's going concern ratio's which include current ratio, debt ratio and net income to net sales ratio.
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10. Investment property

Investment property

Reconciliation of investment property - 2021

Investment property

Reconciliation of investment property - 2020

Investment property

Pledged as security

No investment properties was pledged as security for liabilities.

2021 2020
Cost/ Accumulated Carrying value Cost/ Accumulated Carrying value
Valuation depreciation Valuation depreciation
and and
accumulated accumuiated
impairment impairment
181 586 803 - 181586803 181586803 - 181586 803
Cpening Total
balance
181 586 803 181 586 803
Opening Disposals Fair value Total
balance adjustments
181 746 803 (110 00Q) (50 000) 181 586 803

The Municipality generated income from rental of investment properties of R 18 544 monthly on average (2020: R110 755).

A register containing the information required by section 63 of the Municipal Finance Management Act is available for inspection

at the registered office of the entity.
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2021 2020

10. Investment property (continued}

Details of valuation

The Greater Tzaneen Municipal valualions are based on the valuation roll which is reviewed every five years. The last valuation
roll came into effect on 1 July 2017, Supplementary valuations are issued and processed annually to take into account changes
in individual property value due to alterations and subdivisions

11. Property, plant and equipment

Community

Computer equipment
Construction work in progress
Furniture and office equipment
Infrastructure

Land

Leased assets

Other assets

Plant and machinery
Transport assets

Total

2021 2020

Cost/ Accumulated Carrying value Cost/ Accumulated Carrying value

Valuation depraciation Valuation depreciation

and and

accumulated accumulated

impairment impairment
210745051 (58864 411) 151880640 199637789 (51270487) 148 367 322
5785 375 (5193 410) 591 965 5 800 783 (4 720 156) 1080627
153 124 231 (1079741) 152044490 154780134 - 154 780 134
4 549 230 {3274 357) 1274873 4049789 (2 971 340} 1078 449
2395 037 557 (1 334 903 877) 1 060 133 680 2283 023 124 {1 244 671 301) 1 038 351 823
117 540 197 - 117540197 117 540197 - 117540197
20082872 (15940 266) 4149706 20181594 (11981 928) 8 199 666
B2776799 (25641073) 27135726 45929818 (23 960 348) 21 968 470
10 570 826 (6 952 997) 3617 829 9770532 (5 669 835) 4 100 697
46 132902 (37 406 016) 8726886 41165838 (35585 842) 5 579 996

3 016 352 140 (1 489 256 148) 1 527 095 992 2 B81 879 598 (1 380 831 217) 1 501 048 381
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11. (continued}

Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment - 2021

Community

Computer equipment
Construction work in progress
Furniture and office equipment
Infrastructure

fand

Leased assels

Other assets

Plant and machinery
Transport assets

Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment -2020

Community

Computer equipment
Construction work in progress
Furniture and office equipment
infrastructure

Land

Leased assets

COther assets

Plant and machinery
Transport assets

Opening Additions Write-Offs  Transfers from Depreciation  Impairment Total
balance WiP loss
Capitalised

148 367 322 11 107 263 - - (7 593 945) - 151880640
1080 627 - (3 082) - (485 580) - 591 965
154780 134 115 006 637 - {116 662 540) - (1 078 741) 152 044 480
1078 449 517 860 (2 943) - {318 493) - 1274 873
1038351823 112907199 (341 413) - (BB957T20) {18285209)1060 133 680
117 540 197 - - - - - 117 540 197
8 199 6686 - (86 401) - (3 983 559} - 4149 706
21989470 6 850 061 (14 - {1683 791} - 27135728
4100 697 820 456 (2 688) - {1300 636) - 3617 829
5 579 596 4 967 064 - - (1820 174) - 8 726 888
1501048381 252176 540 (416 541} (116 662 540) (106 143 898) (2 905 950) 1 527 095 992

Opening Additions Write-offs  Transfers from Depreciation  Impairment Total

balance WIP loss
Capitalised

155 541 522 80 000 - - {7 254 200) - 148367 322
1713 556 62 179 (127 380) - (567 728) - 1080627
53854 891 135807 336 (846 090) {34 036 003} - - 154780 134
1150 242 205 897 (7 929) - (269 731) - 1{78 449
1101316544 31037913 {2 453 168) - {82312793) (9236673)1038 351823
117 540 197 - - - - - 117 540197
7 564 033 4 536 742 (12 526) - (3 888 583) - 8 199 666
20214 590 3051924 (41 458) - (1 255 586) - 21969470
3741765 1439 964 (9 616) - (1071 416) - 4100 697
7415114 - (1) - (1835117} - 5 579 996
1470 052 424 176 221 955 {3498 168) (34 036 003) (98 455 154) (9 236 673) 1 501 048 381
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11,  (continued)

Included in the Infrastructure is an amount for Landfill site with the carrying amount of R 4 183 752 (2020: R 4 419 699).

The 2019/2020 comparative amount of R 1.499 billion on property, plant and equipment has been restated from R 1,456 billion (see note 62).
The assessment of impairment of assets resulted in an impairment of loss of R 2 805 950 (2020: R9 236 673) (see note 30 ).

Pledged as security

None of the property, plant and equipment has been pledged as security for any liabifities.

Reconciliation of Construction Work-in-Progress 2021

Opening Additions Write-Offs Transfers Impairment Total
balance from WIP Loss
Capitalised
Infrastructure: 29 450 383 30 306 315 - (26 477 039) {104 348) 33 175 311
Electricity
Infrastructure: 112 462 877 78 151 644 - (72 780 728) (975 383) 116 878 400
Roads
Infrastructure: 6490612 5417204 - (10 934 1862) - 973 654
Buildings
Community Assets 6 376 283 11314786 - (6490 612) - 1017127
154 780 135 115 006 639 - (116 662 541) (1079 741) 152 044 492
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1. (continued)

Reconciliation of Construction Work-in-Progress 2020

Opening Additions Write-Offs Transfers Impairment Total
balance from WIP Loss
Capitalised
Infrastructure: 4312 296 48 755 404 (231771) {23 385 546) - 29 450 383
Electricity
Infrastructure: 45 476 707 75273033 (614 319) (7 672 544) - 112 462 B77
Roads
Infrastructure: 1247 321 6 524 328 - (1281 035) - 6490612
Buildings
Community Assets 1 459 364 4918 899 - - - 6 376 263
Other Assets 1359 203 337675 - {1696 878) - -
53 854 891 135 807 337 {846 090) (34 036 003) - 154 780 135

Slow moving projects:

- Mulati Access Road: current year: R26 868 794.85 (2020; R20 591 924.74)

- Khodesa to Hani Stest: Current year: R10 923 764.26 (2020: R7 593 364.44)
(Projects were stopped due to termination of a contract leading to the project not finished on time, the construction of the
projects has since resumead.)

The Municipality did not write off projects in the current year (2020: R 846 080).
The R 1 079 741 impairment loss consist of the following projects:
- R71 Traffic circle streetlights (project discontinued, no construction was done)
- Mulati Access Road ( project was stopped due to termination of a contract, physical damage on work done)

A segister containing the information required by section 63 of the Municipal Finance Management Act is available for inspection
at the registered office of the municipality.

A detailed breakdown of property plant and equipment by asset class can be found in Annexure "B".
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12. Intangible assets

2021 2020
Cost/ Accumulated Carrying value Cost/ Accumulated Carrying value
Valuation amortisation Valuation amortisation
and and
accumulated accumulated
impairment impairment
Computer software, internally generated 3 962 382 (3 505 105) 457 277 3 962 382 (3217911} 744 471
Reconciliation of intangible assets - 2021
Opening Armortisation Total
balance
Computer software and license 744 471 (287 184) 457 277
Reconciliation of intangible assets - 2020
Opening Additions Amortisation Total
balance
Computer software and license 1135137 202 341 (593 007) 744 471

Pledged as security

No intangible assets have been pledged as security for any liability.

The municipality amortizes all its intangible assets on a straight-ine method and none of these are regarded as having an
indefinite useful life. The useful lives of intangible assets changed from one to two years on average from previous years.
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13. Heritage assets

Mayoral chain and Council gowns

Reconciliation of heritage assets 2021

Mayoral Chain and Council Gowns

Reconciliation of heritage assets 2020

Mayoral Chain and Council Gowns

Expenditure incurred to repair and maintain heritage assets

2021 2020
Cost/ Accumulated Carrying value Cost/ Accumulated Carrying value
Valuation impairment Valuation impairment
losses losses
200 958 200 958 200 958 - 200 958
Opening Total
balance
200 958 200 958
Cpening Additions Total
balance
195 000 5958 200 958

No cost was incurred to repair and maintain the heritage assets during the current financial year (2020 : R-).

60




Greater Tzaneen Municipality
Audited Annual Financial Staternents for the year ended 30 June 2021

Notes to the Audited Annual Financial Statements
Figures in Rand 2021 2020

14. Other financial liabilities

Designated at fair value
Loan stock - Standard Bank 30 000 000 30 000 000

At amortised cost

Accrued interest 721807 741 957
Annuity loan - DBSA 18 012 465 19620 942
Annuity loan - ABSA 13 311 111 15 182 347
Annuity loan - DBSA 36 166 655 39 271 550
Annuity loan - DBSA, 26 502 274 28476073
Annuity loan - DBSA 29 321 589 -

124 036 001 103 292 869
Total other financial liabilitles 154 036 001 133 292 B6Y

Non-current liabilities

Other 30 000 000 30 000 000
Annuity loans 110 985 369 03 991 222
140 985 369 123 991 222

Current liabilities
At amortised cost 13 050 632 9301 647

Annuity loan: DBSA

A loan of R41 000 000, with a current balance of R 26 502 274 (2020: R 28 476 073) was taken up to finance capital projects,
This loan bears interest at a fixed rate of 6.75% per annum and will be fully redesmed on 31 October 2030.

Annuity loan: ABSA

This loan of R25 140 000, with a current balance of R 13 311 111 (2020: R 15 182 347), was taken up on 15 August 2010, The
loan bears interest at a fixed rate of 10,62% and will be fully redeemed on 02 June 2026,

Loan stock: Standard Bank

A loan of R 30 000 000 has been taken up to finance capital projects. The loan bears interest at a fixed rate of 12.08% per
annum and will be redeemed on 16 Cctober 2025.

Annuity loan: DESA

A loan of R 40 000 000, with a current balance of R 36 166 655 (2020: R 39 271 550) has been taken up to finance capital
projects. The loan bears interest at a fixed rate of 11.3% per annum and will be fully redesmed on 30 September 2028,
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14. Other financial liabilities (continued)

Annuity loan: DBSA

A loan of R 20 D00 000, with a current balance of R 18 012 465 (2020: R 19 620 942) was taken up on 15 August 2019.The loan
bears interest at a fixed rate of 10.15% and wilf be fully redeemed on 30 September 2028.

Annuity loan: DBSA

A loan of R 30 000 000, with a current balance of R 29 321 589 was taken up on 21 December 2020. The loan bears interest on
a fixed rate of 10.27% and will be fully redeemed on 30 September 2028,

Undrawn borrowings

There were no undrawn horrowing facilities that were available for future activities or {o settle capital commilments at 30 June
2021.

None of the loans are secured by any fixed or movable assets of the Greater Tzaneen Municipality.
The Municipality did not defauit on any of the borrowings in respect of capital or Interest portions.
No terms attached to the financial liabilities were re-negotiated.

16. Finance lease obligation

Minimum lease payiments due

- within one year 3 099 558 5230 859
- in second to fifth year inclusive 1618 608 4718 166
4718 166 9 949 025
less: future finance charges (792 931) (2 136 823}
Present value of minimum lease payments 3925235 7 812 202

Present value of minimum lease payments due

- within one year 2 482 827 3 886 967
- in second to fifth year inclusive 1462 408 3025235
3925235 7812 202
Non-current liabilities 1462 408 3925235
Current liabilities 2 462 827 3886967
3925235 7812 202

The average lease term was 2 to 3 years. Interest rates are fixed at the contract date. Certain leases have fixed repayments and
others escalate. No arrangements have been entered into for contingent rent.

The carrying value of these leased assets are included under property, ptant and equipment.
The Municipality's obligations under finance leases are secured by the lessor's charge over the leased assets,
The Municipality did not default on any of the interest or capital repayments of the finance leases.

No terms and conditions of the finance leases were re-negotiated during the reporting period.
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16. Payables from exchange transactions

13th Cheque 8 074 035 7785435
Unknown direct deposits 8 384 244 16213755
Retention 24 398 838 19017 564
Payables 176 021 101 167 560 116
Staff leave 30322214 30 654 804

247 200 432 240 231 674

The transaction values for 13th Cheque of R 7 785 435 and payables of R 167 560 116 were previously stated as R 8 635 057
and R 165 134 142 respectively,

The changes in balances are due to the incorrect allocation of retention on a capital project that was finalised in the previous
financial year.

No change has been effected on the overall actual result of payables from exchange transactions for the previous financial year.
Trade payables

The average credit period on purchases is 30 days from receipt of the invoice, as determined by Section 99 of the MFMA. No
interest is charged for the first 30 days from the date of receipt of the invoice, Thereafter interest Is charged in accordance with
the credit policies of the various Individual creditors that the Municipality deals with,

Included under payables are payments received in advance which are non-interest bearing and normally settied on 30 day terms
Staff leave

Annual leave accrues to employees on a monthly basis subject to certain conditions. The provision is an estimate of the amount
due to staff as at the financial year-end, based on the value of statutory and non-statutory leave.

Retention
Reiention is non-interest bearing and settled in terms of the contract agreement.

Unknown direct deposits
The origin of the deposits could not be determined at year-end.

13th Cheque
A 13th cheque or annual bonus accrues to staff on an annual basis subject to certain conditions. The provision is the actual
amount due at the reporting date to staff and is paid after the completion of twelve months. The Municipality has an obligalion to
pay a service bonus in terms of it's conditions of employment.

The carrying value of payabies from exchange transactions approximate their fair values, The fair value is determined after
considering the standard terms and conditions of agreements entered into by the Municipality and the parties.

The Municipality did not default on any accounts payable in respect of capital or interest portions.

No terms attached to the accounts payable were re-negotiated

17. VAT payable

Net VAT payable 49 201 388 43 987 929

The financial statements have been prepared on the accrual basis whilst VAT is payable to SARS on the payment's basis.
Output VAT is only payable as and when the purchase consideration is received and input VAT can only be claimed as and
when payments are made. Interest on late payment is charged according to SARS policies.
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18. Consumer deposits

Electricity 28049781 27 396 999

Guarantees held in lieu of electricity deposits 3025550 3025550

No guarantees has been excepted after 1 July 2020 resulting in no change to Guarantees held in lieu of electricity deposits.
Consumer deposils are paid by customers on application for new electricity connections. The deposits are repaid when the
electricity connections are terminated, In cases where consumers default on their accounts, the Municipality can utilise the
deposit as payment for the outstanding accounts.

Business consumers are allowed to provide guarantees on application for new electricity connections instead of deposits. In
cases where consumers default on their accounts, the Municipality can request the guarantee amounts from the consumers'
bank as payment for the cutstanding accounts.

19. Unspent conditional grants and receipts

Unspent conditional grants and receipts comprises of:

Unspent conditional grants and receipts
Grants 3 502 528 5 455 826

Movement during the year

Balance at the beginning of the year 5 455 B286 5083 273
Additions during the year 121 942 405 133 927 611
Income recognition during the year (104 679 897} (114 489 B74}
Administration fee recognised during the year (4 680 950) (4 713 150}
VAT (14 534 855) (14 226 197}
Roll-over not applied for - {126 037}
3 502 529 5 455 826

The amount of unspent conditional grants and receipts is held in the operating bank account of the Municipality until utilized.
The fotal grants recognised in the statement of financiai performance are disclosed in note 25 .
20. Provisions

Reconciliation of provisions - 2021

Opening Additions Total
Balance
Provision for rehabilitation of landfill site 5 598 089 559 808 6 157 895
Proviston for performance bonuses 970 476 - 970 476
6 5638 565 559 806 7 128 371
Reconciliation of provisions - 2020
Opening Additions  Increase due (o Total
Balance re-
measurement
Provision for rehabilitation of landfill site 5089 171 508 918 - 5 598 089
Provision for performance bonuses 948 670 - 21 806 970 476
6 037 841 508 918 21 806 6 568 565
Non-current liabilitles 6 157 895 5 598 089
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20. Provisions {continued)
Current liabilities 970 476 970 476

7128 311 6 568 565

Provision for rehabilitation of landfill site

The provision for rehabllitation of landHill sites relates to the legal obligation to rehabilitate landfill sites used for waste disposal.
Provision s made in terms of the Municipality's licensing stipulations on the waste landfill site. The provision has been
determined on the basis of independent valuations by environmental consultants. It is calculated as the present value of the
future obligation, discounted at 10% over an average period of 20 years. The due date of this provision is June 2027,
Provision for performance bonuses

Performance bonuses accrue to Section 57 managers on an annual basis subject {o certain conditions, The provision is the
actual amount due at the reporting date to staff. Performance bonuses are paid one year in arrears as the assessment of eligibls
employees had not taken place at the end of the reporting period. Performance bonuses are measured at face value as it is
expected that these would be paid shortly after the financial year end once performance evaluations have been completed,
21. Employee henefit obligations

Defined benefit plan

The total amount recognised in the statement of financial position is as

foliows;

Carrying value

Defined benefit obligation - long service award 21 800 000 17 202 000
Defined benefit obligation - post- retirement medical aid plan 70 019 000 58 926 000
91 919 000 76 128 000

Non-current employee benefit obligations

Long service awards 18 619 000 14 661 000
Post retirement medical aid 87 394 000 56 510 000
86 013 000 71171 000

Current employee benefit obligations

Long service awards 3281000 2 541 000
Post refirement medical aid 2625000 2416 000
5906 000 4 957 000

Post retirement medical aid plan

€5



Greater Tzaneen Municipality
Audited Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2021

Notes to the Audited Annual Financial Statements
Figures in Rand 2021 2020

21. Employee benefit obligations (continued)

The Municipality provides post-retirement benefits by subsidising the medical ald coniributions of certain retired staff. According
to the rutes of the medical aid funds with which the Municipality is associated, a member on retirement is entitled to remain a
continued member of such medical aid fund, and the Municipality will continue to subsidise medical contributions in accordance
with the provisions of the employee’s employment contract and the Municipality's decislon on protected rights.

The post-employment health care benefits valualion considers all current employees, retired employees and their dependents
who participate in the health care arrangements and are entitled to a post-employment medical scheme subsidy. The post-
employment health care liability is not a funded arrangement, i.e. no separate assets have been set aside to meet this liability.
The effective date of the valuation which was performed by ARCH Actuarial Consulting is 30 June 2021.

Plan assets
Currently, no long-term assets are set aside off - balance sheet in respect of the employer's post-employment health care
liability.

The Projected Unit Credit Method was used to value the liabiliies and the liabllity for eligible employees is accrued over their
expected working lifetime.

Membership of health care arrangements entitled to a post-employment medical aid subsidy at reporfing date was:

In-service members 397 416
In-service non-members 231 232
Continuation members b9 49

687 691

The amounts recognised in the statement of financlial position are as follows:

Carrying value
Present value of the defined benefit obligation - wholly unfunded 70 319 000 58 926 000

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows:

Opening balance 58 926 000 65 120 960
Benefits paid (2 416 000} {2 200 887)
Net expense recognised in the statement of financial performance 13 509 000 {3994 073)

70 019 000 58 926 060

Net expense recognised in the statement of financial performance

Current cost 2488 000 2979 494
Interest cost 6 080 000 6 071 507
Actuarial (gains) losses 4 940 000 (13 045 074)

13 509 000 {3 994 073)

Calculation of actuarial gains and losses

Actuarial (gains) losses 4 940 000 13045074

Key assumptions used
Assumptions used at the reporting date:

Discount rates used 10,18 % 10,53 %
Health care cost inflation rate 6,83 % 6,57 %
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21. Employee benefit obligations (continued)

et discount rate 3.14 % 372 %
Average retirement rate 62 62
Best estimate of contribution expected to be paid

Expected benefit to be paid 217 000 2416 000

Other assumptions
Sensitivity analysis
The sensitivity analysis is based on the total liabllity which includes water and sewerage.

Assurned healthcare cost trends rates have a significant effect on the amounts recognised in surplus or deficit. The effect of a
one percentage movement in the assumed rate of health care cost inflation is as follows:

Increase

Effect of aggregate service cost and interest cost 10 806 000 i1 697 900
Effect on the defined benefit cbligation 87 626 000 72 756 000
Decrease

Effect of aggregate service cost and interest cost 7 904 000 8 277 400
Effect on the defined benefit obligation 65 949 000 66 501 000

Historical anaiysis

Amounts for the current and previous four years are as follows:

2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
R R R R R
Defined benefit obligation 70019000 580926000 65120960 70844367 72553728
Surplus (deficit) (70019000} (58 926 000) (65 120 960} (70 844 367) (72 553 728)

Long service awards
L.ong service awards relates to the legal obligation to provide for long service leave awards. An actuarial valuation has been

performed on all 628 {2020: 655) employees that are entitled to long service leave awards on 30 June 2021, The long service
leave awards liability is not a funded arrangement, i.e. no separate assets have been set aside to meet this liability.

The amounts recognised in the statement of financial position are as follows:

Carrying value
Present value of the defined benefit obligation-wholly unfunded 21 900 00Q 17 202 000

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows:

Opening balance 17 202 €00 163563718
Benefits paid (2 541 600) (2 084 693)
Net expense recognised in the statement of financial performance 2526 000 2932875
Policy change (Pro-Rata Long service awards) 4713 000 -

21 900 000 17 202 000

Net expense recognised in the statement of financial performance

Current service cost 1513 000 1568733
Interest cost 1 145 000 1248 470
Actuarial (gains) losses {132 00O} M7 772

2 526 000 2932975
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21. Employee benefit obligations (continued)
Caltculation of actuarial gains and losses

Actuarial {gains} [osses- obligation (132 000} 17772

Key assumptions used

Assumptions used at the reporting date:

Discount rates used 9,13 % 7,18 %
Expected increase in salaries 577 % 3,86 %
Net discount rate 3,18 % 3,20 %
Average retirement rate 62 62

Other assumpfions
Sensitivity analysis
The sensitivity analysis is based on the total liability which includes water and sewerage.

Assumed healthcare cost frends rates have a significant effect on the amounts recognised in surpius or deflcit, A one
percentage point change In assumed healthcare cost frends rates would have the following effects:

Increase

Effect of aggregate service cost and interest cost 3116000 3 310 600
Effect on the defined contribution obligation 25542 000 19 779 000
Decrease

Effect of aggregate service cost and interest cost 2715000 2874700
Effect on the defined benefit obligation 22 739 000 17 632 000

Historical analysis

Amounts for the current and previous four years are as follows:

2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
R R R R R
Defined benefit obligation 21900000 17202000 16353718 12977156 11669376
Surplus (deficit) (21900 000) (17 202000) (16353 718) (12977 156) (11669 376)

Defined contribution plan
The entity is under no obligation to cover any unfunded benefits.

The amount recognised as an expense for defined contribution plans is 58 225616 55 868 524
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21. Employee benefit obligations (continued)

The only obligation of the Municipality with respact to the retirement benefit plans is to make the specified contributions, Where
counclllors/ employees leave plans prior to full vesting of the contributions, the contributions payable by the Municipality are
reduced by the amount of forfeited contributions.

The total expense recognised in the statement of financial performance of R 58.2 million represents contributions payable to
these ptans by the Municipality at rates specified in the rules of the plans.

Included In defined contribution plan of R 58 225 616 above, is the following plans which are Multi-Employer Funds and are
Defined Benefit Plans, but due to the fact that sufficient information is not available to enable the municipality to account for the
ptans as defined benefit plans, the municipality accounted for these plans as defined contribution plans.

The amounts disclosed above includes an amount of R 852 485 (2020: R 667 515) which represents the contributions for
coungcitlors,

Municipal Employees Pension Fund

The contribution rate paid by the members of 7.5% and council of 22% or 18% are sufficient to fund the benefils accruing from
the fund in future.

2632253 2542 631

Municipal Employees Gratuity Fund

The contribution paid by the members of 7.5% or 9% and council 22% or 18% is sufficient to fund the benefits accruing from the
fund in future.

At the valuation date of 30 June 2021 the gratuity fund was funded and revealed that the fund was certified to be in a sound
financial position.

7807 293 7 865 896

IMATU Retirement Fund

The above-mentioned fund is a defined contribution fund and according to regulation 2 of the Pension Fund of 1956 exempt
from the provisions of sections 9A and 16 of the Act.

46 933 585 44 802 482

Municipal Councillors Pension Fund

The municipal councillors' pension fund operates as a defined contribution scheme. The contribution rate paid by the members
is 28.75% and no contribution is made by Council.

22. Service charges

Sale of electricity 461 584 737 520 237 868
Solid waste 37 967 161 32 961 754
499 551 898 553 199 622
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22, Service charges (continued)

The amounts disclosed above for sale of elactricity, indigent charges and refuse removal are In respect of services rendered and
are billed to the consumers on a monthly basis according to council's approved tariffs.

The comparative figures of "service charges" has been reclassified to canform to changes in presentation in the current year.
With the adoption of mSCOA the Municipality reclassifled certain balances in order to comply with the instruction notes issued.
The result of the reclassification is set out in Note 62 In the Annual Financial Statements,

Greater Tzaneen Municipality acts as service provider for the Mopani District Municipality with regard to the water and sewer
services,

Mopani District Municipality is the water and sewer service authority and those services reflect in their records.

23. Other income

Grant admin fees 4 680 950 4713 150
Cemetary and burial fees 1367 237 216 572
Motor vehicle and drivers licence 5903 380 5 424 663
Debt impairment reversal 44 856 894 51 053 406
Indigent charges 4 353 395 1327 746
Other income 1343 460 1883 147
Inspection Fees Facilities 740 364 18 946

63 245 680 64 637 630

The amounts disclosed above as other income are In respect of services rendered, other than disclosed In note 22 , which are
billed to or paid for by the users of services as required according to councils approved tariffs.

The comparative figure of "other income™ has been reclassified to conform o changes in presentation in the current year.

With the adoption of mSCOA the Municipality reciassified certain balances in order to comply with the instruction notes issued.

The result of the reclassification is set out in Mote 62 in the Annual Financial Statements.

24. Property rates

Rates levied
Residential 62 372 349 54 147 427
Commercial 43625124 40 647 045
State 12 066 435 9 768 851
Farms 11 303 203 9813502
Other 258 516 292134
129 625 627 114 668 959
Valuations
R'O00 R'000
Residential 7 127 624 7 049603
Commercial 3050126 3098 140
State 878 910 739186
Munigipal 281 318 386 999
Agriculiure 4870516 4861419
Other 612 370 152 260
16 820 934 16 287 607
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24. Property rates (continued)

Valuations on land and buildings are performed every five years. The last general valuation came into effect on 1 July 2017.
Intesim valuations are processed on an monthly basis to take into acoount changes in individual property values due to
alterations and subdivisions.The same rate is applied on differant categories of property and improvement valuations to
determine assessment rates. Rates are levied on a monthly basis and are payable by the 25th of each month, owners are
allowed to pay the annual instalment by 30 September each year. Rebates are granted on various categories of properties,
Interest at prime rate plus 1% is levied on outstanding rates and the prime rate of ABSA applies.

25, Government grants and subsidies

Cleanest town - 55 870
COVID - 19 - 298 000
EPWP 7 134 000 5749 000
Equitable share 506 276 00C 383 693 036
Finance Management Grant 2 000 000 2 145 000
IPSA Grant - 10 000 000
Municipal Infrastructure Grant 83 051 321 77 869 317
National - Electrification Grant 12 299 855 16 971 997
Transfers and Subsidies Operational Monetary Alloc SETA 194 726 1 400 490
VAT on Grants 14 534 854 14 226 197

625 490 756 512 408 907

The Municipality does not foresee a significant change in the level of grant funding. Unconditional grants are used to subsidise
the provision of basic services. Conditional grants are for operating and capital expendfture. Other than the amount unspent, the
conditions of the grants have been met,

Unconditional Grants
Equitable share

Current year aflocation 506 276 000 383 693 036
Transfer to revenue (506 276 000) {383 693 036)

No conditions to be met - transferred fo liabilities M -

The equitable share is the unconditional share of the revenue raised nationally and is being allocated in terms of section 214 of
the constitution (Act 108 of 1996) to the Municipality by the National Treasury.

in terms of the Constitution, this grant is used to subsidise the provision of basic services to indigent community members.

Conditional Grants

SETA

Balance unspent at beginning of year 2121 -

Current-year receipts 838 408 1402 611

Cenditions met - transferred to revenue {194 726} (1400 490)
Conditions still to be met - transferred to liabilities 645 803 2121

Conditions still to be met - remain liabilities (see note 19).

The grant is used to pay for training courses. It supplements / augments the funds on the training vote. It is used to fund the
primary and secondary skills developrent facilitators when they are out of the office on skills development related matters.
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25. Government grants and subsidies (centinued)

Municipal infrastructure Grant

Balance unspent at beginning of year 135 126 036
Current-year receipts 101 970 000 94 263 000
Conditions met - transferred (o revenue (83 051 321) (77 869 317)
VAT on Grant (Own Revenue) (12 689 878) (11 680 398)
Administration Fee {4 680 950} (4 713 150)
Roll over not applied for (135} (126 036)
Conditions still to be met - transferred to liabilities 1 547 853 135

Conditions still o be met - remain liabilities (see note 19).

Municipal Infrastructure Grant funds are used to upgrade and build new infrastructure up lo a baslc level of service as well as to
rehabilitate existing infrastructure for the poorest of the poor.

Integrated National Electrification Programme Grant (INEP)

Balance unspent at beginning of year 5 432 664 4 950 460
Current-year receipts 10 000 000 20 000 000
Conditions met - transferred to revenue {12 299 855) (16 971 997)
VAT on granis (1844 978) {2 545 799)
Conditions still to he met - transferred to liabllities 1 287 831 5432 664

Conditions still to be met - remain liabilities (see note 19).
The grant was used for electrification of villages.

Cleanest Town

Balance unspent at beginning of year 20 904 6774
Current-year receipts - 70 000
Conditions met - transferred to revenue - (55 870)
Conditions still to be met - transferred to liabilities 20 904 20 904

Conditions still fo be mel - remain liabilities (see note 19).

Funds received through the greenest town competition were used for the construction of a wall for grease and oil trays and
traps.

Finance Management Grant

Current-year receipis 2 000 000 2 145000
Conditions met - transferred to revenue (2 000 000} {2 145 000)

No conditions to be met - transferred to liabilities B -

The Finance Management Grant is pald by National Treasury to municipalities to help implement the finance reforms required by
the Municipal Finance Management Act (MFMA}, 2003. The Finance Management Grant also pays for the cost of the Financial
Management Internship Programme (e.g. Salary cost of the financial management interns}.

COVID - 19 Grant

Current-year receipts - 298 000
Conditions met - fransferred to revenue - {298 000)

No condition to be met - transferred to liabilities - -
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25, Government grants and subsidies (continued)

The municipal disaster relief grant was used to assist in the response to COVID-19 pandemic.

EPWP Grant
Current-year receipts 7134 000 5749 000
Conditions met - transferred to revenue (7 134 000) (5 749 000}

No condition to be met - transferred to Habilities M -

The expanded public works programme grant was used to increase labour employment through operational programmes that
increase job creation and skills development.

The grant is mainly used for rural waste removal.

HPSA Grant
Current-year receipts - 10 000 000
Condilions met - fransferred to revenue - (10 000 000)

No condition to be met - transferred to liabilities - -

This grant was used to replace transformers at Tzaneen Main Substation.
Changes in [evel of government grants

Based on the allocations set out in the Division of Revenue Act, no significant changes in the level of government grant funding
are expecled over the forthcoming three financial years,

26. Public confributions and donations

Public confributions and donations 13 508 391 80 000

2020/2021

Greater Tzaneen Municipality received a donation of efectricity infrastructure as well as roads and storm water infrastructure
from a property developer on the 09th of April 2021. The infrastructure assets were accounted for at cost price of R 13 508 391
provided by the consulting engineer,

2019/2020

Greater Tzaneen Municipality received a donation of Palisade Fence at Minitzani Park ERF 425 from the community of Arbor
Park Fundraising Project on the 12 December 2019. The palisade fence was accounted for, at cost price of R80 000 provided by

the Fundraiser.

27. Revenue

Service charges 499 551 898 653 189 622
Rental of facilities and equipment 222 530 1152 233
Agency services 10 763 364 9118 576
Licences and permits 210997 1231992
Other income - (rollup} 63 245 680 64 637 630
Interest revenue 29 667 610 27 911 932
Property rates 129 625 627 114 668 959
Government grants & subsidies 625 490 756 512 408 907
Public contributions and donations 13 508 391 80 000
Fines, penalties and forfeits 25083 224 37 082 842

1397 350 077

1321492 693
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27. Revenue {continued)
The amount included In revenue arising from exchanges of goods or
services are as follows:

Service charges 486 551 898 553 189622
Rental of facilities and equipment 222 530 1152 233
Agency services 10 763 364 9 118 576
Licences and permits 210997 1231992
Cther income - {roflup} 63 245 680 64 637 630
Interest revenue 209 667 610 27 911932

603 662 079 657 251 885

The amount included in revenue arising from non-exchange fransactions

is as follows:

Taxation revenue

Property rates 129 625 627 114 668 959
Transfer revenue

Government grants & subsidles 625 490 756 512 408 907
Public contributions and donations 13 508 391 80 000
Fines, penalties and forfeits 25083 224 37 082842

793 687 998 664 240 708

28, Employee related costs

Basic 209 180 950 199 973 836
Bonus 16 376 388 15 702 058
Medical aid - company confributions 32548 119 8 166 004
UIF 1020 940 1021 467
Leave pay provision charge 14 542 115 8 955 489
Travel allowance 11181634 12 308 859
Overtime payments 28 464 552 27 607 856
Housing allowances 1570652 1 686 009
Standby allowance Q88 042 1156 286
Social contributions 36 268 583 34 536 642

352 143 975 311 114 596

The comparative figure of "employee refated cosls" has been reclassified to conform to changes in presentation in the current
year.

With lhe adoption of mSCOA the Municipality reclassified certain balances in order to comply with the instruction notes issued.
The result of the reclassification is set out in Note 62 in the Annual Financial Statements.

Municipal Manager and Directors

No salary increase has been approved for the Municipal Manager and Diractors during the financial period under review. The
changes in some balances are due to restructuring of salary packages.

Remuneration of Municipal Manager

Annual Remuneration 1469 161 1469 161
Car Allowance 60 000 60 000
Contributions to UIF, Medical and Pension Funds 241 813 241785
Telephone allowance 24 000 24 000

1794 974 1794 946

The Municipal Manager was appointed on 1 April 2018, and resigned with effect from 2G August 2021,
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28. Employee related costs (continued)

Remuneration of Chief Finance Officer

Annual Remuneration 1001 460 996 448
Car Allowance 314 470 3298 364
Confributions to UIF, Medical and Pension Funds 262 623 234 873
Telephone allowance 24 000 24 000

1602 553 1 584 685

The Chief Finance Officer was appeinted on 1 May 2018.

Director Community Services

Annual Remuneration 1039 500 1038500
Car Allowance 72 000 72 000
Contributions te UIF, Medical and Pension Funds 186 6563 185625
Telephone Allowance 24 000 24 000

1321153 1321125

The Director Community Services was appointed on 1 April 2018.

Director Engineering Services

Annual Remuneration 1 064 000 903 387
Car Allowance 324 000 324 009
Contributions to UIF, Medical and Pension Funds 57 715 285 221
Telephone allowance 24 000 24 000

1469 715 1536 608

The Direclor Civil Engineering was appointed on 1 June 2018.

Director Planning and Economic Development

Annual Remuneration 994 340 1016 221
Car Allowance 96 000 96 000
Contributions to UIF, Medical and Pension Funds 215 629 184 603
Telephone allowance 24000 24 900

1329 969 1320 824

The Director Planning and Economic Development was appointed on 1 March 2018,

Director Corporate Services

Annual Remuneration 959 622 982 904
Car Allowance 180 000 171000
Contributions to UIF, Medical and Pension Funds 145 813 148 785
Telephone allowance 24 000 24 000

1309 435 1326 689

The Director Corporate Services was appointed with effect from 1 June 2017.
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28. Employee related costs {continued)

Director Electrical Engineering

Annual Remuneration 1023730 1076 506
Car Allowance 180 000 168 241
Contributions to UIF, Medical and Pension Funds 409 567 345 317
Telephone allowance 24 000 24 000

1637 297 1614 064

The Director Elecrical Engineering was appointed with effect from 1 April 2017.

29. Remuneration of councillors

Councillor

Mayor 934 650 938 020
Other councillor's allowances 18 125 583 18 904 610
Executive Committee allowance 2073940 2084 758
Speaker Chief Whip and full-time councillors' allowances 5902 371 4915118

27 036 544 26 842 506

The comparative figures of "remuneration of councillors® has been reclassified te conform to changes in presentation in the
current year.

With the adoption of mSCOA the Munictpality reclassified certain balances in order to comply with the instruction notes issued.
The result of the reclassification is set out in note 62 in the annual financial statements.

Councillors

No salary increase has been approved for the Coungillors during the financial period under review,

Remuneration for the mayor, speaker and chief whip are disclosed as

follows:

Mayor

Annual remuneration 670 388 670 388

Car allowance 223 462 223 462

Celiphone allowance 40 BOO 40 800
934 650 934 650

Speaker

Annual remuneration 536 3092 536 300

Car allowance 178 769 178 769

Cellphone allowance 40 BOO 40 800
755 878 755 878

Chief Whip

Annual remunetation 502 790 502 790

Car allowance 167 597 167 597

Cellphone allowance 40 B0O 40 800
711 187 711 187
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29, Remuneration of councillors (continued)
In-kind benefits

The Mayor, Speaker, Chief Whip and five Counciliors are full-time employees. Each is provided with an office at the cost of the
Council.

The Mayor and Speaker have use of Council owned vehicles for official duties,
The Mayor has one full-time secretary, one manager and a gender, vouth and disability programme.
Remuneration of councillors

The allowances and benefits of counciflors of the Municipality, whether financial or in-kind, are within the upper limits of the
framework envisaged in section 219 of the Constitution. Refer to Government Gazette nr 41335.

Councillors
2021
Emoluments Travel Celiphone- Total
Allowance

MR MG Mangena { Mayor } 870 387 223 463 40 800 934 650
MS DJ Mmetle { Speaker ) 536 309 178 769 40 800 755 878
MR CS Nhemeo { Chief Whip ) . 502790 167 597 40 800 711187
MS MM Letsoalo 280 491 93 497 40 800 414 788
MS ML Hiangwane 280 491 93 497 40 800 414 788
MR D Malemeta < 280491 93 497 40 800 414 788
MR M Prinsloo 280 491 93 497 40 800 414788
MS MS Tiba 280 491 93 497 40 800 414788
MR DG Mkhabela 502 790 167 597 40 800 711187
MR GE Ntimbane 502790 167 597 40 800 711187
MR NJ Mbhalati 802790 167 597 40 800 711187
MR C Machimana 502 790 167 597 40 800 711187
MR TT Maunatlala 502 790 167 597 40 800 711 187
MISS 88 MJ Mokgoloboto 212 163 70717 40 800 323670
MS SP Masstla 212153 70717 40 B0OD 323670
MS MS Raganya 272 263 90 754 40 800 403 817
MR TL Matita 212 163 70717 40 800 323670
MS MF Mbhalati 272 263 90 754 40 800 403 817
MS MM Mohale 212 153 70717 40 800 323670
MR NR Rikhots0 212153 70717 40 800 323670
MS NH Zandamela i 212 153 70717 40 800 323670
MR OK Banyini 212 163 70717 40 800 323670
MR SC Makwala 272 263 90 754 40 800 403 817
MR NA Maslla 272 263 90 754 40 800 403 817
MS ML Pudikabekwa 272 263 90 754 40 800 403 817
MR PJ Ramodipa 272 263 90 754 40 800 403 817
MR MA Makwela 212 153 70717 40 800 323670
MS RE Pohl 212153 70717 40 800 323670
MR N Nkhwashu 212 153 70717 40 800 323 670
MR MM Makwala 272 263 90 754 40 800 403 817
MR MC Nkwashu 272 263 90 754 40 800 403 817
MR TH Mushwana 212 153 70717 40 800 323670
MS MS Balolyi 212 153 70717 40 800 323 670
MR J Banyini 212 153 70717 40 800 323670
MR PW Cronje 212 153 70717 40 800 323 670
MS DF Kgafane 212 153 70717 40 800 323 670
MS MR Kgatla 212153 70717 40 800 323670
MR LK Lepulan 212153 70717 40 800 323670
MR MJ Maake 212 153 70717 40 800 323 670
MR MH Mafokwane 212153 70717 40 800 323670
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(continued)

MS JT Makhubele 212 153 70717 40 800 323670
MR GP Makhubele 272 263 90 754 40 800 403 817
MR GM Malafji 272 263 90 754 40 800 403 817
MR TE Malatji : 212 153 70717 40 800 323670
MS SM Mapitja 212 153 70717 40 800 323 670
MS NP Mathebula 212 153 70717 40 800 323 670
MS MM Thickwa 212 153 70717 40 800 323670
MR NG Maunatlata 212 1583 70747 40 800 323670
MR TJ MC Clintock 212183 70717 40 800 323670
MR MF Mochabela 212 153 70717 40 800 323670
MS FT Mohlaba 212 153 70717 40 800 323 670
MR SN Mohonone 212 163 70717 40 800 323 670
MS MC Morwatshehla 212153 0717 40 800 323670
MS TR Mpenyana 212 153 70717 40 800 323670
MR NG Mukansi 212 153 70717 40 800 323670
MR JL Ngobeni 212153 70717 40 800 323 670
MR SE Ngobeni 212 153 70717 40 800 323 670
MS ET Ngobeni 212 183 0717 40 800 323670
MR ME Phakula 212 153 70717 40 800 323670
MS SB Ramoshaba 212 153 70717 40 800 323670
MS MO Raolane 212 163 70717 40 800 323670
MS Kl Rapatsa 212 153 70717 40 800 323 670
MR RS Rapitsi 212 153 70717 40 800 323 670
MS JM Raiopola 212 153 70717 40 800 323 670
MS MM Sekhwela 212 153 70717 40 800 323670
MS CT Shisinga 212 153 70717 40 800 323670
MR © Sithole 212 153 70717 40 800 323670
MR PP Machethe 267 254 89 085 40 800 397 139
MR MC Ramathwala 215078 71721 41 367 328 166

18 165 585 6 055193 2815767 27 036 545

2020
Emoluments Travel Cellphone- Total
Allowance

MR MG Mangena ( Mayor ) 670 387 223 483 40 800 934 650
MS DJ Mmetle { Speaker } 536 309 178 769 40 800 755 878
MR CS Nhemo ( Chief Whip } 502 790 167 597 40 800 711187
MS MM Letsocalo 280 491 93 497 40 800 414 788
M3 ML Hiangwane 280 491 93 497 40 800 414 788
MR D Malemela 280 491 93 497 40 800 414 788
MR M Prinsloo 280 491 93 497 40 800 414 788
MS MS Tiba 280 491 93 497 40 800 414788
MR DG Mkhabela 502 790 167 597 40 800 711 187
MR GE Ntimbane 502 790 167 597 40 800 711187
MR NJ Mbhalati 502 790 167 597 40 800 711187
MR C Machimana 502 790 167 697 40 800 711 187
MR TT Maunatlala 502 790 167 597 40 800 711 187
MISS S5 MJ Mokgoloboto 212453 70717 40 800 323670
MS SP Masetla 212 153 70717 40 800 323670
MS MS Raganya 35 359 11786 6 800 53 945
MS MS Raganya 226 693 73 959 34 000 334 652
MR TL Matita 212183 70717 40 800 323670
MS MF Mbhalati 272 263 90 754 40 800 403 817
MS MM Mohale 212 153 70717 40 800 323670
MR NR Rikhots0 212 153 70717 40 800 323870
MS NH Zandamela 212 153 70717 40 800 323 670
MR OK Banyini 212 153 70717 40 800 323 670
MR SC Makwala 272 263 90 754 40 800 403 817
MR NA Masila 272 263 90 754 40 800 403 817
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. (continued)
MS ML Pudikabekwa 272 2683 90 754 40 800 403 817

MR PJ Ramodipa 272 262 90 754 40 800 403 818
MR MA Makwela 212 153 70717 40 800 323 670
MS RE Pohl 212 153 70717 40 800 323 670
MR N Nkhwashu 212 153 70717 40 800 323 670
MR NM Mahasha 162 529 54 176 25 330 242 035
MR MM Makwala 272 263 90 754 40 800 403 817
MR MC Nkwashu 268 263 00 754 40 800 399 817
MR TH Mushwana 212 153 70717 40 800 323670
MS MS Balolyi 212 163 70717 40 800 323 670
MR J Banyini 212 153 70717 40 800 323 670
MR PW Cronje 212 153 70717 40 800 323 670
MS DF Kgafane 212153 077 40 800 323 670
MS MR Kgatla 212 153 077 40 800 323670
MR LK Lepulan 212 153 70717 40 800 323 670
MR MJ Maake 212 153 70717 40 800 323670
MR MH Mafokwane 212 153 70717 40 800 323670
MS JT Makhubele 212 153 70717 40 800 323 670
MR GP Makhubele 35 339 11 808 B 8G0 53 947
MR GP Makhubele 226 693 73 959 34 000 334 652
MR GM Malatji 272 263 90 754 40 800 403 817
MR TE Malatji 212153 70 717 40 800 323 670
MS SM Mapitja 212153 70717 40 800 323 670
MS NP Mathebula 212153 70 717 40 800 323 670
MS MM Thickwa 212 153 70717 40 800 323670
MR NG Maunatlala 212153 70717 40 800 323670
MR TJ MC Clintock 212153 70717 40 800 323670
MR MF Mochabela 212 153 70 717 40 800 3238670
MS FT Mohlaba 212 1563 70 717 40 800 323670
MR SN Mohonone 212 1583 w077 40 800 323670
MS MC Morwatshehla 212153 70717 40 800 323670
MS TR Mpenyana 212 153 70717 . 40 800 323 670
MR NG Mukansi 212 153 70717 40 800 323670
MR JL Ngobeni 212 153 70717 40 800 323670
MR SE Ngebeni 212 153 70717 40 800 323670
MS ET Ngobeni 212153 70717 40 800 323670
MR ME Phakula 212153 70 717 40 800 323670
MS SB Ramoshaba 212153 70 717 40 800 323670
MS MO Raolane 212153 70717 40 800 323 670
MS Kl Rapatsa 212 153 70 717 40 800 323870
MR RS Rapitsi 212 153 70 717 40 800 323 670
MS JM Ratopola 212 183 70717 40 800 323 670
MS MM Sekhwela 212153 70717 40 800 323670
MS CT Shisinga 212 183 70717 40 800 323670
MR O Sithole 212 153 70717 40 800 323670
MR PP Machethe 212 153 70717 40 800 323 670

18 033 492 6 009 284 2799730 26 842 506

30. Impairment of assets

impairments
Property , pfant and equipment 2 905 950 9 236 673
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30. Impalrment of assets (continued)
Impairment loss

in terms of GRAP21,"Impairment of non-cash generated assets”, Municipalities are required to assess the impairment of its
assets to comply with GRAP standards and assets management policy. Greater Tzaneen Municipatity has assessed the
impairment of ifs assets for the financial year ended 30 June 2021. The assessment of impairment of assets has resulted in an
impalrment loss of R 2 905 850 as a result significant loss in carrying amount of electricity infrastructure of R 1 826 209 due to
physical damage and work-in-progress of R 1 079 741 due to R71 Traffic circle project discontinuation and physical damage of
Mulati Access Road project.

31. Finance costs

Finance |eases 1760616 1335411
Service concession arrangements: Landfill site 55 981 50 892
Other interest paid 18 145 562 13 520 506

19 962 159 14 906 802

32. Inventory consumed

Consumables 10 463 614 12 482 520
Material and supplies 4 490 626 850 219
14 954 240 13332739

The comparative figure of "inventory consumed" previously disclosed as "generalexpenses” has been reclassified to conform to
changes in presentation in the current year,

With the adoption of mSCOA the Municipalily reclassified certain balances in order to comply with the instruction notes issued.
The result of the reclassification is set out in Note 82 in the Annual Financial Statements.
33. Bulk purchases

Electricity - Eskom 407 786 362 389694 217

Bulk purchases are the cost of electricity not generated by the Municipality. The electricity which is purchased from Eskom is
sold 1o consumers. .

Water purchases are not included in bulk purchases as the Municipality acts as resource provider for Mopani District
Municipality with regards to this service. Mopani District Municipality is the water and sewer service authority and those services
reflect in their records.

34. Contracted services

Valuation rofl 81 462 248 033
Cleaning Services 15094 085 14 817 023
EPWP 4 307 592 3483 158
Information techonology 2 690 907 2 227 052
Meter reading . 901 450 200916
Refuse Removal 15 828 453 14 013 397
Repairs and maintenance 34 889 720 24 046 357
Traffic and security services 16 886 593 18 223 008
Credit control 13 422 656 6 590 472
Council owned land 2132 904 841026
Town planning 84 017 B8 696
Aerodrome 13 957 9106

106 333 796 84 588 244
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34, Contracted services (continued)

The comparalive figure of "contracted services" has been reclassified to conform to changes in presentation in the current year,
With the adoption of mSCOA the Municipality reclassified certain balances in order to comply with the instruction notes issued.
The result of the reclassification is set out in Note 62 in the Annual Financial Statements.

35. Transfer and subsidies

Eskom EBSST 3 900 599 3 968 166
GTEDA 8 961 106 7 963 852
Other grants 14 596 786 23 365 142
SETA (Training) 194 726 1 400 490
SPCA - 100 000
Solid waste: EPWP 7134 000 5 749 000
Sport Council 190 000 190 000

34 977 217 42736 650

The mayor's bursary account is in respect of providing bursaries for further terfiary education.

Other grants are summarized as follows

Disaster Relief Grant (COVID-19) - 298 000
Finance Management Grant 1802 216 2145000
Integrated National Electrification programme (INEP) 12 299 855 16 971 997
MIG project transfer to RAL - 3279555
Mayor Bursary account 228 000 161 335
Mayor Special account 166 715 509 255
14 596 786 23 365 142
36. General expenses
Adverlising 1001 413 1546 155
Auditers remuneration G 486 844 6474 173
Bank charges 1784 149 1825612
Electricity services and commission paid 2305670 1181 966
Entertainment 122 135 381425
Fines and penalties 197 476 -
Insurance 2 926 956 2344774
Lease rentals on operating leases 1018 804 600 049
Levies and membership fees 6 146 969 5701 248
Municipai services 53 230 465 51 796 348
Cther expenses 8 259 455 11 450 062
Postage and courier 45 808 317 379
Protective clothing 204 731 209 244
Telephone and fax 2202 481 2 075 407
Tile deed search fees 67 542 47 773
Travel - local 7 005 547 8725776
93 096 525 94 677 391

The comparative figure of "general expenses” has been reclassified to conform to changes in presentation in the current year,
With the adoption of mSCOA the Municipality reclassified certain balances in order to comply with the instruction notes issued,
The result of the reclassification Is set out in Note 62 in the Annual Financial Statements.

Municipal services are summarized as follows
Performance management 542 283 336 430
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36. General expenses (continued)

Asset management consultants 2872592 1676 695
Legal fees 22622 141 24177 786
Audit committee 446 637 455 754
SEBATA EMS 9 810 087 12 053 153
Financial management support 693 700 1378 684
Tax consultants 3916049 3 696 638
Other 12 226 976 8021 208
53 230 465 51 796 348
37. Cash generated from operations
Surplus 228 718 602 208 684 789
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation 106 431 082 99 048 162
Loss on sale of assets and liabilities 416 540 3608 167
Fair value adjustments - 50 000
Finance costs - Finance leases 1760616 1335 411
Impairment deficit 2905 950 9236873
Debt impairment 2 587 061 22971747
Movements in operating lease assets and accruals 21525 18 723
Movements in retirement benefit assets and liabilities 15 791 000 {5 346 678)
Movements in provisions 559 B06 630 724
Transfer of property, plant and equipment (non-cash item) 116 662 541 34 036 003
Changes in working capital:
Inventories (2065 777) (4 169 447)
Receivables from exchange transactions {112 176 509} (103 118 991}
Consumer debtors (2 587 061} (22 971 747)
Other receivables from non-exchange transactions (80 501 221} {67 333 752}
Payables from exchange transactions 6968 772 12 892 341
VAT 5213 460 4243 834
Unspent conditional grants and receipis (1953 298} 372 553
Consumer deposits 652 782 328 092
289 405 481 194 417 504
38. Auditors’ remuneration
Fees- Auditor General of South Africa 6 486 844 6474 173
39. Commitments
Authorised expenditure
Already contracted for but not provided for
. Property, plant and equipment 199 140 447 101 249 922
+  Other financial assets 88 509 822 72 559 380
287 740 269 173 809 302
Total commitments
Already contracted for but not provided for 287 740 269 173 809 302
Total commitments
Total commitments
Authorised expenditure 287 740 269 173 809 302
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39. Commitments (continued)

The total commitments represent future expenditure. The Municipality has an obligation to spend these amounts due to signed
contracts with suppliers and approval as per the Medium-Term Revenue and Expenditure Framework (MTREF).

The expenditure will be financed by:
Internal advances 59 503 294 72 550 380
MIG grants 228 236 974 101 249 922

287 740 268 173 809 302

40. Contingencies
Centingent liabilities
Contractual disputes

Various contractual claims by contractors' supplers and staff are currently in dispute, and are subject to mediation. The potential
extent of the Hability cannot be determined, since it is subject fo litigation. The provisional estimate based on management
assessment is R 86 million (2020 : R85 million). The merits must still be determined and could result in a lesser or greater
amount.

Malunga Tax Consultants vs Greater Tzaneen Municipality

in 2015 Malunga Tax Consuitant sued the Municipality for not honouring 10302 106 10 302 106
payment of services rendered in respect of review and recover of VAT, SDL, UIF

and PAYE, the matter is still pending in High Court, The actual amount claimed

as per the summons is R 7 602 106 and estimated legal fees for the matteris R

2 700 000 and was an estimation of how much the claim would cost

Siphiwe Engineering and Technologies vs Greater Tzaneen Municipality

The Municipality is being sued by Siphiwe Engineering Technologies for unlawfui 11694 144 11 694 144
termination of contract for services of upgrading of electrical network, the matter

is still pending at the Aritration slage from 2017. However, the Municipality

made an application in terms of section 33 of the Arbiiration Act 42 of 1965

against Siphiwe Engineering Technologies CC and His Lordship Retired MR

Justice Zulman in High Court, The application involves a setting aside of an

award granted in the amount of R 10 594 144.74 which is included in the

contingent liability of 2020 and also the estimated legal fees of R1 100 000 for

this matter

Letaba Pakkers vs Greater Tzaneen Municipality

The Municipalily is being sued for damage of electrical equipment which was 625 969 625 969
caused by electrical surge within the jurisdiction of Greater Tzaneen cperated by

The Municipality, the matter is pending in the Magistrate Court frorn 2017, The

actual amount claimed as per the particulars of claimis R 175 269 and

estimated legal fees is R 450 000 as indicated was an estimation of how much

the damages would cost

C Van Der Merwe vs Greater Tzaneen Municipality

Mrs C Van Der Merwe who was the employee of the Municipality is suing the 1666 511 1666 511
institution for an insurance claim that was not paid after a valid claim was

instituted due to an accident which happened while she was employed by

Council. The matter is still pending in the High Court. The contingent liability of

2020 for this matter includes the actual amount claimed and estimated legal fees

for the matter
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40. Contingencies {continued}

Hiimbyi Trading Enterprise vs Greater Tzaneen Municipality

Hlimbyl Is suing the Municipality for unlawful termination of contract for provision 32 564 330
of physical securlly contract, the matter is pending in the High Court from 2015.

The actual amount claimed as per the summons and estimated legal fees for the

matter is indicated in 2020 and in 2019 was an estimation of how much the cfaim

would cost.

Maria Malatji vs Greater Tzaneen Municipality

In 2015, Ms Maria Malatji sued the municipality for damages to her property as a 1150 000
result of floods. The matter is pending in the High Court. The actual amount

claimed as per the summons and estimated legal fees for the maller as

indicated in 2020 and in 2019 was an estimation of how much the claim would

cost.

Bernado Tounge vs Greater Tzaneen Municipality

in 2015, Bernado Tounge sued the Municipality for damages to his property as a 1 150 000
result of floods. The matter is pending in the High Court. The actual amount

claimed as per the summons and estimated legal fees for the matler as

indicated in 2020 and in 2019 was an estimation of how much the claim would

cost.

Makoma Pony Hiokwe vs Greater Tzaneen Municipality

Makoma Pony Hiokwe is suing the Municipality for loss of support as a resulit of 5191214
the death of her husband whom was an employee of the Municipality. The

amount claimed as per the summons is R 3 331 214 and the estimated legal

fees amount is R 1 800 000

Sima Silver Lodge vs Greater Tzaneen Municipality
Sima Silver Lodge is suing the Municipality for services rendered to Council in 1 899 250
the amount of R 1 389 250 and the estimated legal fees amount is R 510 000

Bravespan 252 CC vs Greater Tzaneen Municipality

In 2018, Bravospan sued the Municipality for damages of declaring their contracl 10 324 000
nul and void in the amount of R 9 624 000 and the estimated legal fees amount

is R 700 000

Tshepiso Gabriel Maponya/ GTM

The Municipality advertised the position of Manager : Financial Services and -
Reporting, shortlisting and interviews were conducted were a sultable candidate

was appointed. One of the unsuccessful candidates tock the Municipality to

Labour Court to review the appointment the institution made. The matter is in

Labour Court on review after the unsuccessful candidate lost the case al

Arbitration at CCMA level. The case is ongoing in Labour Court from January

2021. Retief claimed, appointment or alternative compensation

Tshiamiso / GTM

In 2019, the Municipality terminated the coniract of the service provider of the -
two road projects of Mulatl Access Road and Codesa to Hani Street on the basis

of the misrepresentation of the Bill of Quantities by the Service Provider. The

Service provider is claiming payment of certificate of services rendered in

counter application and completion of the projects in line with market related

prices. The matter is still pending in High Court and the estimated legal fees for

this matter is R 500 000.00
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40. Contingencies {continued)

Mpho Kobela/ GTM

In 2019, the Mpho Kobela sued the Municipality for injuries sustained during
Hawkers ejectment in the CBD of Tzaneen, where circumstances forced
Municipal Law Enforcement Officer to use ammunition to disperse the
unsatisfied crowd of people who were refusing to leave the demarcated area for
none trading purpose, The amount claimed is R 3 600 000.C0 and the estimated
legal fees is R 1 000 000.00

Nkuna Traditional Council / GTM x2

In 2019, the Municipality received an application and action proceedings wherein
the Nkuna Traditional Council Is claiming ownership of land belonging to the
state as their communal land. The Municipality realised that the result of the
claim might lead to Council losing the Townships of Nkowankowa, Lenyenye anc
Letsitele.Land belonging and registered as Council property is claimed by Nkuna
Tradifional Council as their land.Both matters are still pending in the High Court
and the estimated legal fees for this matter Is R 4 100 000.00

Agri lLetaba/ GTM

Agri-Letaba brought an application to Court against the Municipality for an order
to compel the Municipality to publish a proclamation with regard to rezoning of
Letaba Showground into Agricultural College against the restriction laid out by
Mopani Tribunal that the rezoning must not happen before the restrictive
conditions are met by Agri-Letaba. Agri-Letaba wants to remove the restrictive
conditions and the Municipality wants Agri-Letaba to comply with the restrictions
failure of which a counter-claim will be lodged to contest the ownership and
registration of the property. The case is pending in the High Court from July
2020. The estimated legal gees is R 500 000.00

GTM / Josephine Maake

The Municipality suspended Josephine Maake as testing officer after her arrest
by the DPCV The Hawks for the charges of dereliction of duty, fraud and
corruption.She was later dismissed after a fair disciplinary hearing.She then took
the Municipality to the Bargaining Council wherein the Arbitrator ruled in het
favour of her reinstatement and payment of outstanding salaries due.The
employee claim reinstatement to the Municipality as Traffic Officer.Ongoing in
the Labour Court from October 2019.

Stanley Malatji / GTM

The Municipality suspended Stanley Malatji as testing officer after her arrest by
the DPCIf The Hawks for the charges of dereliction of duty, fraud and corruption,
He was later dismissed after a fair disciplinary hearing.He then took the
Municipality to the Bargaining Council wherein the Arbitrator ruted in her favour
of the Municipality. The employee claim reinstatement to the Municipality as
Trafflc Testing Officer. Ongoing in the Labour court from March 2020.

Manoko & SAMWU / GTM

The Municipality dismissed Mr Manoko for the theft of copper wires. The matter
wenlt through Arbitration and the arbitrator upheld the dismissal from the
disciplinary hearing. Mr Mancko approached the Labour Court for the review of
the arbitration award with an intention of overturning the decision of his dismissal
from the Municipality. (Ongoing in Labour Court from October 2020), Employees
seek reinstatement to work.
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40. Contingencies (continued)
281 500
Versatax Trading / Greater Tzaneen Municipality
Versatax look the Municipslity to The Magistrate Court for the District of
Tzaneen and instituted a claim for the full amount owed to them by the
Municipality for not honouring the contract of services to complete an
organogram and job evaluation for the Municipalily. (The case has been on stay
of proceedings from October 2016 as Versatax has abandoned it due to lack of
evidence to defend the case).

TP Shiluvane ! Councillors, Mayor and Municipal Manager

The applicant is suing the Municipality for vicarious liability because of members 1 500 000
of Council who Hosi N'wamitwa alleged that they have insulted her and suing

them for damages. Hosi N'wamitwa filed papers alleging vicarious liability on the

basis that the individuals are Councillors as such the Municipality must

compensate her for the sum of R 1 500 000 million for defamation of character

and her good image. The case has been pending in the High Court from July

2021.

281 500

86 349 024

B85 349 024

Contingent assets

Outstanding insurance claims

The estimated contingent asset for insurance claims amounts to R 4 494 976 (2020: R 4 319 928). The estimation is based on
quotations, medical reports, estimates based on previous claims of similar nature, estimates by management and letters of
demand received. The merits must all stil be determined and could result in a lesser or greater amount. A detailed insurance

register is available at the Municipality for inspection.
41. Related parties

Relationships/Management

Municipal Manager BS Matlala

Chief Financial Officer MP Makhubela

Director Community services HA Nkuna

Director Civil Engineering CW Molokomme

Director Corporate Services W Shibamba

Director Electrical Engineering MS Lelope

Director Planning and Economic Development B Mathebula

Councillors Refer to Note 29 for list of councillors

No member of the Municipality's management has significant influence over the financial or operating policies of the Municipality.

Mo business transactions took place between the Municipality and key management personnel.

All Councillors have disclosed their interest in related parties and no one has the ability to control or exercise significant
influence over the Council in making financial and operational decisions. Councillors are remunerated according to the
Remuneration of Public Office Bearers Act 20 of 1998 and only have collective executive powers for planning, directing and

controlling the activities of the Municipality.

Loans granted to related parties

In terms of the MFMA the Municipality may not grant loans to its counciitors, management, staff and public with effect from 1

March 2004.
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41. Related parties (continued)
GTEDRA

GTEDA is a Municipal Entity Established by Greater Tzaneen Municipality and performs the function consistent with that of an
entity and cannot control or influsnce council In making financial or operational decisions

The value of the grant paid over to GTEDA during the year under review amounts to R 8 961 106 (2020: R 7 963 852), excluding
VAT,

The balance owed to GTEDA af year-end amounts to R - (2020; R 253 365), (2019: R 216 732).The amount of R 470 097 was
paid during the year under review as the Municipality had an obligation to pay the agreed amount based on an agreement
reached beftween the Municipality and GTEDA on 26 August 2020,

Section 57 Managers and Councillors

Refer to note 28 for detall of remuneration paid to Section 57 Managers and to note for remuneration paid to Councitiors.

Bids awarded to family of employees in service of state.

in terms of Section 45 of the municipal supply chain management regulations any award above R 2 000 to family of employees
in the service of the state must be disclosed in the annual financial statements,

The following is a list as recorded:

Name of employee Capacity Successful Amount is in
Tenderer Service
MJ. Malatfie/fMD Malatjie Manager KE Malatjie 1027 630

Traffic/Senior Attorney
Licensing Clerk

8D. Maake Vehicle Ins. & DTM 776 718
Test Officer Consulting

Xikembiso Sibisi Compliance Rivisi Electrical 9613478
Officer Contractors

NHM. Maake Manager in Boabab 14 128
Human Promotions
Resources

NHM. Maake Manager in White Hail 845 656
Human Trading
Resources

MM. Ramabulana Clerk Letaba 324 600

Asphaltech
M. Prinsloo Councillor B.E.C. 164 986

Konstruksie
12 766 593
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42. Risk management
Financial risk management

Exposure to liquidity, credit, interest rate and currency risk arises in the normal course of the Municipality's operations. This note
presents information about the Municipality's exposure to each of the above risks and processes for measuring and managing
risks. Quantitative disclosures are included in these financial statements.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk encountered by an entity In the event of difficulty in meeting obligations associated with financial liabilities
that are setlled by delivering cash or another financial assel.

The Municipality’s risk to liquidity is a result of the funds available o cover future commitments, The Municipality manages
Heuidity risk through an ongoing review of future commitments and credit faciliies. The Municipality's policy on counterpart credit
exposures ensures that only counterparties of a high credit standing are used for the investments of any excess cash,

Cash flow forecasts are prepared and adequately utilised borrowing facilities are monitored.

The table below analyses the entity's financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period at the
statement of financial position to the contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual
undiscounted cash flows. Balances due within 12 months equal their carrying balances as the impact of discounting is not
significant at 30 June 2021.

At 30 June 2021 Less than 1 Between 1 Total
year and 2 years
Other financial liabilities 13 050 632 140 985 369 154 036 001
Finance lease obligation 2 462 827 1462 408 3925 235
Payables from exchange transactions 247 200 432 - 247 200 432
262 713 891 142 447 177 405 161 668
At 30 June 2020 Less than 1 Between 1 Total
year and 2 years
Other financial liabilities 9301 647 123 991 222 133 292 869
Finance [ease obligation 3 886 967 39256235 7 812 202
Payables from exchange transactions 240231 674 - 240 231674
262713 891 262 713 891 262 713 891
Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will cause a financial loss for the other parly by failing to discharge
an obligation,

Credit risk consists mainly of cash deposits, cash equivalents and trade debtors. The Municipality only deposits cash with major
banks with high quality credit standing and limits exposure to any one counter-party.

Potential concentrations of credit rate risk consist mainly of investments, loans, trade receivables and other receivables, shori-
term investment deposits and cash and cash equivalents.

The Municipality limits Its counterparty exposures from its money market investment operations by only dealing with well-
established financial institutions of high credit standing. The credit exposure to any single counterparty Is managed by setting
tfransaction/ exposure limits, which are included in the Municipality's Investments Policy.

Trade receivables comprise of a large number of ratepayers, dispersed across different indusiries and geographical areas.
Ongoing credit evaluations are performed on the financlal condition of these customers. Trade receivables are presented net of
an allowance for impairment and where appropriate, credit limits are adjusted.
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42. Risk management (continued)

Credit risk pertaining to trade and other debfors is considered to be moderate due to the diversified nature of debtors and
immaterial nature of individual balances. In the case of consumer debtors the Municipality effectively has the right to ferminate
services to customers,

In the case of customers whose accounts become in arrears, i Is endeavoured to collect such accounts by "levying of interest
charges”, "demand for payment", “rastriction of services” and, as a last resort, ¥ handed over for collection”, whichever
precedurs Is applicable in terms of Council's Credit Control and Debt Collection Policy,

Non-current Recelvables and Other Recelvables are collectively evaluated annually at reporting date for Impairment or
discounting. A report on the varfous categories of customers is drafted to substantiate such evaluation and subsequent
impairment / discount, where applicable,

iNo cash and cash equivalents were pledged as security for financial liabilities and no restrictions were placed on the use of any
cash and cash equivalents for the period under review. Although the credit risk pertaining to cash and cash equivalents is
considered to be low, the maximum exposure is disclosed below,

The maximum credit and interest risk exposure in respect of the refevant financial instruments are as follows:

Financial assets exposed to credit risk at year end were as follows:

Financial instrument 2021 2020

Receivables from exchange transactions 572 098 072 459 921 163
Receivables from non-exchange transactions 203 937 138 123 435 917
Cash and cash eguivalents 104 790 238 70215767
Other financial assets 38 863 416 21113398

The methed for determining the credit quality of the different financial instruments are disclosed in their individual notes.
Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices such as interest rates and foreign exchange rates affecting the
Municipality's income or the value of its financial instrument holdings. The objective of market risk management is to manage
and confrol market risk exposure within acceptable parameters, while optimising the return on the risk.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
market interest rates.

The Municipality is exposed to interest rate risk on its investments and long-term borrowings.

A sensitivity analysis is done by the Municlpality on a continuous basis to determine its potential exposure to interest rate
charges. Different scenarios are simulated which include renewal of current position and alternative financing. Based on those
scenarios the Munlcipality calculates the impact that a change in Interest rate will have on the surplus / deficit for the year. These
scenarios are only stmulated for liabilities which constitute the majority of interest-bearing liabilities.

This risk is managed by investing in investments with different maturity dates. This enables the Municipality to re-allocate some
of the investments in the event of major fluctuations in interest rates. Borrowings Issued at variable rates expose the Municipality
{o cash flow interest rate risk. Borrowings at fixed rates expose the Municipalily to fair value Interest rate risk.

Price risk

The effect of any price risk in the foreseeable future is regarded as minimal given the fact that amounts receivable from the

Municipality's customers are levied in terms of the relevant statutes. It is not anticipated that given the nature of the
Municipality's business, changes in the market prices will have a material impact on the trading results of the Municipality,
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42. Risk management {continued)
Risk is managed on an ongoing basis.

There has been no change, since the previous financial year to the Municipality exposure to market risks on the manner which it
manages and measures the risk.

43. Going concern

The audited annual financial statements have been prepared on the basis of accounting policies applicable to a going concern.
This basis presumes that funds will be available to finance future operations and that the realisation of assets and settlement of
liabilities, contingent obligations and commitments will oceur in the ordinary course of business.

The ability of the Municipality to continue as a going concern is dependent on a number of factors. The most significant of these
is that the Accounting Officer centinue to procure funding for the ongoing operations for the Municipality.

44, Unauthorised expenditure

Opening balance as previously reported - 83 025989
Add: Expenditure identified - current year 15083719 -
Less: Unauthorised expenditure condoned by council - (83 025 989)
Unauthorised expenditure awaiting condonement 15083 719 -

The amountof R 11m projects the Municipality's unfunded accrued liability and perfodic costs of the Post-Employment Medical
Aid Subsidy liability over the two-year pericd following 30 June 2021.

The amount of R 4m projects the Municipality's unfunded accrued fiability of the Long Service Award liability over the two-year
period following 30 June 2021,

Corporate services 15083 719 -

A datailed list of the 2021 unautherised expenditure is available at the Municipality to inspect.

45. Fruitless and wasteful expenditure

Opening balance as previously reported 12 679 691 11 466 065
Fruitiess and wasteful expenditure -~ current year 6 166 778 5997 293
Fruitless and wasteful expenditure written off {2018/2019) - {4 783 657)
Frultless and wasteful expenditure awaiting write off / further investigation 18 846 469 12 679 691

The fruitless and wasteful expenditure has been tabled to council and was investigated by a committee of Council,
A detailed list of fruiliess and wasteful expenditure is available at the Municipality for inspection,

46, Irregular expenditure

Opening balance as previously reported 80 597 040 37 243 476
Add: irregular Expenditure - current 29 565 272 43 353 564
Irregular expenditure awaiting write off / further investigation 110 162 312 80 597 040

Analysis of expenditure awaiting write off per age classification

Current year 29 565 272 43 353 564
Prior years 80 597 040 37 243 476

90




Greater Tzaneen Municipality

Audited Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2021

Notes to the Audited Annual Financial Statements

Figures in Rand

46. Irregular expenditure {continued)

Council and management are taking appropriate steps into analysing consequences of the above expenditure.

A detalled list of Irregular expenditure is avallable at the Municipality for inspection.

The irregular expenditure has been tabled to Council and was investigated by a committee of Council.

47, Additional disclosure in terms of Municipal Finance Management Act

Contributions to SALGA

Current year subscription / fee
Amount paid - current year

Skills Development Levy

Current year subscriptionffee
Amount paid - current year

Audit fees

Current year subscription / fee
Amount paid - current year

PAYE and UIF

Current year subscription / fee
Amount paid - current year

Pension and Medical Aid Deductions

Current year subscription / fee
Amount paid - current year

Bargalning Council Levy

Current year subscriptionffee
Amount paid - current year

VAT

VAT payable

110 162 312 80 597 040
3770320 3618 830
(3 770 320) (3 618 830)
2 928 233 2709 784
(2 928 233) (2 709 784)
6 486 844 6474 173
(6 486 844) (6 474 173)
76 066 741 72 268 051
(76 066 741) (72 268 051)
83 338 912 79 768 464
(83 338 912) (79 768 464)
160 400 156 118
(160 400) {156 118}
49 201 388 43 987 929
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47. Additional disclosure in terms of Municipal Finance Management Act {continued)

VAT output payables and VAT input receivables are shown in note,
All VAT returns have been submitted by the due date throughout the year.

Councillors

‘The following Councillors had arrear accounts outstanding for more than 90 days at 30 June 2021:

30 June 2021 Qutstanding Quistanding Total
less than 90 more than 90 R
days days
R R
Councillor : GE Timbana { Mdluli Project ) 3415 58 881 62 296
30 June 2020 Outstanding Outstanding Total
less than 80 more than 80 R
days days
R R
Councillor : GE Timbana ( Mdluli Project ) - 67 819 67 819
Councillor : MJ Maake 559 - 559
559 67 819 68 378

48. Supply chain management regulations

in terms of section 36 of the Municipal Supply Chain Management Regulations any deviation from the Supply Chain

Management Policy needs to be approved by the Accounting Officer and noted by Council. The expenses incurred have been

approved,

49, Deviation from supply chain management regulations

Paragraph 12(1)}(d)(i) of Government gazette No. 27636 issued on 30 May 2005 states that a supply chain management policy
must provide for the procurement of goods and services by way of a competitive bidding process.

Paragraph 36 of the same gazette states that the accounling officer may dispense with the official procurement process in
certain circumstances, provided that he records the reasons for any deviations and reports them to the next meeting of the

Accounting Officer and includes a note to the audited annual financial statements.
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49. Deviation from supply chain management regulations (continued)
The rewards listed below have been approved by the Accounting Officer and noted by Council.

The classification of deviations:
Emergencies on service delivery 421 609 7412014

Deviations on appointment alternative service providers due current service 16 417

providers having pending litigations with the Municipality

Deviation on general internal municipal operations and human resources 290 375 204 754
711 984 7633185

Al deviations considered by the Accounting Officer are processed in terms of the Supply Chain Management Regulations and
the Supply Chain Management Policy. This process entails being assesssd by the supply chain management bid adjudication
committee In terms of the stipulated criteria of emergency procurements or circumstances where it is impractical or impossible to
follow the official procedures.

A detailed deviation register is available at the Municipality for inspaction.

50. Utilisation of Long-term liabilities reconciliation

Long-term liabifities raised 154 036 001 133 292 869

External loans have been utilized in accordance with the Municipal Finance Management Act. Refer to note 14 for more detall
regarding long-term borrowings.

51. Distribution losses

Units purchased (kWh) 362772 934 356 231 757
Units lost during distribution {(kWh) 41132 061 74 482 474
Percentage lost during distribution 11,34 % 20,91 %
Rand Value 47 416 347 83 092648

Electricity losses:

The electricity distribution losses for the current year are 11.34% (2020: 20.91%). These losses are predominantly due to
metering inaccuracies, system operations, theft and vandalism,

The Municipality has engaged in a two-year investigation project to address the distribution losses. The project includes the
upgrading of infrastructure and the implementation of a revenue enhancement programme in support of revenue
lossesfgeneration pertaining to electricity,

52. Budget differences

Material differences between budget and actual amounts

53.1 Explanation of variances between approved and final budget greater than 10%

The variance between the approved and final budget Is due to adjustments approved on the adjustment budget and virements
approved by directors. The increase in the Capital Budget is due to Capital projects rolled over from the previous financial year.

Included in the variances are variances lower than 10% which are regarded as material variances on the statement of financial
performance.
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52, Budget differences {continued)

Statement of Financial Performance

Revenue

Service charges (-18,92%)
The lower than expected revenue on service charges is due to lower than anticipated revenue billed for electricity. Variance is
{2021: R (116 607 234) ) and (2020: R 50 293 258).

Rental of facilities and equipment (-90,44%}
Most of the facilities were stopped from being rented due to implementation of COVID-19 regulations. Variance is {2021:
R(2 105 570)) and (2020: R 8192 867).

Income from agency services (-52,51%)
The budgeted amount includes the revenue received on behalf of the agency which cannot be regarded as own revenue, only
20% is recognised as own revenue, Variance s (2021:R (11 900 927)) and (2020: R 44 545 715)..

Licenses and permits (-76,99%)

The variance is due to higher than expscted revenue from the issuing of licenses and permits especially building plans
approved, clearance certificates issued and town planning application fees. Variance is (2021:R (706 003)) and (2020:R 414
992).

Other income (721,08%)
The higher variance is due to debt impairment reversal on property rates.Variance is (2021: R 56 542 975} and (2020 :R 5 041
961).

Public contributions and donations {(1060,00%)})
The Municipality received a donation of Roads and Electricity Infrastructure at a new Tzaneen Extension 94 from the Property
Developer. Varlance is (2021:R13 508 391 ) and (2020: R80 000).

Fines, penalties and forfeits (-50,86%)
The disclosurs of fines has been done in accordance with GRAP and resulting in total fines issues disclosed.Variance Is
(2021:R{25 937 913)) and {(2020: (R13 085 806)).

Expenditure

Depreciation and amortisation (-19,96%)
The depreciation and amortisation reduced due to prior year reviewed useful life of assets. Variance is (2021:R26 5398 715} and
(2020: R 24 632 168).

Impairment of assets (100,00%)
Physical damaged of electricity infrastructure and fong standing of construction work in progress projects. Variance is
(2021:R(2 905 950} ) and (2020: R 9 175 300).

Debt impairment (-96,31%)
The variance is due to the reversal of debt impairment for property rates, Variance is {2021: R 67 448 638) and (2020: (R 30 085
653)).

Contracted services ( 73,76%)
The variance is due to the payment of debt collections for the implementation of credit control, Variance is 2021 (45 138 887))
and 2020 (R 30 086 653).

Grants and subsidies paid (11,56%)

The actual amount include the Municipal Entity {GTEDA) grant of R8,1 million that was not allocated to the budget, the allocation
was previously recorded under general expenses in 2019/20 Financial year (Misclassification). Vartance is (2021: R(3 625 403))
and (2020:( R 2 925 920)).

Inventory consumed ((77,40)%)

The lower than anticipated spending is due to the under expenditure on Materials and supplies. Variance is (2021: R51 226 013
yand (2020: R 17 120 714)
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52, Budget differences (continued)

General expenses (-29,27%)
The lowsr than anticipated spending Is due to the vehicle licencing costs transferred to department of transport. Variance is
(2021: R 38 524 629) and (2020: R 35 999 162)

{Gain)/Loss on disposal of assets (100,00%)
Loss on disposal dus to stolen assets written off and replaced di;alidated assets. Variance is (2021: R (4116 540)) and (2020:R (4
701 607)).

Statement of Financial Position
Current assetis

Inventory {18,55%)
The variance is due to increase in inventory purchases. Varlance Is (2021: R3 918 786) and (2020: R 1 203 008).

Operating lease asset {-81,10%)
The reduction is due fo the recalculation of prior year lease payments. Variance is (2021: R(125 517)) and (2020; (R 103 992)),

Receivables from non-exchange transactions (148,43%)
The variance is due to the reversal of property rates debt impairment and the increase in property rates debtors bock. Variance
is (2021; R121 847 844} and (2020: R { 50 660 437)).

Receivables from exchange transactions {81,94%)
The increase is due fo the outstanding balance on Mopani debtors account. Variance is (2021: R257 663 016 ) and (2020; R 85
601 384).

Cash and cash equivalents (30,97%)
The Municipalily closed with a positive bank balance of R 104 790 238 during the year. Variance is (2021:R24 779 630} and
{2020: (R 9 794 841)).

Non-current assets

Intangible assets (-67,73%)
The reduction is due to the amortisation of intangible assets. Variance Is {2021: R (959 §47)) and {2020: (R 672 354)).

Other financial assets (14,71%)
The increase is due to the fong-term investment of R 16 million with ABSA for a ceded DBSA loan. Variance is (2021;
R4 984 793) and (2020: R 12 765 224),

Current Liabilities

Finance lease obligation ((38,43)%)
The decrease in finance lease is due to the termination of the photocopiers contract.Variance is {(2021: R {1 537 173)) and
(2020: R 8 103 976).

Payables from exchange transactions (19,38%)
The Municlpality had creditors and retention amount not paid cut at year end. Variance is (2021: R40 126 884) and (2020; R 31
455 847),

VAT Payable (30,09%)

The ouistanding balance represents an amount owed fo SARS not paid at year end. Variance is (2021: R11 379 641) and
(2020: R 6 166 182).
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52. Budget differences (continued)

Unspent conditional grants and receipts {100.00%)
The unspent conditional grants is higher than anticipated due to the outstanding balance of R 1.9 million under INEP grant.
Variance is (2021: R3 502 528} and (2020: R 5 455 827).

Employee benefit obligations (100.00%)
The increase was due to the actuarial valuation report received from actuarles relating to retirement employee benefit obligation
and the budget amount was erroneously omitted during the budget process. Variance Is (2021; R 5 905 000} and (2020: R -)

Provisions (93,78%)
The increase is due to the provision for performances bonus of &ll direclors and municipal manager for the full financial year.
Varlance is (2021:R 469 661) and (2020: R 469 662).

Non-current |iabilities

Other financial liabilities (40,44%)

The increase is due to the [oan of R 20million taken up during the year. Variance is (2021:R40 598 558} and (2020: R(11 948
850)).

Finance lease obligation (-83,66%)

The reduction is due to eases expired and ease payments made during the year. Varlance is (2021: R(7 488 592)) and (2020:
R{ 5 025 764)).

Provisions (10,00%}
The increase was due fo the additional provisions for the tandfill site, Variance is (2021: R 1 360) and (202: R -).

Statement of Cash Flows

Interest income (589,78%)
The decrease is due fo the inclusion of inferest on cuistanding debtors amount received under sale of goods and services.
Variance is (2021: R 25 366 610) and ( 2020 : R {11 185 186)).

Employee costs (13,88%)
The underspending is due to vacant posts not filled immediately during the year. Variance is (2021: R (44 283 839) ): {(2020: R- )

Finance costs {15,72%)
The reduction in finance cost is due to the loan of R 60 million approved by Council during the budgel process, but later was
cancelled, which led to the underspending. Variance is (2021: R(2 472 735)) (2020: R13 487 207).

Transfer of property, plant and equipment {100.00%}
The actual amount represents capitalisation of completed projects transferred from WIP to infrastructure assets. Vartance is
(2021: R 116 662 541) and (2020: R64 509 821).

Movement in financial asset (906,93%)

The difference is due to the additional long-term investment acquired during 2020/2021 financial year, Variance is (2021:
R{15 987 234)) and (2020: R 435 316).

Repayment of other financial labitities (-6 501,31%)

‘The difference is due to the long term loan of R15 million pald during the year. Variance is (2021: R21 067 177) and {2020: R
{168 918}).

Finance lease payments (100,00%})
The reduction is due to lease expired during the year. Varlance Is (2021; R(5 647 583)) and (2020: R § 590 641).

53. Fair value adjustments

Investment property (Fair value model} - (50 000)

The Greater Tzaneen Municipality fair valued its investment properties using the valuation roll that came into effect on the 01
July 2017 which Is reviewed every five years.
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54, Agency services

Mopani district and department of transport

§5. Licences and permits

Trading
Road and Transport

56. Interest revenue

Interest revenue
interest received - investment
Interest received - frading

10 763 364 9118 576
209578 1228 999
1419 2993

210 997 1231992

7 227 546 8 677 865
22 440 064 19 234 067
29 667 610 27 911 932

The amount of R 2 546 172 (2020: R 5 198 505} is included in investment arising from fixed deposit transactions, while the
balance of R 4 681 375 (2020: R 3 479 360} arises from interest received on the Municipalities current bank account.

§7. Fines, Penalfies and Forfeits

Revenue for traffic fines issued
Fines: Library books
Fines, Penalties and Forfeits: Property rates

13 988 260 25 556 445

660 643 385
11 074 304 10 883 012
25063 224 37 082 842

The comparative figures of "lines,penalties and forfeits” previously disclosed as “fines revenue" has heen reclassified to conform

to changes in presentation in the current year.

With the adoption of mSCOA the Municipality reclassified certain balances in order to comply with the Instruction notes issued.

The result of the reclassification is set out in note 62 in the annual financial statements,

58. (lLoss}/galn on disposall write off of assets

Property, plant and equipment and investment property

59. Depreciation and amortisation

Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets

60. Debt impairment movements

Receivables from non-exchange transactions

61. Change in estimate

Change in accounting estimate

(416 540) (3 608 167)
106 143 898 98 455 154
287 194 593 008
106 431 092 99 048 162
2 587 061 22 971 747
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61. Change in estimate (continued)

The Municipality has reassessed the useful lives of property, plant and equipment which resulted in certain assets remaining
useful lives to change. Infrastructure assets useful life remained unchanged with nine (9) years on average, movable assels
remained unchanged seven (7) years on average, leased assets remained unchanged with two (2) years on average, intangible
assets changed from one (1} to two (2} years on average. The effect of the change in accounting estimates has resulted in a
decrease in depreciation and amortisation amounting to R 1 062 133 for the current period, The effect on future periods will
increase the depreciation and amortisation by R 1 062 133,

The change in estimate affected the following classes of assets:

Infrastructure assets
Community assets
Movable assels
Leased assets
Intangible assets
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62. Prior period adjustments and reclassifications

Presented below are those items contained in the statement of financial position, statement of financial performance and cash
flow statement that have been affected by the prior-period adjustments and reclassification,

Reclassification

As from 1 July 2020 the Municipality implemented National Treasury's Municipal Standard Chart of Accounts (mSCOA). The
new chart is designed to enhance comparability between municipalities and the information disclosed is being regarded to be
more understandable.Due to the implementation of the new chart, certain comparative figures had to be restated to allow
comparison between the current period figures and the pricr period figures that were presented based on the previous municipal
chart of accounts,

Note 34: Repairs and maintenance - Confracted Services
With an assessment performed on expenses previously disclosed under the repalirs and maintenance accounts, it was noted

that whilst the purpose of the expenditure was to repair or maintain assets, mSCOA provides that those expenses should be
allocated under "contracted services".

Prior period correction of errors
Statement of Financial Position 2019
Inventory- Stands

R 650 000
+ 2019/06/30  Anincrease in inventory stands due to stands previously incorrectly taken out R650 000.

Property, plant and eguipment

R13279 175

» 2019/06/30 Increase in community assets due reclassification of assets R7 902 164.

+ 2019/06/30 Reduction of Infrastructure assets due reclassification of assets -R7 902 164.

+ 2019/06/30 Increase in other assets due reclassification of assels R10 644 897.

+ 2019/06/30 Reduction of infrastructure assets due reclassification of assets -R10 644 897.

+ 2019/06/30 Increase in computer equipment due to reclassification of assels R42 252.

« 2019/06/30 Reduction of infrastructure assets due reclassification of assets -R42 252,

= 2019/06/30  Increase in [nfrastructure assets due to donation previously not recognised R14 584 082.94
» 2019/06/30  Accumulated Depreciation for Infrastruciure assets due to donation previously not recognised -R1 304 907,59
» 2019/06/30 Increase in other assets due to reclassification of municiapl offices R7 172 783.89

+ 2019/06/30 Reduction of community assers due to reclassification of municipal offices -R7 172 783.89

Accumutated surplus
-R 13929 175

« 2019/06/30 Reduction due fo Infrastructure assets donation previcusly not recognised -R14 584 083.

+ 2019/06/30 Increase due to accumulated depreciation for infrastructure assets donation previously not recognised
R 1304 208.

+ 2019/06/30 Reduction due stands previously incorrectly taken out -R650 000.
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62. Prior period adjustments and reclassifications (continued)
Statement of Financial Position 2020

Inventories- stands
R 650 000
» 2020/08/30 An increase in inventory stands due to stands previously incorrectly taken out R650 000,

Property, plant and equipment
R 14275018

+ 2020/06/30  Increase in community assets due reclassification of assets R7 477 039,

« 2020/06/30 Decrease infrastructure assets due reclassification of assets -R7 477 039.

+ 2020/06/30  Increase in other assets due to reclassification of assets R11 280 176,

» 2020/06/30 Reduction of infrastructure assets due reclassification of assets -R11 280 1786.

- 2020/06/30 Reduction of infrastructure assets due reclassification of assets -R3 402,

- 2020/06/30 Increase in infrastructure assets cost due to Mbambamencisi road capitalised without outstanding payment
R118 106,

» 2020/06/30 Increase in infrastructure assets accumulated depreciation due to Mbambamencisi road capitalised without
outstanding payment -R3 784,

» 2020/06/30 Increase in infrastructure assets due to donation previously not recognised R14 584 083,

» 2020/06/30  Accumutated depreciation for infrastructure assets due to donation previously noft recognised -R1 971 243.

+ 2020/06/30 Increase in other assets due to reclassification of municiapl offices R7 002 718.74

+ 2020/06/30 Reduction of community assers due to reclassification of municipal offices -R7 002 718.74

« 2020/06/30 [ncrease in Work in progress due to project invoice not raised in the correct year R1 547 856.52

*» 2020/06/30 Increase in computer equipment due to reclassification of assets R3 402

Receivables from exchange transactions

R (3 135 734)

« 2020/06/30 Decrease in receivables from exchange transactions due to over charges on consumer account, resufting from
meter clock-overs -R 3 136 734.

Receivables from non- exchnage transactions
R (77 662)
+ 2020/06/30 Decrease in recelvables from non-exchange transactions due to over charges on property rales -R 77 662.

Payables from exchange transactions- Trade ¢reditors

-R (1702 278)

+ 2020/06/30 Increase in frade payables due to outstanding payment for Mbambamecisi not recognised -R118 122.
+ 2020/06/30  Increase in Trade payables due to project invoice not raise in the correct year -R1 547 856,52

+ 2020/06/30 - The Increase in Payables from Exchange is due to Legal Fees for GTM vs itec Finance R36 300.00

Other financial liabilities - current

R (550 000)

« 2020/06/30 Decrease In other financial liabilities(current) due to the incorrect inclusion of lean repayment not yet received
-R 550 000.

Other financial liabilities hon-current

R 550 000

» 2020/06/30 Increase in other financial liabilities {non-current) due to the incorrect inclusion of loan not yet received

R 550 000,
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62, Prior period adjustments and reclassifications {continued)

Statement of Financial Position

Assets

Current Assets

Inventory

Operating lease asset

Receivables from exchange transaction

Receivables from non-exchange transactions

Consumer debtors

Cash and cash equivalents
Non - Current Assets
Investment properties
Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets

Heritage asset

Other Financial assets
Liabilities

Current Liabilities

Other financial liabilities
Finance lease obligation
Payables from exchange fransactions
VAT Payable

Consumer debtors

Retirement benefit obligation
Unspent conditional grants and receipts
Provisions

Mon-Current Liabilities
Other financial liabilities
Finance lease obligation
Retirement benefit obligation
Provisions

Accumufated surplus

101

2019 Previously Adjustment 20119 Restated
reported of errors

5420000 650 600 6070 000

69 491 - 69 491

274 098 948 - 274098 948
56 102 165 - 56 102 165
82 703 229 - 82703 229
42 033 011 - 42 033 011
181 746 803 - 181 746 803
1456 773 250 13279 175 1470052 425
1135 137 - 1135137
195 000 - 195 000
31525083 - 31526083
(22 810 651) - (22 810 651)
(2 978 540) - (2 978 540)
(227 339 327) - (227 339 327)
(39 744 095) - (39 744 095)
(27 068 00T) - (27 088 007)
(4 285 580) - (4 285 580)
(5083 273) - (5083 273)
(948 870) - (948 B70)
(110 845 166} - (110 645 1686)
(3 551 484) - (3 551 484)
(77 189 098} - {77 182 098)
(5089 171) - (5088171)

1 605 069 055 13 929 175 1618 998 230
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62. Prior period adjustments and reclassifications (continued)

Statement of Financial Position

Assets

Current Assets

Inventories

Operating lease asset
Receivables from exchange
transactions

Receivables fromn non-exchange
transactions

Consumer debtors

Cash and cash equivalents
Non-Current Assets
Investment property

Property, plant and equipment
ntangible assets

Haritage assets

Other financial assets
Liabilities

Current Liabilities

Other financial liabilities
Finance lease obligation
Payables from exchange transactions
VAT Payable

Consumer deposits
Retirement benefit obligation
Unspent conditional grants and
receipfs

Provisions

Non-Current Liabilities
Other financial liabilities
Finance Jease obligation
Retirement benefit obligation
Provisions

Accumulated surplus

2020 Previously  Reclassificat Adjustment 2020 Restated
reported jon due to of errors
mSCOA

22 331 781 - 650 000 22 981781
50 769 - - 50 769

315 744 851 147 312 047 (3135734) 459 921 164
123 513 579 - (77 662) 123 435 917
147 312 047 (147 312 047) - -
70 215 767 - - 70215767
181 586 803 - - 181 586 803
1486 773 373 - 14 275 018 1501 048 391
744 470 - - 744 470

200 958 - - 200 958
21113 399 - - 21113 399
(9 851 649) - 550 000 (9 301 649)
{3 886 967) - - {3 8B6 967)
(238 529 398) - {1702 278) (240 231 674)
(43 987 629) - - (43 987 929)
(27 397 000) - - (27 397 000)
(4 957 000) - - (4 957 000)
(5 455 827) - - {5 455 827)
(970 477) - - (970 477)
(123 441 226) - (550 000) (123 991 226)
(3 925 236) - - (3 925 238}
{71 171 000) - - {71 171 000}
(5 598 088) - - (5 598 088)
1830 416 002 - 10 009 344 1 840 425 346
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62. Prior period adjustments and reclassifications (continued)

Prior period mSCOA reclassifications

Receivables from exchange transactions

Due to the implementation of mSCOA the comparative figures of “consumer debtors” had to be reclassified to “receivables from
exchange transactions” to conform to changes in presentation in the current year.

The following figures had to be reclassified:

-R 147 312 047 Receivables from exchange transactions
« 2020/06/30

The effect of the corrections are as follows:
{(Increase)Decrease in consumer debtors

(Increase)/Decrease in receivables from exchange transactions

Reconciliation of receivables from exchange transactions

Receivables from exchange transactions (note 8}
Provision for impairment of receivables (note 8)

Recelvables from exchange transactions (SFP)

Petail: Provision for impairment of trade and other dehtors

Opening balance
Frovision for impairment
Amounts written off as uncollectable

201972020 AFS Disclosure

Reclassification of consumer debtors to receivables from exchange transactions -R 147 312 047.

R 147 312 047
{R 147 312 047)
R 0
2020 Adjustment 2020 Restated
Previously
reported
349 792 695 321 174 221 670 966 916
(34 047 B44) (173 862 170) (207 810 014)
315 744 851 147 312 051 463 056 902
2020 Adjustment 2020 Restated
Previously
reported
33 200 87 - 33 200 687
1166 68 994 48 216116
(1314 007) - {1314 007}
33 053 362 994 482 34 047 844

The fransaction value of provision for impairment of trade and other receivables of R 34 047 844 was previously stated under
receivables from exchange transactions, therefore no adjustment to the statement of financial position needs to be done. Refer

tonote 8

Prior pericd mSCOA reclassifications

Consumer debtors

Due to the implementation of mSCOA the comparative figures of “consumer debtors” had to be reclassified to “receivables from
exchange transactions™ to conform to changes in presentation in the current year.

The following figures had to be reclassified:

R 147 312 047 Consumer debtors
+ 2020/06/30

The effect of the corrections are as follows;

(Increase)/Decrease in receivables from exchange transactions

(Increase)/Decrease in consumer debtors
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R
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62. Prior period adjustments and reclassifications (continued}

Prior period correction of errors

Statement of Financial Performance 2020

Depreciation and amortisation
R (670 120}

+ 2020/06/30  Increase in depreciation for Roads infrastruciure due fo Mbambamencisi road capitalised with incorrect amount

R 3784,

+ 2020/06/30 Change in depreciation due to infrastructure assets donation previously not capitalised R 666 336.

Service charges
R ({3135 736)

+ 2020/06/30 Decrease in service charges due to over charges on consumer accounts, resulting from meler clock-overs

-R 3135 736.

Property rates
R {77 561

« 2020/06/30 Decrease in property rates due to over charges on consumer accounts -R 77 662
» 2020/06/30 Increase in property rates due to incorrect Caseware allocation of allowance for impairment R 100,

General Expenses
R36 000

+ 2020/068/30 The increase in general expenses is due to legal fees for GTM vs ITEC Finance R36 300.

Statement of Financial Performance

Revenue

Revenue from exchange transactions

Service charges

Rental of facilities and equipment
Interest racelved (trading)
Agency services

Licenses and permits

Other income

Interest received - investment
Taxation revenue

Property rates

Property rates - penalties imposed
Transfer revenue

Government grants & subsidies
Public contributions and donations
Fines

Expenditure

Employee related cost
Remuneration of councillors
Depreclation and amortisation
Impairment of assets

Finance costs

Debt Impairment

Collection costs

Repairs and maintenance

Bulk purchases

Contracted services

Transfer and subsidies

Generat expenses

L.oss on disposalfwiite off of property, plant and equipment

Surplus/{loss) for the year

104

2019 Previously

reported

486 306 412
2132 696
17 826 053
9254 073
1020 674
13 193 096
9615 814

109 160 412
10 022 809

445 447 230
110 987
32289 979

(294 498 152)
(26 136 302)
(128 241 991)
(4 399 272)
{11 973 760)
(123 718 683)
(600 321)

(40 364 406)
(348 443 869)
{50 076 239)
(57 132 144)
(111 340 883)
(2 226 518)

Adjustment 2019 Restated
of errors

- 486 306 412
- 2132606
- 17 826 083
- 9254 073
- 1020 674
- 13183 086
- 9615814

- 109 160 412
- 10 022 809

- 445 447 230
- 110 987
- 32 289 979

. (294 498 152)
. (26 136 302)
- (128 241 991)
. {4 399 272)
- (11 973 760)
. (123 718 683)
- (600 321)
- {40 364 406)
- (348 443 869)
- {50 076 239)
- (57 132 144)
- (111 340 883)
- {2 226 518)

(62 772 305)

R {62 772 305)
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62. Prior period adjustments and reclassifications {continued)

Statement of Financial Performance

Revenue

Revenue from exchange transactions

Service charges

Rental of facilities and equipment
Interest received (trading)
Agency services

Licenses and permits

Debt impairment reversal

Other income

Interest revenue

Taxation revenue

Property rates

Property rates - penalties imposed
Transfer revenue

Government grants & subsidies
Public contributions and donations
Fines

Expenditure

Employee related cost
Remunerafion of councillors
Depreciation and amortisation
Impairment of assets

Finance costs

Debt impairment

Collection costs

Repairs and maintenance

Bulk purchases

Contracted services

Transfer and subsidies

General expenses

Inventory consumed

Loss on disposalfwrite off of property,

plant and equipment
Fair value adjustments

Surplus/(loss) for the year

Prior period mSCOA reclassifications

Revenue
Service charges

Reclassificat

2020 Previously ion due to Adjustment 2020 Restated
reported mSCOA of errors

557 909 399 (1574 041) (3 135 7386) 553 199 622
1162 233 - - 1162 233
19 234 067 (19 234 067) - -
9118576 - - 9118 576
1231992 - - 1231992

51 053 506 (51 053 506) - -
12010 084 52 627 546 - 64 637 630

8 677 BE5 19 234 073 - 27 911 938
114 746 520 - (77 561) 114 668 959
10883012 {10883 012) - -
512 408 907 - - 512 408 907
80 000 - - 80 000

26 199 830 10883 012 - 37 082 842
(314 656 367) 3541771 - (311 114 596}
{26 976 534) 134 028 - {26 842 506}
(98 378 043) - (670 120) {99 048 183}
(9 236 673} - - {9 236 673}
{14 906 809) - - (14 906 809}
(22 971 747) - - (22 971 747)
(1 803 369) 1803 369 - -
(24 046 360) 24 046 360 - -
(389 694 217) - - (389 694 217)
(58 738 517) (25 848 730) - (84 588 247}
(42 736 650) - - {42 736 650}
(104 297 927) 9 656 837 (36 300) (94 677 380}
- (13 332 640) (99) {13 332 739)
{3 608 166) - - (3 608 166)
(50 000) - - (50 006)

212 604 612 - (3 919 816) 208 684 796

Due to the implementation of mSCOA certain comparative figures in “service charges” had to be reclassified to “other income” to

conform to changes in presentation in the current year.
The following figures had to be reclassified:

-R 1574 042 Service charges

» 2020/06/30 Reclassification of library membership from service charges to other income -R 22 985
*+ 2020/06/30 Reclassification of landing fees from service charges to other income -R 6 738.

» 2020/06/30 Reclassification of cemetery fees from service charges to other income -R 216 572,

+ 2020/08/30 Reclassification of indigent charges from service charges to other income -R 1 327 7486,
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62. Prior period adjustments and reclassifications {continued}

The effect of the corrections are as follows:

(Increase)Decrease in other income (R 1574 042)
(Increase)Decrease in service charges R.1.574 042
R 0

Interest received — trading

Due to the implementation of mSCOA the comparative figure of Interest received — Trading had to be reclassified fo interest
revenue to conform the changes in presentation in the current year,

The following figure had to be reclassified:

-R 19 234 067 Interest regeived — frading
+ 2020/06/30  Reclassification of interest received — trading to interest revenue -R 19 234 067,

The effect of the corrections are as follows:

(Increase)/Decrease In interest revenue (R 19 234 067}
(Increase)Decrease in interest received trading R 19 234 067
R 4]

Debt impairment reversal

Due fo the implementation of mSCOA the comparative figure of “debt impairment reversal” had fo be reclassified to “other
income" to conform the changes in presentation in the current year.

The following figures had to be reclassified:

-R 51053 506 Debt impairment reversat
+ 2020/06/30  Reclassification of debt impairment reversal to other revenue -R 51 053 506.

The effect of the corrections are as follows:

(Increase)/Decrease in other income {R 51 053 506)
(Increase)/Decrease in debt impairment reversal R 51 053 506
R 0

Other income

Due to the implementation of mSCOA the comparative figure of “debt impairment reversal” and certain figures of "service
charges” had to be reclassified to “other income” to conform to changes in presentation in the current year.

The following figures had to be reclassified:

R 52 627 548 Other income

+ 2020/06/30 Reclassification of debt impairment reversal to other revenue R51 053 506.
+ 2020/06/30 Reclassification of service charges to other income R22 985.

+ 2020/06/30 Reclassification of service charges to other income R6 738.

+ 2020/06/30 Reclassificafion of service charges to other income R216 572

« 2020/06/30 Reclassification of service charges to other income R1 327 746,

The effect of the corrections are as follows:

(Increase)/Decrease in debt impairment reversal R 51053 506

(Increase)/Decrease in service charges R 1574042

(Increase)/Decrease in other revenue (R 52 627 548}
R 0
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62. Prior period adjustments and reclassifications (continued)
Interest revenue

Due to the implementation of mSCOA the comparative figures of “interest received” - trading and “property rates — penalties
imposed” had to be reclassified to "Interest recelved — investments” to conform fo changes in presentation in the current year.

The following figures had to be raclassified:

R 19 234 067 _ [nterest revenue
= 2020/06/30 Reclassification of interest received — trading to interest revenue R 19 234 067.

The effect of the corrections are as follows:

(Increase)/Decrease in interest received trading R 19 234 067
(Increase)Decrease in Inferest revenue (R 19 234 067)
R 0

Property Rates — penalties imposed

Due to the implementation of mSCOA the comparative figure of “property rates — penalties imposed” had to be reclassified to
“fines, penalties and forfeits” to conform to changes in presentation of the current year,

The following figure had to be reclassified:

-R 10883012 Property rates- penalties imposed

» 2020/06/30 Reclassification of property rates — penalties imposed to fines, penalties and forfeits -R 10 883 012.

The effect of the correclions are as follows:

(increase)/Dacrease in property rates- penalties imposed R 10 883 012
{Increase)/Decrease In fines, penalties and forfeits (R 10 883 012}
R 0

Fines, penaities and forfeits

Bue to the implementation of MSCOA the comparative figure of “property rates — penalties imposed” had to be recfassified to
“fines, penalties and forfeits” to conform to changes in presentation of the current year,

The following figure had to be reclassified:

R.10883 012 Fines, penalties and forfeits
+ 2020/06/30 Reclassification of property rates — penaities imposed to fines, penalties and forfeits R 10 883 012.

The effect of the corrections are as follows:

(Increase)/Decrease in property rates- penalties imposed R 10883012
(Increase)Decrease in fines, penalties and forfeits (R 10 883 012}
R 0

Expenditure
Employee related cost

Due to the implementation of mSCOA certain comparative figures in "Employee Related Costs” had to be reclassified to
“General Expenses” to conform to changes in presentation in the current year.

The following had to be reclassified:

-R 3541772 Emplovee related costs

+ 2020/06/30 Reclassification of workmen's compensation from “employee related costs” to "general expenses”
-R 1 323 880

+ 2020/08/30 Reclassification of SETA from “employee related costs” {o “general expenses” -R2 217 892.
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62. Prior period adjustments and reclassifications {continued)

The effect of the corrections are as follows:

(Increase)Decrease in general expenses (R3541772)
(Increase)/Decrease in employee related costs R3541772
R 0

Remuneration of councillors

Due to the implementation of mSCCA cerfain comparative figures in the "remuneration of councillors” had to be reclassified to
"general expenses” {o conform to changes in presentation in the current year.

The following had to be reclassified:

-R 134 028 Remuneration of councillors
+ 2020/06/30 Reclassification of SETA in “remuneration of councillors" to "general expenses" -R 134 028,

The effect of the corrections are as follows:

{Increase)/Decrease in general expenses (R 134 028}
{Increase)/Decrease in remuneration of councillors R 134 028
R 4

Collection cost

Due to the implementation of mSCOA the “collection cost” allocations had to be reclassified to “contracted services” and
“general expenses” to conform to changes in presentation in the current year.

The following had to be reclassified:

-R 1803 369 Collection Cost

+ 2020/06/30 Reclassified collection cost recovered from “collection cost” to “contracted services"™ R 515 029.
+ 2020/06/30 Reclassified collection cost legal fees from “collection cost” to "contracted services™ R 1 288 340.

The effect of the corrections are as follows:

{Increase)/Decrease in Contracted Services (R 515 0289)

{Increase)/Decrease In Contracted Services (R 1288 340)

{Increase)/Decrease in Collection Cost R 1803 369
R 0

Repairs and mainfenance

Dug to the implementation of mSCOA the figures in “repairs and maintenance” had to be reclassified to “contracted services” to
conform to changes in presentation in the current year.

The following figure hat to be reclassified:

-R 24 046 360 Repairs and Maintenance
+ 2020/06/30  Reclassification of “repairs and maintenance” to "confracted services™ -R 24 046 360,

The effect of the corrections are as follows:

{Increase)Decrease in repairs and maintenance R 24 046 360
{Increase)Decrease in contracted services {R 24 046 360}
R 0

Contracted services

Due to the implementation of mSCOA certain comparative figures in “Collection cost and repairs and maintenance” had to be
reclassified to "Contracted Services” to conform to changes in presentation in the current year,

The following figure had to be reclassified:
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62. Prior period adjustments and reclassifications (continued)

R 25 849 729 Contracted Services
» 2020/06/30 Reclassification of “collection cost” to “contracted services” R 1 803 369.
« 2020/068/30  Reclassification of "repairs and maintenance" ltems from repairs and maintenance to "contracted services”

R 24 046 360.
The effect of the corrections are as follows:
{Increase)/Decrease in contracted services (R 1803 369)
{Increase)Decrease in collection cost R 1803 369
{Increase)/Decrease in repairs and maintenance R 24 046 360
(Increase)/Decrease in contracted services (R.24 048 360}
R 0

General expenses

Due to the implementation of mSCOA certain comparative figures of “employee related cost, remuneration of councillors” and
“collection cost” had to be reclassified to "general expenses”.Certain comparative figures of "general expenses” had to be
reclassified to “inventory consumed” . These reclassifications had to be done to conform to changes in presentation in the current
year.

The following had to be reclassified:

-R 9 656 837CGeneral expenses
+ 2020/06/30 Reclassification of workmen's compensation in from "employee related cost” to "general expenses”
R 1323 880.
+ 2020/06/30  Reclassification of SETA from "employee related cost’ to “general expenses” R 2 217 892,
» 2020/06/30  Reclassification of consumables from “general expenses” o “inventory consumed”-R 11 531 496,
+ 2020/06/30  Reclassification of housing stock from “general expenses” to "inventory consumed” -R 936 907,
+ 2020/06/30  Reclassification of material and supplies from “general expenses” to “inventory consumed” -R 850 218
« 2020/06/30  Reclassification of remuneration of councillors to "general expenses” R1i34 028,
« 2020/06/30  Reclassification of "printing and staticnary” {0 "inventory consumed" -R 14 017.

The effect of the corrections are as follows:

{Increase)/Decrease in employee related cost R 3541772
{Increase)/Decrease in inventory consumed (R 13 332 637))
{Increase)/Decrease in remuneration of counciffors R 134 028
{Increase)/Decrease in general expenses R 9656 837
R 0

Inventory consumed

Due {o the implementation of mSCOA the comparative figure of "repairs and maintenance” as it was disclosed previously and
certain figures of "general expenses” had to be reclassified to "inventory consumed” to conform the changes in presentation in
the current year.

The following figures had fo be reclassified:

R 13 3328637 Inveniory Consumed

+ 2020/06/30 Reclassification of “consumables” from “general expenses” to “inventory consumed” R 11 531 498.

« 2020/06/30  Reclassification of “housing stock” from "general expenses” to "Inventory consumed” R 936 907.

= 2020/06/30 Reclassification of “material and supplies” from “general expenses” to “inventory consumed” R 850 218.
+ 2020/06/30 Reclassification of "printing and stationary” fo "inventory consumed” R 14 017,

The effect of the corrections are as follows:

(Increase)/Decrease in general expenses R 13332 637
(Increase)Decrease in inventory consumed (R 13332 637)
R 0
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62. Prior pericd adjustments and reclassifications (continued)

Cash Flow Statement

Cash flows from operating activities
Receipts

Taxation revenue

Granis

Interest income

Sale of goods and services

Payments

Employee costs

Suppliers

Finance cost

Transfer of property, plant and equipment
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment
Sale of Investment property

Purchase of other intangible assets
Purchase of heritage assets

Movement of financial assets

Cash flow from financing activities
Repayment of other financial abilities
Finance lease payments

Commitments

Authorised expendifure

Already contracted but not provided for
Property plant and equipment

Other financial assets

Total commitments: Already contracted but not provided for

The expenditure will be financed by

Internal advances
MIG grants
DBSA loan

Contingencies

Contingent liabilities
Contlngent assels

63. Municipality acting as an agent

Agency fees received

i10

2020 Previously

Reclassificati

2020 Restated

reported on due to
mSCOA
126 629 532 (10 960 573) 114 668 959
471649 877 17 661 471727 538
8 677 865 30 117 079 38 794 944
545 455 136 (19 234 174) 526 220 962
(346 979 579) 3675799 (343 303 780)
(632 145 890) {3 557 690) (835 703 580)
(13 571 398) - (13 571 398)
34 036 003 - 34 036 003
(174 556 001) (118 098) (174 674 099)
- (109 999} (109 999)
- 110 000 110 000
(202 341) - (202 341)
(5 958) - (5 958)
10411 684 3 10 411 687
(162 942} (6} (162 948)
(53 232} (2) (53 234}
28 182 756 - 28 182 756
2020 Adjustment of 2020 restated
previously errors
stated
108 504 226 (7 254 304} 101 249 922
57 262 503 15 296 877 72 559 380
165 766 729 8 042 573 173 809 302
2020 Adjustment of 2020 Restated
previously errors
stated
56 964 202 15 595 178 72 559 380
101 249 922 - 101 249 922
7 552 605 {7 552 605) -
165 766 729 8 042 573 173 809 302
2020 Adjustment of 2020 restated
previously errors
reported
85 067 524 281 500 85 349 024
4043 840 276 088 4319928
89 111 364 557 588 89 668 952
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Mopani District Municipality 1 566 632 1277 994

Department of Transport 9186733 7 840 582
10 763 365 9118 576

Receivables

Mopani District Municipality 304 247 804 284 610 263

Dapartment of Transport - .

Payables
Mopani District Municipality -
Department of Transport 4721 561 -

Mopani District Municipatity

Grealer Tzaneen Municipality the water and sewer service provider is responsible for the management of the water and sewer
service system in accordance with the business plan and approved budget so that it is operational and efficient, which Includes
but not limited to leakage confrol and repairs automation and replacement of certain parts, equipment's and machinery.

The Municipality the WSP is providing water service to the consumers within the water service area in accordance with the
Cooperative Governance Agreement entered into between the WSP and WSA on 1 July 2016.

Department of Transport

Greater Tzaneen Municipality shall be obligated o perform motor vehicle and licensing functions and shall be responsible for, in
terms of applicable national and provincial road traffic legislation, and the agreement between the Municipality and the
Department of Transport,

The agreement shall commence on the 1st day of April 2018 and shall be in force and valid for a period of three years.

64. Events after the reporting date

The Accounting Officer , Mr BS Maflala resigned with effect from 20 August 2021 and on 24 August 2021 Councit appointed Mr
HA Nkuna as Acting Municipal Manager.

65, Comparative figures

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified.

All Municipalities are required to comply with mSCOA as from the 1st July 2017. The Municipality have implemented the
mSCOA and comparative figures have been reclassified and restated to conform to changes in presentation in the current year.

The effects of the reclassification are indicated in Note 62.
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66. Segment information

General information

Identification of segments

The municipalily is organised and reports to management on the basis of three major functional areas: trading services,
community and public safety services and economic environmental services. The segments were organised around the type
of service delivered. Management uses these same segments for determining strategic objectives. Segments were not
aggregated for reporting purposes.

Information reported about these segments is used by management as a basis for evaluating the segments’ performances
and for making decisions about the allocation of resources. The disclosure of information about these segments is also
considered appropriate for external reporting purposes.

Types of goods andfor services by segment

These reportable segments as well as the goods andfor services for each segment are set out below:

Reportable segment Services

Segment 1 Trading services

Segment 2 Community and public safety services
Segment 3 Economic environmental services

Segment surplus or deficit, assets and liabilities

2021

Trading Community Economic Total

services and public  environmental

safety services

Revenue
Revenue from non-exchange transactions 136 431 801 59 404 - 136491 205
Revenue from exchange transactions 336 317 0563 2431769 46968 338795790
Total segment revenue 472 748 854 2491173 46 968 475286 995
Entity’s revenue 1397 350 077
Expenditure
Salaries and wages 146462722 42970447 13636442 2030689611
Cther expenses 134 924 318 8 426 333 10275097 153625748
Bulk purchases 407 786 362 - - 407 786 362
Depreciation and amortisation 93 813 830 7 364 517 520704 101708 051
Total segment expenditure 782 987 232 58 761 297 24441243 BG6 180 772
Total segmental surplus/{deficit) (531 160 304)
Assets
Current assets 612 157 148 9 804 191 - 622061339
Non-current assels 1748 204 447 - - 1748 204 447
Total segment assets 2 360 361 595 9904 191 - 2370 265786
Total assets as per Statement of financial Position 2 654 106 697
Liabilities
Current liabilities 749 147 000 566 195 - 749713195
Non-current liabilities 234 618 671 - - 234618671
Total segment liabilities D83 765 671 566 195 - 984 331 866
Total liabilities as per Statement of financial Position 584 962 736
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66. Segment information {continued)

2020

Revenue
Revenue from non-exchange transactions
Revenue from exchange transactions

Total segment revenue
Entity's revenue

Expenditure

Salaries and wages

Other expenses

Bulk purchases

Depreciation and amortisation

Total segment expenditure
Total segmental surplus/(deficit)

Assets
Current assets
Non-current assets

Total segment assets

Total assets as per Statement of financial Position
Liabilities

Current fliabilities

Total liabilities as per Statement of financial Position

Trading Community Economic Total
services and public  environmental
safety sefvices
130 241 173 135 870 72920 130449983
592 396 695 2110 058 282786 594 789539
722 637 868 2245 928 365706 725239 502
1321 492 693
131085677 43445743 13825941 188 357 361
123714 402 5 688 649 9567 166 138 970 217
389 694 217 - - 389694 217
94 299 368 - 406 700 94 706 068
738793664 49134392 23799807 811727 863
(86 488 361)
676 605 398 - - 676605 398
1704 694 012 - - 1704 694 012
2381299 410 - - 2381299410
2381299 410
337038138 204 685 546 - B41723 684
540 874 064
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Loan Stock

STANDARD BANK

Annuity loans

DBSA
DBSA
ABSA
DBSA
DBSA
ACCRUED INTEREST

Total external loans

Loan Stock
Annuity loans

Schedule of external loans as at 30 June 2021

Balance at 30 Received Redeemed Balance at 30
June 2020 during the written off June 2021
period during the
period
Rand Rand Rand Rand
30 000 000 - - 30 000 00O
30 000 000 - - 30 000 000
- 30 000 000 678 412 29 321 588
28 476 073 - 1973799 26 502 274
15182 352 - 1871239 13311113
39 271 550 - 3104 895 36 166 655
19 820 943 - 1608 479 18 012 464
741 957 - 20 050 721 907
103 292 875 30 000 000 9 256 874 124 036 001
30 000 000 - - 30 000 000
103 292 875 30 000 000 9 256 874 124 036 001
133 292 875 30 000 000 9 256 874 154 036 001
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Greater Tzaneen Municipality

Appendix B

Land

Infrastuctuze

Roads
Storm water
Electricity
Solid waste

Cemmunity Assets

Airports
Parks & Gardens
Community halls
Market stalls
Libraries

Museums
Recreational facilities
Taxi ranks
Cemeteries

Analysis of property, plant and equipment as at 30 June 2021

Cost/Revaluation Accumulated depreciation
Opening Additions Disposalsf Transfers Revaluations Other changes, Closing Opening Disposalsf Transfers Depreciation Impairment Joss Clesing Carrying

Balance Write offs mo: I; Write offs Balance value

Rand Rand Rand Rand Rand Rand Rand Rand Rand Rand Rand Rand Rand Rand
117 540 197 - - - - 117 540 197 - - - - - - 117 540 197
117 540 197 - - - - 117 540 187 - - - - p u 147 540 197
1165 112 944 57 2588 140 - - - 1222372084 (7204085872} - - (4% 527 178) - (761 623 050} 460 748034
139 119 704 27 833 547 - - - 166953251 (53 790651} - - {6 099 431) - (59 830 082} 107 053 169
924 734 572 27 814 511 (892 765} - - 951 656 318 (451 791 598) 551 352 - (39 564 501} (1826 209) {452 630956} 459 025 362
54 055 804 u - - - 54 055904 (18 593 160) - - {1 766 B09) - (20759 789) 33296 115
2283023124 112907198 (832 765) - - 2 395 037 557 (1 244 671 301) 551352 - (88 957 719} (1 826 209),1 334 503 877) 1 D60 133 €80
18 685 376 - - - - 18 685 376 (9 830 695} - - (539 098) - (10 369 793} 8315583
9278 136 - . - . 9278136 (2211 256} - - (33 580) - (2 244 838) 7033300
18 516 951 - - - - 18 516 951 {4 105 237} - - (617 232} - (4722463} 13794 482
672019 1 696 966 - - - 2 BE8 985 (303 429) - - (108 19y - {411 448) 2257 537
7 542 888 - . - . 7 542 88B (1071334} - - (20 173} - (1092 107) 6450 781
1307 643 - ~ - - 1 307 843 (289 085) - - B3715) - {292 800) 1014 B43
126 711 933 - - - - 126 711933 (20384 202) - - {5341 775) - (34 725977y ©1885956
13 596 842 9110 266 - - - 22709138 {4 074 628} - - (930 354) - (5004 982) 17704156
3324 000 - - - - 3324 000 - - - - - - 3324 000
193 637 788 11 107 262 - - - 210 745 050 (51 270 466) - - {7 593 948) - (58 864 412) 151 830 638
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Greater Tzaneen Municipality

Appendix B

Ceonstruction Work in Progress

Work in progress

Computer equipment
Furniture & Office equipment
Machinery and equipment
Transport assets

Leased assets
Leased assets

Other assets

Health equipment
Security measures
Weapons

Minor asssts

Analysis of property, plant and equipment as at 30 June 2021

Cost/Revaluation Accumulated depreciation
QOpening Additions Pisposals! Transfers Revaluations Other changes, Closing Openi Disp Is/ Blepreciation Impairment loss Closing Carmrying
Balance Write offs movements Balance Balance Write offs Balance value
Rand Rand Rand Rand Rand Rand Rand Rand Rand Rand Rand Rand Rand
154 780 136 115006 643 - {116 662 541) - - 153 424 238 - - - {1078 741) {1079 741} 152 044 497
154 780 136 115 D06 643 - [116 682 541) - - 153124238 - N - {1079 741) (1079741} 152044497
5800783 - (15 408) - - 5785375 4 720 156} 12 326 {485 380) - {5193 419) 591 965
4049791 517 860 {18 419) - - 4549232 (2 971 338) 15476 (318 493) - {3 274 356} 1274876
9770 532 820 427 {20 160} - - 10 570 789 (5 669 835) 17 472 (1300 §34) - (6952 997} 3617802
41 165 838 4967 064 - - - 46132902 (35 585 843) - {1820174) - {37 406 017) 8726 B85
20 181 594 - (91 622) - - 20089 972 {11 981 928) 25 221 {3 983 559) - {15 940 266) 4149706
20 181 594 - (9% 622) . - 20 089972 (11581 928) 25 221 {3 983 558) - {15 940 266) 4 449 706
42 983 188 6490 612 - - - - 49473800 {22617 788) - {1259 975) - (23 BY?T 763) 25596 037
170 812 - - - - - 170 812 (167 146} - {1 670) - (168 B16) 1996
1813324 350 250 - - - . 2163 574 (225 048} - (410 108) - (635154) 1528420
105 048 - - - - - 105 048 {86 468) e {2 852) - {99 318) 5730
857 445 g188 (3 079) - - 0 863 564 (853 801) 3 065 {9 186) - (860 022) 3542
45929 817 £ 850 060 {3 079) - - - 52776798 (23 960 349) 3 065 {1683 789) - {25641 073) 27135723
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Appendix B

Total property plant and equipment

Land

Infrastructure

Community Assets
Caonstruction Work in Progress
Computer equlpment
Furniture and office equipment
Machinery and plant
Transport assets

Leased assets

Other assets

intangible assets

Computer- software

[nvestment properties

Investment property

Herifage assets

Mayers chain & councit gowns

Totat

Land

Infrastructure

Community Assets
Construction Work in Progress
Computer equipment
Furniture and office equipment
Machinery and plant
Transport assels

Leased assets

Other assets

Intangltle assets

Heritage assets

Investment property

Analysis of property, plant m:n equipment as at 30 June 2021

Cost/Revaluation Accumulated depreciation
Opening Additions : Is/ T i Other changes, Closing Opening Disposals/ Transfers Depreciation Impairment loss Closing Carrying

Balance Write offs movements Balance Balance Write offs Balance value

Rand Rand Rand Rand Rand Rand Rand Rand Rand Rand Rand Rand Rand Rand
117 540 197 - - - - - 117 540 197 - - - - - 117 540 187
2283023124 112907 198 {892 765) - - ~ 2395037 557 1244 671 301} 5651362 (88 957 719} (1 826 209),1 334 903 877) 1 080 133 580
199637788 11 107 262 - - - - 210745050 (51270 466) - {7 583 846) - (58 864 412) 151880 638
164 780136 115006643 - {116 662 541) - - 153 124238 - - “ (1079 741} (1079741} 152 044 467
5800 783 - (15 408} - - - STB53TS (4720 156} 12 326 (485 580) - (5193 410) 591 865
4048 7%1 517 860 {18 419} - - - 4 549232 {2 971 339} 15476 (318 493) - {3 274 356} 1274 876
8 770532 820427 (20 160} - - - 10 570 799 (5 669 835} 17 472 {1 300 634) - {6 952 8397} 3617 802
41 165 838 4 967 064 - - - - 46 132902 (35 585843} - (1 820 174} - (37 406 017) 8726 885
20 181 584 - (o1 6822} - - - 20089972  (119881928) 25221 (3 983 559} - {15 940 2686) 4149706
45929 817 6 850 080 (3079) - - - 52776798 (23 050 349) 3085 (1 683 789} - (25641 073) 27135725
2881879600 252176514 (1041 453) {116 662 541) - - 3016352120 1380 831 217) 624 912 (106 143 834) (2 D05 950) 1 485 256 149) 1 527 095 971
3962 382 - - - - - 3962 382 {3217 911) - {287 184} - (3 505 105) 457 217
3 962 382 - - - u - 3 962 382 {3 217 811) - {287 194) - (3 505 105) 457 277
181 586 803 - - - - - 181 586 803 - - - - - 181 586 803
181 586 803 - - - - - 181 586 803 - - - - - 181 586 803
200 858 - ~ - - - 200 958 - - - - - 200 958
200 958 - - - - - 200 958 - - - - - 200 858
117 540 187 - - - - - 117 540 197 - - - - - 117 540 197
2283023124 112907 198 « {692 755) - - 2 395 037 557 |1 244 671301) 551352 (88 957 719} (1826208) (1334903 877) 1 060 133 680
199637788 11107 262 - - - - 227 602 674 (51 270 466) - {7 503 846} - (58 864 412) 158713915
154 780136 115006 643 - - {116 662 541} - 153 124 234 - - - {1079 741) (1079741} 152044 483
5800 783 - - {16 408) - - 5785375 (4 720 158) 12326 (485 580} - {5 193 410} 591 865
4049791 517 868 - {18 419) - “ 4549232 {2971 339) 15 476 {318 493) - (3 274 356) 1274876
9770532 820 427 - {20 180} - - 10 570799 {5 669 835) 17 472 (1300 6343 - {6952 397) 3617 802
41 165 838 4 967 064 - - - - 461329802 {35585 843) 25201 (1820 174} - (37 406 017) 8726 885
20 181 584 - - a1 622) - - 20089972 {11981 928) 3065 (3 983 569) - (15940 266) 4 149706
45 924 817 6850 060 B (3079) - - 35913176 {23 960 349) . (1683 7689} - (25 641 073) 207302 449
3962382 - - - - - 3 062 382 3217 911) - {287 194) - (3 505 105) 467 277
2004858 - - - - - 200958 - - - - - 200 958
181 586 803 - - - - - 181 586 803 - - “ - - 181 586 803
3067 629 743 252176 514 - {1041 453} (116 662 541) - 3202102 261 1 384 049 128} 624 912 (106 431 D88) {2905 950) (1492 761 254) 1 709 341 D06
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Appendix B

Land and buildings

Land

Infrastructure

Roads
Storm water
Electricity
Sofid waste

Community Assets

Airperts

Parks & Gardens
Community halls
Market stalis
Libraries

Museums
Recreational facilifes
Taxl Ranks
Cemeteries

Analysis of property, plant and equipment as at 30 June 2020

Cost/Revaluation Accumulated depreciation
Cpening Additions DispesalsVi T £ R I Other changes, Closing Opening  Disposals/Wri  Transfers Depreciation Impairment loss Clasing Carrying

Balance e Offs movements Balance Balance te Offs Balance value

Rand Rand Rand Rand Rand Rand Rand Rand Rand Rand Rand Rand Rand Rand
117 540 197 - - B - - 117 540 197 ~ - - - “ - 117 540 167
117 840 197 - - - - - 117 540 137 - - - - - - 117 548 197
1162 885 818 7285087 (5057 961) - - - 1165112944 (680930 733) 3473939 - (38 776 643} (2 854 434} (720 096 871} 445017 072
138 614 141 505 563 - - - - 138118 704 (48272 500} - - ({5 D63 681} {448 470} (53 790651) B5328053
8904 531 108 23 247 263 3 103 800) - - - 0924 734 572 (412391 624) 2233 654 - (35 699 859) (5633 769) (451 791508) 472942074
54 055 904 - - - - - 54 055904 {17 226 570) - - {1 766 B0} - {18993 179) 35062725
2 260 146 972 31037 M3 (8 161 761) - - - 2283023124 1 158 830 427) 5707 593 - (82 312 762} (9 236 873) 1 244 672 299} 1 038 351 824
18685375 - - - - - 18 685 376 (9 289 630} - - (541 1B5) - (9 830 695) 8 854 681
8198136 80 000 - - - - 5278136 (2172443} - - (31 813) - (2 211 256) 7 065 B8O
18 516 951 - - . - - 18 516 951 (3 488 005} - - {617 232) “ (4105237) 14411714
872018 - - - - - 672 018 (280 096) . - (23 333) - (303 429) 368 580
7 542888 - - - - - 7 542 888 (10517582} - - (20173) - {1 671 935) 6470953
1307 643 - - . - - 1307 643 (285 370) - - {3 715) - (289 085) 1018558
126 711 933 - - - - - 126711933 (24 024 935) - - {5359 267) - (20 384 202) 97 327 731
13 508 842 - - - - “ 13 598 842 (3417 125} - - (657 503) - (4 074 628) 9524 214
3 324 000 - - - - . 3 324 000 - - - - - - 3 324 000
199 557 788 80 000 - - - - 199 637 788 (44 016 266) - - (7 254 201) = (5% 270 467) 148 367 31
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Greater Tzaneen Municipality

Appendix B

Ceonstruction Work in Progress

Work In progress

Computer Equipment
Furnifure & Office Equipment
Machirery and Equipment
Transport assets

Leased assets
-‘Leased assets

Other assets

Buildings

Health equipment
Security measures
Weapons

Minar assets

Analysis of property, plant and equipment as at 30 June 2020

Cost/Revaluation Accumulated depreciation
Opening Additions DisposalsWri  Transfers Revaluations Other changes, Closing Opening DisposalsiWri Transfers Depreciation Impairment loss Clesing Carrying
Balance te Offs. movements Balance Balance te Offs Balance value
Rand Rang Rand Rand Rand Rand Rand Rand Rand Rand Rand Rand Ranc Rand
53854891 135807 337 (846 080) (34 036 003) - - 154 780 135 - - - - - - 154 780 135
53 854891 135 BO7 337 {846 090} (34 D36 DO3) - - 154 780 435 - “ - - - - 154 780 135
8 498 555 62178 (2759 951} . - n 5800783  (678499%) 2632571 - (567 728) - (4720 156) 1080627
5056 831 205 899 {1212 900} - - - 4049 791 (3 906 669) 1 205 660 - (269 731) - (2 871 335) 1078 452
9851 794 1435 964 {1521 226} - - - 9770532 (6 110 029) 1511 610 - - - (5 669 835) 4 100 897
41 165 964 - (126) - - - 41165838 (33 750 851) 125 - (1835117) - {35 585 B43) 5579 995
16 928 414 4 536 740 (283 561) - - - 20 181 593 - - - (3 BB& 583) - (11 981 928) 8 199 665
15 928 414 4 536 740 {283 561} - - “ 20 181 593 - - - (3 BBB 583) - (11 881 928) 8 189 665
41 862672 1281035 {160 518) - - - 42583189 (21 697 940) 120 361 {1 040 209) - - (22 B17 788) 20 385401
233290 . (62 477) - - - 170 813 (227 492) 82477 (2131} - - (167 146} 3667
82 531 1762843 (32 150) - - - 1813324 (54 758) 31861 (202 151) - - (225 048} 1688 276
105048 - - - - - 105 048 (93 301) - (3164} - - (96 465) 8583
3 288 521 7 945 (439 021) - - - 857 445 {1 283 980) 438 010 (7 931) - - (853 501} 3544
43 572 062 3 051923 (694 166) - - - 45929 819 (23 357 471) 652 709 {1.255 586} - - (23 560 348} 21969471
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Appendix B

Total preperty plant and equipment

Land and buildings
infrastructure

Communlty Assels
Construction Work in Progress
Computer Equipment

Furniture and Office Equipment

Machinery and Plant
Transport Assets
Leased Assets
Gther Assets

Intangible assets

Computer- Seftware

Heritage assets

Mayors chain & Councli gowns

Investment properties

Irvestment properly

Total

Land and buildings
infrastructure

Community Assels
Construction Work in Progress
Cormputer equipment
Furniture and offica equipment
Machinery and plant
Transport assets

Leased assets

Cther assets

intangible assets

Investment property

Heritage assets

Analysis of property, plant and equipment as at 30 June 2020

Cost/Revaluation Accumulated depreciation
Opening Additions  Disposals/Wri  Transfers Revaluations Gther changes, Closing Opening  DispesalsfWri  Transfers Depreciation Impairment loss Closing Carrying

Balance te Offs movements Balance Balance {e Offs Balance value

Rand Rand Rand Rand Rand Rand Rand Rand Rand Rand Rand Rand Rand Rand
117 540 197 - - - - - 117 540 187 - - - - - - 117 540 197
2280 146 972 31037 13 (8161 781} - - - 2283023 124 1 158 830 428) 5708 583 - (82 312 793) (2 236 €73) (1244 871301) 1 038 351 823
1988 557 788 80 000 - - - - 216495412 {53703 921) 2442 - {7 254 201) - (61125 371) 448 367 321
53854 891 135807 337 (846 090) (34 036 003} - - 154 780 136 - - - - - - 354 780 135
5498 555 62179 (2 759 851) - ~ - 580D T7B3 {6 784 999} 2832571 - {567 728) - (4 720 156) 1080 627
5056 861 205 889 {1272 890) - - - £ 049791 {3 906 668} 1205 060 - {269 731) - (2971 339) 1078 452
9851794 1439 964 {1521 228) - - - 9770 532 {8 110 028) 1511810 - {1071 4186) - (5 B6D B35) 4 100 697
41 185 564 - (126} - - " 14 165838 {33750 851) 125 - {1835 117} - (35 585 B43} 5579995
15928 414 4 536 740 {283 561) - - - 20 181 594 {8 364 381) 271035 - (3 888 583} - (11 981 628} B 159 665
436720862 3051923 {694 166) - - - 45929 819 (23 357 471) 652 709 - {1255 556} - (23960 348) 21868471
2755173518 176221955 {15479871) (34036 003) - - 2880331744 1294808749 11984145 - (88 455 155) (9 236 673) (1390 £86 121) 1 591 048 383
3 760 040 202 341 - - - - 3 962 381 (2 624 503} - B {593 008} - (3217 911) 744 470
3 760 040 202 341 - - - - 3962 381 {2 624 803) - - {593 008) - {3217 911) 744 470
195 000 5 958 - - - - 200 958 - - - - - - 200 958
195 080 5958 - - - - 200 958 - - - - - - 200 958
181 746 803 - {10 000} - (50 000} - 181586803 - - - - - - 181585 803
181 746 803 - {118 040) - (50 000} - 181 586 803 - - - - - - 181 586 803
117 540 187 . - - v - 117540197 “ - - . - - 117540197
2 260 146 972 31037913 (B 161 761) - - . 2283023124 1158 830427) 5708 593 - (82312792) (9236 673)'1 244 £71 301) 1 038 351 823
199 557 788 20 000 - - - - 199 637 788 (44 016 266) 2442 - (¥ 264 201) - {51270 467) 148 367 321
53 854 891 135807 337 (846 080) (34 036 003) - - 154 780 135 - - - - - - 154 750 135
§ 498 555 62178 {2 758 951) - - - 5800 783 (6 784 993) 2832571 - (567 728} - {#720 156} 1080 627
5056 881 205 899 {1212990) - - - 4049 780 {2 906 669) 1205060 - {269 731} - {2 971339 1078 4582
9851 794 1430 864 (1521 226) - - - 8770 532 {6 110 028) 1511610 - (1071416} - (5 669 835) 4100 687
41 165 964 - (126) - - - 41165838 (33750851} 125 - (1835 117) “ {35 585 843) 5579 995
15928 414 4536 740 (283 581) - - - 20 181 593 (8354 381} 271 035 - {3 888 583) - {11 881 928) 8 169 665
43 572 062 3051923 (894 166) - - - 45929819 {23357 471) 652 709 - {1 255 586) - {23960 348) 21 969 471
3780040 202 341 - - - - 3962381 (2524 903} - - {593 008) - 3217911 744 470
181 746 803 - (110 000) - {50 ¢OQ} - 181 586 803 - - - - . - 181 586 803
185 000 £ 958 - - - - b0 958 - - - - - - 200 958
2940 87536% 176430254 (15589 871) (34 036 003) (50 60D} « BJOBTE29741 11287 TA5996) 11984945 - {95 048 162) {9 236 673)71 384 049 1238) 1 683 580 614
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Appendix C

Segmental analysis of property, plant and equipment as at 30 June 2021

Cost/Revaluation Accumulated Depreciation
Opening Additions Write Offs Transfers Revaluations Other changes, Closing Opening Write Offs Transfers Depreciation Impairment loss Clesing Carrying
Balance movements Balance Batance Balance value
Rand Rand Rand Rand Rand Rand Rand Rand Rand Ranc Rand Rand Rand Rand
Municipality
Munlcipat Manager 3211857 80 712 (20 160} - - - 3252209 (2 116 423) 17 472 - {405 791) - (2 504 T42) TAT 487
Planning and Development/Economic 302 054 730 1217 - - - - 302 055 947 {2 028 837) - - {403 336) - (2432173) 289623774
Developmant/Plan
Financial Service 4 538 756 113 326 (B80) - - - 4 651 402 {3 137 587) 679 - (647 920) - (3 784 808) 866 504
Comporate Service 17 484 787 402 929 (107 028) - - - 17 750 657 (10 185 630) 37 547 - (2912777) - {13 060 BED) 4 683 797
Engineering Service 15130765828 180172121 - {30 185 502) - - 1603063548 (B26882774) - - (50 286 149) {975 393) (878 144 316) 724 919232
Community Service 240 302 955 10 676 843 (20 818) - - - 251258980 (70 884 588} 17 862 - {& 507 B76) - (80 774 612} 170484 368
Electrical Engineering 986 563 961 60 447 450 (892 7685) {26 477 038) - - 1020067 607 {468 813 309) 551352 - (41 865 320) (1830 557) (512 057 834} 508009773
367 620745 252 174 598 {1 041 452) (116 662 54%) - - 3202 100 350 |1 384 049 128) 624 812 - {106 429 ¥79) (2 905 950) 1 492 759 345) 1 708 341 005
Total 3067629745 252174 598 {1 041 452) (116 662 541) - - 3202100350 1 384 D49 128) 624 912 - {106 425 179) {2 905 950) 1 492 759 345) 1 709 341 005

Page 121
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Appendix D

Segmental Statement of Financial Performance for the year ended
Current Year

Prior Year

Actual Actual Surplus Actual Actual Surplus
Income  Expenditure /(Deficit) Income  Expenditure /(Deficit}
Rand Rand Rand Rand Rand Rand

Municipality
298 001 40 898 518 (40 600 517)Executive & CouncllfMayor and Council - 46 046 055 (46 046 055)
597 070 032 202 158 835 384 911 197 Finance & Admin/Finance 036 149 685 235 740 244 700 409 441
355706 23992300 (23636 594)Planning and Development/Economic 46 577 24 586 985 (24 540 408)
Development/Plan
76081 10642819 (10 566 738)Health/Clinics - 1BO77 450 (18077 450)
32515 9640094 (9607 579)Comm. & Social/Libraries and archives 10799 131731986 (13 162 397)
1866536 14302726 (12436 190)Housing 1062932 14106284 (13043 352)
24771945 20780085 3991 860 Public Safety/Police 13988260 17360626 (3372 366)
303 310 22566204 (22 262 894)Sport and Recreation 1301763 22551122 (21249 359)
38877 367 85998451 (47 121 084)Waste Water Management/Sewerage 45101 161 81802 142 (36 700 881}
91 151 355 130 349 874 (39 198 519)Road Transpori/Roads 123 394 202 139787 873 (16393 671}
566 B8O 845 551441696 15 248 149 Electricity /Electricity Distribution 254 541 919 572 027 496 {317 485 577)
321 492693 112771602 208 721 091 375 597 208 185259473 190 337 825
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Greater Tzaneen Municipality
Appendix E(1)

Actual versus Budget (Revenue and Expenditure) for the year ended 30 June

2021
Current year Current year
2021 2021
Act. Bal, Adjusted Variance Explanation of Significant Variances
budget greater than 10% versus Budget
Rand Rand Rand Var

Revenue

Property rates 128 625 627 120 000 000 9625627 8,0 Theincrease is due to supplementary valuation and
new development.

Service charges 499 551 898 616 159132 (116 607 234) (18,9)The lower than expecled revente o, sarvice charges
is due to lower than anticlpated revenue billed for
electriclty,

Fines, penalties and 23009774 51001 137 (27 921 383) (54,9) The disclosure of fines has been done in accordance

forfeits with GRAP and resulting in fotal fines issues

disclosed whilst the budgeted amount represeats only
cash received.

Rental of facilities and 222 530 2328100 (2105 570) (90,4)Mastof the facilliies were stopped from being rented
due to implementation of COVID-19 regulations,

equipment

Income from agency 10763364 22664291 (11900 927) (52,5) The budgeted amount includes the revenue received

services on behalf of the agency which cannct be regarded as
own tevente, only 20% is recognised as own
revenie,

Licences and permits 210 088 917 000 (7[)6 002) (77l{))Ths variance is due to higher than expected revenue
from the issuing of licences and permits esgsecially
buifding plans and registration approvai, clearance
certificates issued and lown planning application fees,

Public contributions and 13 508 381 - 13 508 391 100,0 The Municipality received a doration of Roads and

donations Flectricity Infrustructure at a new Tzaneen Extension

84 from the Properly Developer.

Cther income 63 245 680 7702705 55 542 975 721,1 The Municipality received a donation of Roads and
Elsclricity Infrustructure at a new Tzaneen Extension
84 from the Properly Developer.

Governement grants and 627 038613 629 402 000 (2 363 387) {0,4)The budgeled amount includes the revenue for VAT

and administration fees which is regarded as own

subsidies
revenus.

Interest revenus 29 667 610 27 901 000 1766610 6,3 Theincrease is as a result of shorl -lerms investment
made during the year, annual capitalisation of interest
on investment, inferest earned on bank account and
late payment of debtors account.

396844 485 1478075365  (B12308B0) (5,5)

Expenses

Employee costs {352 143 9741(339 639 118) {12504 856) 3,7

Remuneration of (27 036 544) (29034 983) 1998439  (6,)The subsistonce & travalling project under Counc

councillors remuneration underspent due to COVID restriction

measures,

Depreciation and (106 431 093)(132 970 807) 26539714 (20,0)Pepreciation reduced dus to the prior year review of

amortisation useful life.

Inventory consumed (42 B91 164) (66 180 253) 16 489 089 (24,9)The lower than anlicipaled spending Is due to the

under expenditure on Materiais and supplies.
impairment of assels (2 905 950) - (2 905 950} 100,0 Pl;ysllcal fifamaged of electricity and roads
infrastructure,

Finance costs (19962 159) (18 385324) (1576835} 8,6 Anadditional loan was laken willh DBSA for R30

million 1o finance Electricily projects

Debt Impairment (19 018 00B) (70 035 699) 51017 693 (72,8)

Bulk purchases (407 786 362)(407 663 500} (122 862} -

Coniracted Services (71444 076) (6% 194 909) (10249 167} 16,7 The lower than anticipated spending 15 due fo the

under expenditure on coniracted services securily,

Transfers and subsidies (34 977 217) (31 351 814) (3625403) 11,6 The low spendig is due to INEP grani projects
undesspending,

General Expenses {91 086 232)(131 621 155) 40 534 923 (30,8) The lower than anlicipated spending is due to the

vehicle licencing costs transferred to department of
transport,

182 4B2 777) 288 077 562) 105594 785  (8,2)

Other revenue and cosis

Gain or loss on disposal (416 540} - (416 540) 100,0 Loss on disposal due to stolen assels witlen off and
of assets replaced dilapidaied assels,
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Appendix E(1)

Actual versus Budget (Revenue and Expenditure) for the year ended 30 June

2021

Current year Current year

2012
Act. Bal.

2012
Adjusted Variance Explanation of Significant Variances
budget greater than 10% versus Budget

Net surplus/ {deficit} for
the year

213945 168 189997 803 23 947 365

12,6
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Greater Tzaneen Municipality

Appendix E(2)

Municipality

Executive & Council/Mayor and
Councii
Finance & Admin/Finance

Planning and
Development/Economic
Development/Plan
Health

Comm. & Soclal/Libraries and
archives

Housing

Sport and Recreation

Road transport

Electricity /Electricity Distribution

Budget Analysis of Capital Expenditure as at 30 June

2021

Additions Revised Variance Variance

Explanation of significant
variances from budget

- The overspending is due to purchase of
Safety Desk Screen for prevetion of COVID-
18 spread when employess and attending to

clients.

43 The overspending Is due to the acquisition of
IT equipments through finance lease.
100 The underspending is due to delay in council

approval for GIS stralegy.

100 The overspending is due to the construction
of a wall for grease and ofl trays and fraps.

100 The delay in appointment of Service provider
was mainly due to COVID-19 measures and
rescheduling of procuremant processes.

(58} The high expenditure is due o procurement
of Civic Centre Lift Elevator which was under

budgeled.

19 The low spending on spori and recreation
wa$ due lo the disruption of procurernent

processes due to Covid-19,

14 The low spending is due to {he roads that
were contracted on behalf of RAL and are
transferred to RAL as grants and subsidies.

24 The lower spending is due to delay in
transfer of DBSA lvan to the Municipality
(January 2021) to finance the projects, which
also defayed the delivery of materal and

appoiniment of contracts.

Budget
Rand Rand Rand %
60712 - (80712}
516 255 900 000 383745
1217 1000 000 998 783
1043 500 000 498 957
6490612 4109980 (2380622)
1867418 2 300000 432 582
94 1562 247 109435054 15282 807
33970411 43012899 9042488
137 069 915 161 257 943 24 198 028 15
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Greater Tzaneen Municipality

Appendix G2

Budgeted Financial Performance (revenue and expenditure by municipal vote)
for the year ended 30 June 2021

Orlginal Budg get Adj it Wi Final Budget Actual Unauthorised Variance of Actual Actual Reported Expenditure Balance to be  Restated
(i.t.o. 528 and 331 of the (i.t.c. Counclt Outcome expenditure Actual Outcome as  Outcome as  unauthorised authorisedin  recovered Audited
MFMA) approved Outcome % of Final % of Origlnal expenditure terms of Outcome
policy) I Budget g section 32 of
Adjustments MFMA
Budget
Rand Rand Rand Rand Rand Rand Rand Rand Rand Rand Rand Rand Rand
Revenue by Vote
Vote 1 - Municipal Manager 1229 - 1229 - (1 229) - % 283000
Vote 2 - Planning & Economic 400 125 - 400 125 {79 801 {480 D26) (20¥% 353 706
Devalppment
Vote 3 - Financial Services 651 611 853 83230 131 644 841984 946672 286 301 830 302 147 % 812 084 085
Vote 4 - Corporate Services 4 200 000 - 1200 000 164 728 {1005 274) 16 % 1400 480
Vote 5§ - Community Services 170 852 T00 {36 000 000, 134 952700 69226 671 {65 726 028) 51 % 77343256
Vote 7 - Electrical Engineering 586 201 000 4 542 000 580 743000 245 669 570 (345 073 430) 2% 550 295 282
Services
Vote 8 - Englneering Services 95 278 326 10 858 002 & 105 636327 111 860496 5924 168 106 % 79 735 854
Total Revenue by Vote 1405 645 232 T2 430 133 4 478 075 365 1373 543 848 © {104 531 517} 93 % 1 321 492 693
Expenditure by Vote to be
approptiated
Vote 1 - Municipal Manager 73 806 28¢ 7 994 663 2 558 000 84058 022 76 835009 - (7 222 923} ¢ % 105 % - - - T210 171
Vote 2 « Planning & Economic 31351180 3351354 {156000) 34547544 28228049 . (8 319 495) 82 % 80 % - - - 35667 866
Development
Vote 3 - Financial Services 113 337 111 6349 641 2316384 122003136 105284074 - (16 719 062} 86 % 93 % - - - 105 617 891
Vote 4 - Corporate Services 63 973170 236 898 (147 989) 64 £62 088 78 745 788 15 083 719 15083719 123 % 126 % - - - 52 636675
Vote 5 - Communtty Services 269 568 063 (24723906} (4791946} 240052211 188377220 - 41 674 982) 83 % T4 % - “ - 194 233 408
Vote 7 - Electrical Engineering 572 684 922 {333158) {1094 994) 571286760 568420276 - {2 B3 484) 100 % 99 % - - - 526 866 528
Services
Vote 8 - Engineenng Services 162 934 326 7 247 039 1315555 171496920 130587 410 - {40 908 510) 76 % 80 % - - - 120 538 062
Totat Expenditure by Vote 1 287 355 041 T22 521 - 1288077562 1187 478 B25 15083 713 {100 598 737) 92 % 92 % - - - 1112771601
Surplus/(Deficit) for the year 118 290 191 71707 612 180 857 803 186 065 023 ¥ (3 932 780} 98 % 157 % 208 721 082
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Appendix G3

Budgeted Financial Performance {revenue and expenditure)
for the year ended 30 June 2021

Revenue By Source

Property rates

Service charges - electricity revenue
Service charges - refuse revenue
Property rales - penalties & collection
charges

Rental of facilities and eguipment
Interest revenue

Interest earned - cutstanding debtors
Fines, penaliies and forfeits
Licences and permits

Ageney services

‘Transfers recognised- operatichal
Other revenue

Totat Revenue {excluding capital
transfers and contributions)

2021/2020 2020/2019

Original Budget Budget Virement  Final Budget Achzal Unauthorised Varlance of Actual Actual Reported Expenditure  Bal: tobe Restated

Adjustiments  (it.o. Council Outcome expenditure Actuzl Outcome as Qutcome as unauthorised authorised in  recovered Audited

(ito.s28and approved Qutcome % of Final % &f Original expenditure terms of Qutcorme

531 of the pokicy) against Budget Budget section 32 of
MFMA} Adjustments MFMA
Budget
Rand Rand Rand Rand Rang Rand Rand Rand Rand Rand Rand Rand Rand

120 000 000 - 120 000000 129 825627 § 628 627 108 % 114 688 958
571 201 000 9542000 ¢ $80 743000 461584 737 (116 158 263) 8% 520 237 868
35416 132 - 35416132 37 967 151 2551 028 107 % 32961784

12500000 (12500 000) i - - - DIVID % -
1170 100 1158 000 2328100 222 530 {2 105 570} 10% 1152 233
4301000 23600000 27 901 000 29810 162 2008 162 107 % 27911832

23600000 (23600000 - - - DIV/0 % -
388011368 12500001 51001137 23008714 {27 991 363) 45 % 37 082 842
817 000 - S17 000 210938 {706 002) 23% 1231882
58 664 281 {36 000 000 22 684 291 14 745 546 (7 &18 745) 65 % 9 118 576
443 963950 83468 050 527432000 525068613 {2 363 387) 100 % 418 145 907
6472 573 1230 133 7702706 35720310 28 017 604 464 % 64 637 530
1316707 182 50 398 134 : 1376105 366 1 258 065 45 {118 039 308) o1 % 1227 149 693
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Appendix G3

Budgeted Financial Performance (revenue and expenditure)
for the year ended 30 June 2021

Original Budget Budget Virement  Final Budget Actual Unauthorised Variance of Actual Actual Reported Expenditure Balancetobe Restated
Adjustments  (i.t.o. Council Outcome  expenditure Actual Outcome as  Qutcome as  enauthorised authorised in  recovered Audited
(ito.s28and approved Cutcome % of Final % of Original  expenditure terms of Dutcome
s3t of the policy) against Budget Budget section 32 of
MFMA) Adjustments MEMA,
Budget
Rand Rand Rand Rand Rand Rand Rand Rand Rand Rand Rand Rand Rand

Expenditure By Type
Employee related cosis 345 564 118 (5 925 001) - 330632118 352143974 ~ 12 504 856 104 % 102 % - - - 311114 596
Remuneration of councillors 29 034 983 - - 29034 983 27 038 544 B {1998 439) 93 % 93 % - - - 26 842 506
Debt impairment 70 035 689 - - 70035698 19 018 006 - (51 017 693) 27 % 27T % - - - 22971747
Depreciation & asset impairment 132 970 807 - - 132970807 109337 040 - (23633 767) 82 % 82 % - - - 108 284 835
Finance charges 15728 808 100G 000 1656 516 18385324 19962160 - 1576 836 109 % 127 % - - - 14 806 809
Bulk purchases 406 187 500 - 1476000 407 663500 407 788 362 - 122 862 100 % 100 % B - - 380 694 217
Other materials 57321085 13 6598 468 (4739301) 66180252 48691164 - {16 489 088) 75 % 87 % - - - 37 379 096
Contracted services 71525209 (§282000) (1048300) 61194909 71444076 - 10 249 187 117 % 100 % - - - §0 541 867
Transfers and subsidies 30912 000 432 814 - 31351814 34877217 - 3625403 112 % 113 % - - - 42 736 650
Cther expenditure 128 087 §31 §95 239 2655085 131621155 95665740 - (35 955 415) 73 % 75 % - - - 94 841 080
1,055 on disposal of PPE - - - - 415 540 - 416 540 DV/D % DIV/C % - - - 3 608 167
Total Expenditure 1 287 355 041 722 520 - 1288077561 1187478823 - (100 598 738) 92 % 92 % - - - 1127600
Surplus/(Deficit) 28 352 141 58 675 664 88 D27 BOS 70 586 B35 (17 441 170) 80 % 114 378 033
Transfars recognised- capital £8 838 050 13 031 850 Y 101970000 115478391 | 13 508 301 113 % 94 263 000
Surpius/{Deficit) after capital 118 290 191 71707 614 4189 997 BOS  tB6 065 026 : (3932 779) 98 % 208721 093
transfers & contributions
Surplus/(Deficit) after taxation 118 290 191 71 707 614 189 957 805 186 065 026 | {3 932 779) 98 % 208 721 093
Surplus/(Deficit) attributable to 118 200 191 71 707 614 189 99T 805 186 065 026 (3832779) 38 % 208 721 093
municipality
Surplus/(Deficit) far the year 118 280 191 71707 614 & 188 997 805 186 065 026 {3 932 779} 98 % 15T % 208 721 093
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Appendix G4

Budgeted Capital Expenditure by vote, function and funding
for the year ended 30 June 2021

Original Budget Budget Final Budget Actual Unauthorised Variance of Actual Actual Reported  Expenditure Balancetobe Restated
Adjustments Qutcome expenditure Actual Gutcomeas Outcomeas Unauthorised authorised in  recoverad Audited
(i.t.0.s28 and Outeome % of Final % of Original expenditure terms of Outcome
s31 of the against Budget Budget section 32 of
MFMA} Adjustments MFMA
Budget
Rand Rand Rand Rand Rand Rand Rand Rand Rand Rangd Rand Rand

Capital expenditure - Vote
Muliti-year expenditure
Single-year expenditure
Vote 1« Municipal Manager - - - 80 712 - 60712 BIVID % DIV/D % - - - -
Vote 2- Planning & Economic 1000 000 - 1000 000 1217 - (998 783} - % - % - - - -
Qevelopment
Vote 3- Financial Services 500 000 - 500 060 113 326 - {386 674) 23 % 2B % - - - 91160
Vote 4 » Comporate Services . 400000 400 000 402 929 - 2929 101 % DIVI0 % - - - 4 710 670
Vote 5 - Communily Services 2300 000 500000 2 800 000 1 868 461 - (931538) 67 % 81% - - - 2603123
Vote 7 - Blectrical Enginagring 30 000 000 13012299 43012898 3397041 - (9 542 488) %% 113 % - . - 47 257 958
Services
Vote 8 - Engineering Services 96 938 034 16607010 113535044 100 642858 - {12 902 188) 88 % 104 % « - - 86 059 392
Capital single-year expenditure sub- 130 738 034 30519808 161257 943 137 058 914 - {24 198 029) 85 % 105 % - - - 140 722 334
todal
Total Capital Expenditure - Vote 130 V38034 30519909 16T 257943 137 059 914 - (24 198 629} 85 % 185 % - - - 140 722 334
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Appendix G4

Budgeted Capital Expenditure by vote, function and funding
for the year ended 30 June 2021

Original Budget Budget Final Budget Actual Unauthorised Variance of Actual Actual Reported Expenditure Bal. tobe Restated
Adjustments Outcome expenditure Actual Gutcome as Dudcome as  unauthorised authorisedin  recovered Audited
(i.t.o. s2B and Outcome % of FInal % of Original expenditure terms of Outcome
53t of the against Budget Budget section 32 of
MEMA) Adjustments MFMA
Budget
Rand Rand Rand Rand Rand Rand Rand Rand Rand Rand Rand Rand

Capitat Expenditure - Functional
Governance and administration 500 000 400 000 900 000 576 967 - (323 033) 64 % 115 % - - - 4909 977
Executive and council - - - 80 712 . 80 712 Lo % DIV % - - - -
Budget and ‘reasury effice 500000 - 500 000 113 328 - (386 674} 23 % 23 % - - - 199 308
Corporate services - 400 000 400 000 402 929 - 2929 101 % DIVI0 % - - - 4710669
Community and pubfic safety 3 BOD D00 3109 9%0 6909 950 8359073 - 1449 083 121 % 220 % - - - § 836 660
Lommunity and social services - 500 000 506 000 1043 - {498 957) - % DIV/C % - - - 228 850
Sport 2nd recreation 2 300 000 - 2300 000 1867 418 - (432 582) B1 % 81 % - - - -
Housing 1 500 000 2608980 4 108 980 6460612 - 2380622 158 % 433 % - - - & 550 940
Health - - - - - - DIVID % DIVID % - - - 55870
Economic and environmental 96438034 13997020 110435054 94153464 - (16 281 580) 85 % 98 % - “ - 81 696 524
services
Planning and development 4 000 000 - 1000 000 12147 . {898 783) - % - % - - - -
Road transport 95 438 034 13997 020 109 435 054 94 152 247 - (15 262 807) BE % 99 % - - - 81 696 524
Trading services 30 000 00D 13 012 93 43 012 892 33 97¢ 411 - (9 042 488) 78 % 113 % - - - 47 279173
Electricity 30000 000 13012898 43012889 33970 411 - (S 042 488} 79 % 113 % - - - 47 257 959
Total Capital Expenditure - 130 738 034 30519 909 161 257 943 13T 059 915 - (24 198 028) 85 % 105 % - - - 140 722 334
Functional
Funded by:
National Government 88 538 034 8 351 020 07286054 64599174 i {12 689 880} 87 % 77 869 318
Transfers recognised - capital 88 938 034 8351020 97 289 054 84599174 : {12 689 380) 87 % BT 925188
Public contributions & donatiens - - - 13 508 381 13 508 381 DIVI0 % 80 000
Borrowing 22000 000 12 828 543 34 825 542 16 977 613 (17 850 930} 49 % 32053 860
internally generated funds 16 80G 000 6340346 20740348 21974736 (7 165 610} 75 % 20653 286
Total Capital Funding 130 736 034 30519909 161257 943 137059 M4 (24 198 029) 85 % 140 722 334
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Appendix G5

Budgeted Cash Flows

for the year ended 30 June 2021

2021/2020 2020
Qriginal Budget Final Budget Actual Variance of Actual Actual Restated
Budget Adjustments Outcome Actual Cutcome as  Qutcome as Audited
(i.t.0. 528 and Outcome % of Final % of Original  Qutcome
531 of the against Budgst Budget
MFMA) Adjustments
Budget
Rand Rand Rand Rand Rand Rand Rand Rand
Cash flow from operating acti
Receipts
Taxation 118250000 {18090 000) 101180000 1289625627 28465627 128 % 108% 93177552
Bale of goods and services 545 955 418 72068193 6818014611 5400414380 (78000231} 87 % 99 % 571918450
Grants 532902000 (15814 389) 517087601 5B8225262 71 137 651 14 % 110 % 513448208
Interest income 4 301 000 10609700 14910700 28667 610 14 756 910 199 % 690 % 8 677 865
Employee costs {345 564 119} 14307 216 (331256 903) (363 389515) (32132 612) 110 % 105 % (347 094 897)
Suppliers (869415636) 162 130 507 (707 286 128) (731651 014) (24 365 BBS) 103 % B4 % (867 840 332)
Divittends - - - N - Divio % BIVID % -
Payments
Flnance costs {15 728 808) 1070494 {14658 314) {18201 643) (3 543229) 124 % 116 % (13571 398)
Transfer of property, plant and - - - 116662541 116 662 541 BDIVi0 % DIVID % 34035003
equipment
Transfers and Grants - - - - - DIVIO % DIVIO % 42 736 650
Net cash flow frem/used operating (28 300 145} 226272711 197972556 290 553338 SZIBOTTZ 147 % (1028)% 2354856 191
activities
Cash flow frem investing activities
Regceipfs
Additions to property, plant and (128 938 050) (24 029 800) (152 967 B50) (253 724 397) (10D 756 547) 166 % 197 % (174 555 985)
equipment
Preceeds on disposal of property, piant 1500 000 1000 000 2 500 00O - {2 500 000) - % - % N
and equipment
Decrease (increase) other non-current - - - - - DIV/D % DIVIO % -
receivables
Increase in financial assets (1262 784) (2848677) (4211481} (17750018) (13538557 421 % 1406 % 10411584
Payments
Capital assels - - - - . DIvio % DivVID % -
Loss on disposal of property, plant and - - - - - DIV % DIV % (202 341)
equipment
Increase in herilage assets - - - - - DV % DIv/0 % {5 958)
Net cash flow fromfused investing {128 700 834) (23978 477) (154 679311) (271474 415) (116 795 104) 176 % 211 % (164 352 610)
activities
Cash flow from finanging activities
Recelpts
Repayment of other financ {324 045) (3491183} {(3815228) 20743132 24 558360 (5443% (6 401)% (162 942)
Finance lease payments “ (1500000) {1500000) {5B47583) (4147 583) 3T % DIVIC % (53 232)
increase {decrease) in constmer - - - - - DIVID % DIVIG % -
deposits
Fayments
Repaymant of borrowing - - - - - DIVID % DIVID % -
Net eash flow fromjused financing (324 045} - (4991 183) (5315228) 15095549 20410777 (284)% (4 658)% (216 174)
activities
Net increase/{decrease} in ¢ash held (157 325 024) 195 302 651 37 ors 027 34574472 (3 403 555) 91 % (22)% 28182757
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Appendix G5

Budgeted Cash Flows
for the year ended 30 June 2021

Cash/cash equivalents at the year
begin:

Cash/eash equivalents at the year
end:

Criginal Budget Final Budgat Actual Variance of Actual Actual Restated

Budget Adjustments Cutcome Actual Cutcome as  Outcome as Audited

{ito.s28 an¢ Outcome % of Final % of Originad Dutcome

53t of the ayainst Budget Budget
MFMA) Adjustments
Budget
Rand Rand Rand Rand Rand Rand Rand Rand

43 510 852 (1477841} 42033011 70215 766 {3 870 BOT) 42 033 011
(12814172} 183825211 80011038 104750 238 {7 274 162) 131 % O2)% 70215768
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Appendix G6
Stands not yet transferred

for the year ended 30 June 2021

Stands not yet transferred

Stands to the value of R 4 180 000 have besn sold and are in the progress of being transferred.
In some instances the delays were caused by litigation.

Details of stands not yet transferred attached as Appendix 6.

NO

&g Ww

El
15

17
18
19
20
22

23

NAME AND
SURNAME

Shiridza Lelty
Thembi

Bill Richard
Selolse Violet
Zitha Nwamakaringi
Letty

Mashila Timoty
Nyathi

Mkansi Sasavona
Elste

Makumbila Supper
Hlungwana Sydney
Lulamba Tshollo
Lilly

Mtembi Esaya
Samuel

Mkhabele
Thembekile Allucia
Shai Simon
Khashani
Seseletsi Ngwako
Phineas

Nyayana Nghamuni
Milaleni

Mashele Steven
Charles

Baloyi Calvin
Tshikelele Ngoaku
Isaac

Nishana Mukhari
Maria

Machimana
Matthews

Lerato Kganyago
Mashele Ghunkey
Thomas Mabunda
Mathe Winsly
Mbungela Oupa

ERF NUMBER

Portion B of erf 2051
283
742/68
739/41
74111
744/18
74014
741/14
622
740/29
741/42
74521
740/16
745/15
74113

744123
739/68

741/30
617

861
837
859
971
972

LOCATION

Nkowa-B
Nkowa-C
Nkowa-C
Nkowa-C
Nkowa-C
Nkowa-C
Nkowa-C
Nkowa-C
Nkowa-C
Nkowa-C
Nkowa-C
Nkowa-C
Nkowa-C
Nkowa-C
Nkowa-C

Nkowa-C
Nkowa-C

Nkowa-C
Dan Ext 2

Dan Ext 2
Dan Ext 2
Dan Ext 2
Dan Ext2
Dan Ext2

133

PURCHASE
PRICE

40 000
342 000
8825

6 940
8419

10 879

9029
11628
9394
13 680

8 550
8 550

8208
80 000

83 000
101 000
60 125
60 000
35 000

ACCOUNT

1095 774
1062 360
1088 551
218 409
950 718
695 137
1108 818
1004 499

1036 948

967 704
956 445
925 207
964 855

983 463
988 800

985 911
1066 639

923 954
923 947
1050 460
1051839
1050 815

2020/2021
MARKET
VALUE
40 0G0
700 000
220000
160 000
40 000
100 000
150 000
50 000
290 000
160 000
50 000
100 000
380 000
520 000
400 000

80 000
120 000

50 000
110000
130 000
140 600
60 000
80000
60 000

4 180 000



